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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Before we start,

          3  I would just like to go through some of the ground

          4  rules. I guess any time we have a piece of

          5  legislation like this that invokes passions on both

          6  sides, sometimes there's a temptation to make noise

          7  and speak out, and, unfortunately, we cannot and

          8  will not tolerate that. Your presence here certainly

          9  speaks for you. Anyone wishing to be heard is free

         10  to sign up and will be heard in full, but outbursts

         11  from the audience will not be tolerated. And I guess

         12  because this is a noise hearing, anyone who has

         13  pager, cell phones, whatever, could set them on

         14  vibrate. I mean, how embarrassing would that be to

         15  have your cell phone go off in the middle of a noise

         16  hearing. So, there you have it.

         17                 Are we ready, Sergeant? And also,

         18  anyone who has testimony could please give it to the

         19  Sergeant, and sign up to testify.

         20                 Are we ready?

         21                 Good morning. Good morning, I'm

         22  Council Member Jim Gennaro, Chair of the New York

         23  City Council's Committee on Environmental

         24  Protection.

         25                 I welcome you here this morning as
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          2  this Committee holds its second hearing on the

          3  Mayor's proposed amendments to the City's Noise Code

          4  now numbered Intro. 397-A.

          5                 There is absolutely no question that

          6  noise controls are critical to life in New York

          7  City. This is not only because it threatens to

          8  diminish New Yorkers' quality of life but also

          9  because noise, like other forms of pollution, can

         10  cause serious, chronic, and sometimes disabling

         11  health impacts.

         12                 As important as noise controls

         13  clearly are, however, we, as a City, and we, as the

         14  City Council, need to ensure that we get these

         15  controls right.

         16                 In other words, we need to find the

         17  right balance between controlling unnecessary excess

         18  and harmful noise, on the one hand; and on the

         19  other, the realities of life in the most vibrant

         20  vital city in the world. Getting it right is very

         21  important, because any way you look at it, New York

         22  City's noise restrictions touch on the lives and

         23  livelihoods of millions of people. It is also why

         24  today's second hearing on the Mayor's proposed Noise

         25  Code revisions is so important.
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          2                 Since the last hearing, and

          3  particularly over recent months, the Bloomberg

          4  Administration, and the DEP, with the Council's

          5  active encouragement and cooperation, has sought to

          6  address, and where appropriate, resolve the numerous

          7  serious concerns that were raised by various

          8  organizations, groups and citizens regarding the

          9  proposed Noise Code revisions.

         10                 I understand that the Administration

         11  in its testimony this morning will briefly outline

         12  the key changes it has made to the first bill.

         13                 Today's hearing is a critical

         14  barometer of the relative success of the effort to

         15  resolve concerns related to the proposed Noise Code

         16  revisions. Because today is our opportunity, this

         17  Council's opportunity, to hear from you how close

         18  the latest version of the Mayor's proposed Noise

         19  Code revisions is to getting it right.

         20                 Clearly, the Council joins the

         21  Administration, and many of you here today, in

         22  hoping to pass a new City Noise Code into law soon.

         23                 However, you should not assume that

         24  the passage of the bill before us today is a

         25  foregone conclusion. We are prepared to revisit any
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          2  aspect of the bill, if appropriate, before the

          3  Council acts.

          4                 Now, before turning to my colleagues

          5  for any statements, I would like to recognize the

          6  efforts of the number of people related to the

          7  proposed Noise Code revisions. After that I'll

          8  recognize the Council members who are here.

          9                 First with regard to the

         10  Administration, Deputy Commissioner Bob Avaltroni of

         11  DEP has been the real point person in this, has been

         12  a real champion in trying to get people together.

         13                 And, Bob, I thank you for all of your

         14  great work.

         15                 Mark Lanigan, always so helpful in

         16  everything we do with the Council. Jerry Kelpin, who

         17  I've known for many, many years, thank you, Jerry.

         18  Charlie Sturcken, as always, a great help. Charlie

         19  Shannon -- Shimoon. I'm sorry about that. Elisa

         20  Preston, Karen Meara, Chris Manning, and Olivia

         21  Goodman, and also Commissioner Lloyd, we would like

         22  to thank you for all of your hard work and the great

         23  team that you've put together to try to move this

         24  down field.

         25                 And from the Council, Marcel Van
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          2  Ooyen, who has been a real champion to try to move

          3  this, and to try to get the proper consensus. He's

          4  been absolutely terrific. Jeff Haberman, a long-time

          5  friend of mine and actually one of my Council

          6  mentors from many, many years ago.

          7                 Counsel to Committee, Donna

          8  DeCostanzo; the Analyst to the Committee, Rich

          9  Colon; Jonathan Ettricks. My own Chief of Staff,

         10  Peter Washburn, who has been so very, very helpful.

         11                 And I wish to recognize that we're

         12  joined by Council Member Koppell, Council Member

         13  Gallagher and Council Member Arroyo, Council Member

         14  Brewer, Council Member Gerson, and Council Member

         15  Joe Addabbo. So we thank them all very much for

         16  joining with us in this very important hearing.

         17  There will be more Council members coming as the

         18  hearing goes on.

         19                 If there are any Council members that

         20  have a brief statement at this time before we

         21  commence with the first witness, this would be the

         22  time.

         23                 I recognize Council Member Gerson,

         24  not a member of this Committee but very interested

         25  in noise. I recognize Council Member Gerson for a
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          2  statement.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Actually I was

          4  just going to say I'm going to defer my comments on

          5  the issues at hand to the time when we get to the

          6  witnesses and thereafter. I just wanted to note that

          7  I am not a member of the Committee, and I wanted to

          8  thank you, Mr. Chair, for your leadership and for

          9  your allowing me to participate in this hearing and

         10  in this matter. Thank you. And thank all of my

         11  colleagues.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm happy to

         13  have you here, Council Member Gerson, and all the

         14  Council members.

         15                 So, without further ado, we would

         16  like to hear the good testimony of the

         17  Administration. Once again, Commissioner, welcome.

         18  It's a pleasure to have you before us here today.

         19                 We will ask the Counsel to the

         20  Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, to put the panel under

         21  oath, and then you can state your names for the

         22  record and identify the people at the panel and

         23  proceed with your good testimony.

         24                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         25  right hand.
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          2                 In the testimony that you're about to

          3  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          4  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          5                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          6                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Good morning, Mr.

          8  Chairman, and Committee members. I am Emily Lloyd,

          9  Commissioner of the New York City Department of

         10  Environmental Protection.

         11                 On behalf of Mayor Bloomberg, I thank

         12  you for giving me the opportunity to discuss the

         13  Administration's proposed changes to New York City

         14  Noise Code.

         15                 Seated with me are, on my direct

         16  left, Robert Avaltroni, Deputy Commissioner for the

         17  Bureau of Environmental Compliance; on my right,

         18  Geraldine Kelpin, Director of Environmental

         19  Policies; and on my far left, Sue Petito, Assistant

         20  Commissioner for Intergovernment Affairs from New

         21  York Police Department.

         22                 At the outset, Mr. Chairman, I would

         23  like to thank the Speaker and your staff for working

         24  collaboratively to shape a piece of legislation that

         25  I hope will be satisfactory to the members and to
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          2  the public, as we continue to build a sustainable

          3  city by reshaping the City's environment for the

          4  21st century.

          5                 Intro. 397-A is the first

          6  comprehensive piece of legislation designed to

          7  overhaul the New York City Noise Code in over 30

          8  years. At the time of the City's past adoption of a

          9  comprehensive noise code, New York was seen as a

         10  leader in the area of noise control. This

         11  legislation will continue New York City's leadership

         12  role in developing noise policies that strike a

         13  balance between encouraging development, promoting a

         14  robust nightlife, while at the same time improving

         15  the quality of life of the citizens of New York.

         16                 Today noise is the number one quality

         17  of life complaint to the City's 3-1-1 citizen hot

         18  line, the DEP alone receiving nearly 4,000 calls a

         19  month.

         20                 The legislation provides a clear and

         21  flexible approach to address the top citizens'

         22  complaints and balances the City's need for

         23  construction, development and nightlife, what the

         24  citizens need for a little peace and quiet.

         25                 Intro. 397-A is a comprehensive
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          2  document that removes outdated code sections and

          3  replaces them with modern and reasonable standards.

          4  While each amended provision contained in the bill

          5  deserves a detailed discussion, I have focused my

          6  testimony on key areas that are central to the

          7  proposal, including reducing sound from

          8  construction, reducing sound from commercial music

          9  sources, adjusting current code provisions governing

         10  circulation devices, aiding noise enforcement by

         11  using a nationally-recognized plainly audible

         12  standard instead of conventional decibel limits, and

         13  by providing in conjunction with the unreasonable

         14  noise standard legislatively determined limits for

         15  certain noise sources.

         16                 The mission of the Noise Code

         17  Revision is to reduce overall sound levels through

         18  noise management strategies that allow commercial,

         19  cultural and manufacturing activities to continue at

         20  volumes that are less intrusive to residents.

         21                 I want to emphasize to the Council

         22  that this legislation does not seek increased

         23  enforcement in pure numbers as its primary goal, but

         24  rather to give our staff the tools for better,

         25  smarter enforcement of the areas we now regulate.
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          2                 Let me speak first about construction

          3  noise. Noise from construction continues to be the

          4  number one complaint received at DEP. We are fully

          5  cognizant that it is difficult to control noise from

          6  construction in a City of 8 million residents, while

          7  at the same time encouraging the construction and

          8  development that are essential for the City's

          9  economic health.

         10                 The challenge becomes how to regulate

         11  construction noise when it is an inherently noisy

         12  activity that by necessity occurs near residences.

         13                 Construction activity ranges from the

         14  small job of opening a street to install a private

         15  service utility line, to large scale developments of

         16  hundreds and thousands of square feet. Each can have

         17  attendant quality of life noise issues.

         18                 Although the existing Noise Code

         19  contains certain device-specific decibel standards

         20  applicable to equipment used in construction, noise

         21  from construction sites has generally been regulated

         22  by the unreasonable noise standard.

         23                 However, because construction

         24  activities and equipment, almost by definition are

         25  loud, the unreasonable noise standard is not an
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          2  effective tool for addressing the control of

          3  construction noise.

          4                 As a way to regulate the overall

          5  level of sound emanating from construction sites

          6  generally, without relying exclusively on rigid

          7  decibel limitations, and on a "catch-as-catch-can"

          8  basis, this legislation creates a best management

          9  practices type standard for all construction

         10  activity.

         11                 Best management practices enables us

         12  to control noise by prescribing noise mitigation

         13  strategies, methods, procedures and technology that

         14  would be used at construction sites where certain

         15  types of construction activity takes place.

         16                 Most importantly, with this new

         17  policy direction, the regulated construction

         18  community would be able to incorporate these

         19  strategies into their standard business practices

         20  prior to commencing work. The activity ranges from

         21  using devices which include air compressors and

         22  power tools to construction devices with internal

         23  combustion engines. These devices often emit

         24  impulsive sounds and also cause vibration.

         25                 To remediate the sound from this
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          2  equipment, various mitigation methods would be

          3  engaged, depending upon the equipment and its

          4  proximity to nearby residences and businesses.

          5                 Under the legislation, rules would be

          6  promulgated prescribing noise mitigation procedures

          7  and technology for different types of construction

          8  equipment. Persons doing construction work would be

          9  required to create and implement a construction

         10  noise mitigation plan, or CNP, in accordance with

         11  the rules prior to commencing work.

         12                 We want to emphasize that this

         13  proposal for a mitigation plan does not set up any

         14  new regulatory roadblocks to commencing

         15  construction.

         16                 Rather, the proposal is meant to

         17  integrate modern acoustic methods into the

         18  traditionally noisy activity of construction, while

         19  mindful of the importance of the development and

         20  real estate industry to the City's economy.

         21                 Where construction work is proceeding

         22  according to a CNP that conforms to the requirements

         23  of the rules, that construction work is deemed to be

         24  complaint with the Noise Code.

         25                 We, in government, are mindful of the
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          2  fact that government itself can be the biggest

          3  noisemaker of all, as it must construct and repair

          4  critical infrastructure and provide services for the

          5  public safety.

          6                 After consulting with many

          7  stakeholders from the construction industry and the

          8  City's construction agencies, we understand what a

          9  difficult undertaking this might appear to be.

         10                 To that end, in response to the

         11  industry and the City agencies, Intro. 397-A adds

         12  the establishment of an advisory committee comprised

         13  of the construction industry trades, utilities and

         14  relevant city agencies for the purpose of bringing

         15  all interests into the rule-making process. The

         16  rules to be promulgated pursuant to Intro. 397-A

         17  will provide for a generic mitigation plan that will

         18  incorporate costs, safety and availability as

         19  factors to be considered by the Committee.

         20                 I'd next like to address circulation

         21  devices.

         22                 Air conditioning units, particularly

         23  clusters of them, are a growing source of noise

         24  complaints. Although the current code has a standard

         25  for air conditioning units of 45 decibels, as
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          2  measured in a residence, that standard has been

          3  interpreted to apply to a single unit.

          4                 Therefore, a residential complainant

          5  could be 15 feet away from multiple units of air

          6  conditioning equipment, where each individual unit

          7  is in compliance but with an aggregate noise level

          8  in excess of 45 decibels, and there would be no

          9  violation unless a single unit is creating more than

         10  45 decibels. So, there is presently no enforcement

         11  remedy for this condition.

         12                 After consideration of, and in

         13  response to, the interests of the real estate and

         14  hotel and restaurant industries, we have fashioned

         15  our proposal in such a way that recognizes new

         16  computer and hi-tech industries need to expand, and

         17  with that comes more equipment, but also recognizes

         18  that existing industries should not be injured by

         19  the proposed changes.

         20                 For circulation devices installed

         21  before the effective date of this section, DEP

         22  proposes a standard of 42 decibels applicable to an

         23  individual device, and Intro. 397-A establishes 45

         24  decibels for cumulative devices, unlike Intro. 397

         25  which established a 42 decibel aggregate for those
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          2  units installed after the effective date.

          3                 In addition, a grace period of two

          4  years is permitted for preexisting devices and their

          5  replacements. A reasonable period is granted to

          6  operators to achieve a noise reduction if

          7  preexisting equipment exceeds 50 decibels.

          8                 Where the sound level is greater than

          9  50 decibels and where there is a single owner of

         10  said device, the owner must achieve a 5 decibel

         11  reduction within 12 months.

         12                 By creating a standard applicable to

         13  prospective installations of multiple circulation

         14  devices, and requiring reductions in existing

         15  clusters of circulation devices, the proposed Noise

         16  Code will offer relief to many residents whose

         17  complaints about multiple circulation devices could

         18  not be addressed under the existing Code.

         19                 To speak next about commercial music

         20  establishments, in the City that never sleeps, a

         21  vibrant nightlife is so very important to the City's

         22  economy. Keeping this in mind, the legislation sets

         23  a new standard that is readily achievable by the

         24  regulated community, while attempting to overhaul

         25  the volume of the music from commercial
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          2  establishments.

          3                 We have heard from neighborhood and

          4  community boards, loud and clear, that they need

          5  relief from the troublesome quality of life issue.

          6  So, how do we strike the balance for these competing

          7  interests?

          8                 The existing Code regulates sound

          9  from commercial music establishments based on a

         10  standard of 45 decibels as measured in a nearby

         11  residence. That standard fails to capture intrusive

         12  bass level music and low-pitched tones which are

         13  usually too low to be captured by a conventional

         14  decibel scale.

         15                 Furthermore, these sounds that are

         16  generated by music are intrusive but cannot be

         17  captured by conventional standards. Creating

         18  standards to regulate both amplified music that is

         19  plainly audible as well as less-audible but equally

         20  intrusive bass and low-pitched sounds are among the

         21  most complex aspect of the Code revision.

         22                 This legislation factors in these

         23  heretofore uncaptured, but clearly nettlesome, sound

         24  problems emanating from errant commercial music

         25  establishments by adding an ambient sound level of
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          2  62 decibels (C) when testing for an increase of 62

          3  decibel base above the ambient.

          4                 For music originating from a

          5  commercial establishment, the legislation creates a

          6  prohibition on sound that is plainly audible as

          7  measured at a distance of 15 feet or more on any

          8  public right-of-way. This standard is necessary to

          9  prevent noise that spills out onto streets and

         10  sidewalks.

         11                 Considering the economic generation

         12  that the nightlife industry provides to the City,

         13  the legislation amends the enforcement provisions

         14  applicable to this section so a zero penalty may be

         15  given for a first offense, if liability is admitted

         16  and the respondent certifies that there has been

         17  compliance within 30 days after the issuance of the

         18  violation.

         19                 The fines for the current code

         20  infraction are presently scaled at $3,200 for a

         21  first offense. By granting a zero penalty for first

         22  offenders, it is our intent that business will be

         23  able to invest this savings in measures to come into

         24  compliance by making acoustical modifications, and

         25  in most instances compliance can be achieved for
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          2  much less than the cost of the first offense.

          3                 This is a significant departure from

          4  previous enforcement policy, and as you can see,

          5  balances the needs of both businesses and nearby

          6  residents.

          7                 When the existing code defines a

          8  decibel limit for a particular source, enforcement

          9  requires use of hand-held decibel meters.

         10                 Although decibel meters are useful to

         11  obtain acoustic measurements, they have drawbacks.

         12  They require frequent time-consuming calibration;

         13  operating them successfully requires frequent use;

         14  and they have a 3 decibels plus-or-minus margin of

         15  error; and they are cumbersome for personnel.

         16                 The legislation would adopt a

         17  "plainly audible" standard for commercial music,

         18  sound reproduction devices, a defined term that

         19  includes personal audio devices and boomcars, and

         20  for vehicle mufflers and exhausts which when

         21  operated improperly on motorcycles can disturb

         22  blocks and blocks of City streets and residences.

         23                 For each source, the standard is

         24  "sound that is plainly audible at a specified

         25  distance." Compliance is determined by the
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          2  enforcement officer being able to clearly and

          3  plainly hear the sound of that source at, or beyond,

          4  the specified distance. By creating a "plainly

          5  audible" standard for these sources, enforcement

          6  will not be constrained by the need for a meter.

          7                 On the unreasonable noise standard,

          8  in many different sections the Code prohibits noise

          9  that is unreasonable to a person of normal

         10  sensitivities. The legislation would add, where

         11  practicable, criteria as to what constitutes

         12  unreasonable noise in certain cases making it more

         13  achievable by the regulated community.

         14                 For sources not covered by a specific

         15  section, the legislation would prohibit sounds

         16  caused by certain devices that would increase the

         17  ambient sound level by more than a specified number

         18  of decibels as measured at a specified distance from

         19  the source.

         20                 The decibel limit would be scaled

         21  higher during the daytime, and lower during the

         22  nighttime hours, reflecting the different tolerances

         23  of people for day and night activities.

         24                 I would like to point out to the

         25  Council other changes to the legislation since the
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          2  hearing in January 2005.

          3                 Pertaining to after hours

          4  construction, in addition to the emergencies or

          5  safety concerns provisions of 379 (sic), 379-A (sic)

          6  permits construction that cannot reasonably or

          7  practicably be performed on weekdays because of

          8  exigent circumstances. Permitting agencies may issue

          9  renewable authorizations for after hours

         10  construction inside or outside a property line for

         11  nights and weekends for up to 90 days. Rules are to

         12  be promulgated for construction work that meets a

         13  prescribed list of activities with minimal noise

         14  impacts and specific noise mitigation measures. A

         15  claim of undue hardship resulting from unique site

         16  characteristics, unforeseen conditions, scheduling

         17  commitments, and/or financial considerations outside

         18  the control of the permit holder provided the

         19  applicant certifies that he has obtained an approved

         20  alternative noise mitigation plan in accordance with

         21  section 24-221.

         22                 Pertaining to private carters, Intro.

         23  397-A has added nighttime operation of refuse

         24  collection vehicles within 50 feet of a legal

         25  residence of 85 decibels at 35 feet when in
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          2  operation at night near residences. 85 decibels is

          3  to be reduced to 80 after three years.

          4                 Pertaining to ice cream trucks and

          5  other mobile food vending vehicles, the new version

          6  strikes the prohibition on use of electrical sound

          7  signals attached to motor vehicles that vend food.

          8  The standard now will be no electrical sounds, i.e.,

          9  the jingle, when the vehicle is stopped.

         10                 Pertaining to inspections. Intro.

         11  397-A precludes the shutting down of devices where

         12  the operation would incur a noticeable disruption to

         13  services or an engineer would be necessary for the

         14  equipment shut down, in which case DEP would

         15  reschedule for a more convenient time.

         16                 Pertaining to animals, the new

         17  version compensates for those instances where an

         18  animal emits sounds for a reasonable circumstance,

         19  such as guarding against an intruder, or other

         20  emergencies.

         21                 In summary, the legislative revisions

         22  to the Noise Code responds to the key issues we have

         23  discussed here today; removes dated or unenforceable

         24  provisions; and, modifies standards for certain

         25  prohibitions where the existing standard is vague
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          2  and ineffective.

          3                 Mayor Bloomberg said when he

          4  announced this proposal that this"...overhaul will

          5  maintain our City's vibrancy by balancing the need

          6  for construction, development and an exciting

          7  nightlife with New Yorkers well deserved right to

          8  peace and quiet."

          9                 I hope we have demonstrated that goal

         10  to the Council today and we look forward to the

         11  passage of this legislation.

         12                 I will be happy to answer any

         13  questions you may have with the help of my

         14  assistants. Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         16  you, Commissioner.

         17                 I just made some notes in your

         18  statement. On page seven of your statement, you make

         19  reference to the fact that there will be an advisory

         20  committee comprised of the trades of utilities and

         21  other relevant agencies, and I know that the bill

         22  does not preclude the participation of other

         23  entities beyond that.

         24                 I think it would be appropriate for a

         25  representative of the Council staff to, you know,
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          2  participate in that. Would that be a problem?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I do not foresee

          4  any problem with that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we would

          6  like to participate with that.

          7                 I've had a lot of discussion with

          8  staff and others regarding the plainly audible

          9  standard as it would be applied to businesses that

         10  have commercial music. Is it the case now that the

         11  enforcement that is taking place currently with

         12  respect to these establishments uses the standard

         13  that was set for sound reproduction devices; is that

         14  what's being used now? There's like a plainly

         15  audible standard in effect now with respect to --

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Currently the

         17  standard used is unreasonable noise, and plainly

         18  audible is a standard that has been developing and

         19  being used in major cities around the country for

         20  some time now.

         21                 It is found to be very serviceable,

         22  it has a lot of credibility, it has been affirmed in

         23  many court cases, and the thing about it that is a

         24  huge plus is that the person who is responsible for

         25  the noise can test himself or herself any time they
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          2  want to without having to have meters and be

          3  adjusting them and calibrating them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But in other

          5  jurisdictions it's my understanding that this bill,

          6  as written, would apply the 15 foot standard for

          7  plainly audible for --

          8                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: That's correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Are other

         10  jurisdictions using that standard, that distance? To

         11  what extent would we parallel what other

         12  jurisdictions who have had a successful use of the

         13  standard? Where are we?

         14                 Where is the 15 foot standard that

         15  is, you know, contemplated in this bill with

         16  respects to other jurisdictions that use plainly

         17  audible for commercial music establishments? Is it

         18  15 feet? Is it 20 feet? Is it ten feet?

         19                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I know

         20  specifically that Detroit uses 15 feet. I think the

         21  staff felt that that was one that would be, that was

         22  reasonable and defensible. We could check and get

         23  back to you with other cities that use 15 feet.

         24                 But clearly, the plainly audible,

         25  audible, that standard is one that people are

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  comfortable with.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I'd be very

          4  curious to find out where we fit in with respect to

          5  other jurisdictions that use the plainly audible

          6  standard and where are we in sort of like the

          7  overall realm of jurisdictions that use that

          8  standard. I want to see where we are.

          9                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We'll be happy to

         10  supply that.

         11                 And just if I could add one note: the

         12  great value of this is that currently the standard

         13  is zero feet. So, in terms of where music can be

         14  heard --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Explain that for

         16  me again. Explain that for me.

         17                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, now if

         18  music is loud at zero feet, it can't be heard at all

         19  outside of a place of business. So, this --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Using the

         21  unreasonable noise standard.

         22                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes, right.

         23                 So this enables, really gives a lot

         24  more flexibility to the establishment operator.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But that is the

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  unreasonable noise standard for sound reproduction

          3  devices, is my understanding, which is the section

          4  of the code that is being used now. So, in my mind,

          5  isn't nightlife establishment really a sound

          6  reproduction device? I think that's I guess like a

          7  question that I have in my mind.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Let me ask Jerry

          9  Kelpin to answer that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It was not like

         11  what's going on now regarding enforcement, it really

         12  conforms with the original intent of sound

         13  reproduction devices was all about.

         14                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm going to ask

         15  Jerry Kelpin to respond in detail.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Jerry

         17  is a great source.

         18                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: To be sure what

         19  we say is completely accurate.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         21                 And Jerry, if you can just state your

         22  name for the record before you begin your testimony.

         23                 MS. KELPIN: I'm Geraldine Kelpin.

         24                 Currently there is a provision in the

         25  Noise Code under Section 220 subsection B. We have
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          2  been able to demonstrate that the provision applies

          3  to bars, restaurants, as a commercial purpose,

          4  commercial business purpose. That section says that

          5  you cannot have any sound coming out of speakers or

          6  other sound reproduction device audible on the

          7  street.

          8                 In terms of our enforcement, we

          9  understand when people come in and out there can be

         10  sound that comes out, so we take that into

         11  consideration. We have to observe that the door or

         12  the window is continuously open, that people aren't

         13  coming in and out. There are several tests that we

         14  have to incorporate into our notice of violation in

         15  order to have that particular provision upheld, but

         16  we have been successful in using that provision, and

         17  it essentially says that if you're using any device

         18  that has essentially a speaker, and it is audible

         19  outside of the, sort of the front of the building,

         20  it is in violation.

         21                 So, what we were trying to do in this

         22  situation is that we are aware that, for instance,

         23  in the summer the sidewalk cafes that open up

         24  outside of bars and restaurants like to have sound

         25  for the people who are having lunch or dinner, and
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          2  we felt that if it was low and basically not heard

          3  out on the sidewalk, that it accomplished both

          4  goals.

          5                 And then in addition, we do know that

          6  music from bars can get a little loud, and rather

          7  than go to basically zero tolerance, we said if we

          8  measure back approximately 15 feet, and we used 15

          9  feet because we are also considering that if we were

         10  to consider people above some of these commercial

         11  first floor uses, and there are residences roughly

         12  15 feet above, so we were just kind of using it

         13  directional, we didn't really want to fly up, so we

         14  just said from street level if we could hear it,

         15  that it could also be disturbing people on the first

         16  floor. So, we're trying to come up with something

         17  that allowed a little bit more flexibility and, yet,

         18  preserved basically an environment that was not

         19  intrusive to people either on the street who weren't

         20  interested in hearing this music, or even, you know,

         21  people on the first floor or above, residents above

         22  some of these.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you.

         24  Thank you, Jerry.

         25                 I'm going to formulate some more
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          2  questions as well, but I want to give my colleagues

          3  a chance to weigh in. We're joined by Council Member

          4  Vallone from Queens. Very pleased to have him here.

          5  There are some Council Members who have signed up to

          6  pose a question to the panel. I recognize Council

          7  Member Brewer, although not a member of this

          8  Committee, is very interested in this topic.

          9                 Council Member Brewer.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 Since the west side is the number one

         13  complainer to 3-1-1, my guess is that that's where

         14  many of the complaints are coming from.

         15                 My question is this: I don't quite

         16  understand enforcement except those that can hear in

         17  terms of inspection. So, like the Police Department

         18  I know now has hand-held devices, so how does

         19  enforcement work on these different aspects? That's

         20  what my concern is. Do you have enough new, or do

         21  you need new enforcement personnel to do this? Will

         22  there be different training?

         23                 I don't understand the enforcement. I

         24  sort of understood, and I'm pretty much of a techi,

         25  so I understand what a hand-held device is, and I
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          2  don't understand, are they going to not be used in

          3  the future?

          4                 And how does the Police Department

          5  also weigh in on the enforcement? Would there have

          6  to be different training for officers?

          7                 And also, just hearing tests. As I

          8  get older, my hearing gets worse. How does all the

          9  enforcement work? That's really what my question is.

         10  And just there's many different aspects to it. There

         11  are many different aspects to it.

         12                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: If there is sound

         13  coming from a place of business that's caused by a

         14  speaker of some kind inside, there are two ways it

         15  can be enforced. If a complainant calls, we can go

         16  and go into that apartment and measure with a meter.

         17  Currently, however, many of the calls come at 2:00

         18  in the morning, when although we have some staff at

         19  some periods of the year doing intensive

         20  enforcement, frequently we don't have staff, and the

         21  police get a huge number of those calls and it makes

         22  a lot of sense for them to enforce them because

         23  they're there driving around with staff now.

         24                 However, even though they have been

         25  trained in using the meters and every precinct has
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          2  meters available to it, the use of them, unless you

          3  use them frequently, tends to not be as easy or

          4  effective.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm aware of

          6  that.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: And they also

          8  have to be calibrated against a separate piece of

          9  equipment very frequently. So, they are time

         10  consuming and cumbersome to use. For our staff who

         11  use them all the time, that's what they do all day,

         12  it's not a problem, but for police officers, it is

         13  less, makes it difficult for them to do this.

         14                 The approach of using plainly audible

         15  is that it is something we would design with NYPD.

         16  We would design specific training for all officers

         17  to go through, and we would -- then they would be

         18  trained. This is much easier to train for it, you

         19  hear it or you don't. There's obviously a little bit

         20  of difference given exactly where someone's hearing

         21  is but we feel not enough to make it unenforceable,

         22  and they can be trained to make that judgment and

         23  then they are there, they have it in their heads,

         24  they have it in their training, and they are able to

         25  use it right there on the street.
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          2                 The way generally it happens now

          3  during the night is that the police will get the

          4  first complaint. Then if it turns out to be a

          5  problem frequently, we monitor the complaints that

          6  they get, that come into them, and we will then, if

          7  there's a complainant that can be contacted, we will

          8  go out as well and try to take a reading in the

          9  apartment and enter into discussions with the

         10  business owner on what they can do, as well as

         11  giving violations, but also try to be helpful in

         12  terms of what they can do.

         13                 The idea of the cure provision grew

         14  out of that because we find so frequently that a

         15  relatively modest amount of tinkering with the

         16  placement of the speakers and doing some

         17  soundproofing in specific locations can make an

         18  enormous difference in terms of what's heard out in

         19  the street.

         20                 So, we tried to put all those things

         21  together to make it, to make do, support the police

         22  and be more responsive to those enormous number of

         23  complaints they get at night, and then to allow the

         24  business owner to fix it for once and for all by

         25  using the amount of the fine to go against that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So the police

          3  will no longer need then under this situation the

          4  device?

          5                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: That's correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Wow. All

          7  right.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: And this is

          9  something that has been -- there is a national

         10  organization that set standards, this is something

         11  that they have helped to develop, and something, as

         12  I said, that's being used by LA, Chicago, many large

         13  cities. They are very happy with it, and it has been

         14  found to be a reasonable way to do it and tested in

         15  the courts.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Two other

         17  quick questions. I'm sure there are many.

         18                 I'm a big supporter of the management

         19  of Fresh Direct, but they are everywhere. They are

         20  very responsive as a company, but the refrigerators

         21  make noise. They don't idle necessarily their

         22  engines. They know three minutes and it's out, but

         23  the refrigerator keeps going and then residents

         24  think it's the idling but it's really the

         25  refrigerator.
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          2                 Is that an issue as part of this

          3  Noise Code, or is refrigeration noise not considered

          4  noise?

          5                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: That's still

          6  circulation and that would be covered and could be

          7  dealt with as plainly audible.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. It's a

          9  new form of activity.

         10                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes, I know. I

         11  know. Very active in my neighborhood, as well.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Believe me, I

         13  know.

         14                 And then just finally, you know, the

         15  Department of Buildings has this very large advisory

         16  group now of construction folks because they have a

         17  new code, and I'm just thinking you might want to

         18  piggyback on some of their advisory boards, because

         19  folks will be going to these advisory boards all the

         20  time. Something to think about.

         21                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         23  much, Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         25                 Thank you, Council Member Brewer.
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          2                 Council Member Gerson.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

          4  much, Mr. Chair. And, again, thank you for your

          5  stellar leadership on this and all environment

          6  issues.

          7                 With all due respect to all the

          8  panelists, I just want to start with my old friend,

          9  maybe not so old in age, but in wisdom, Bob

         10  Avaltroni.

         11                 You and I have known each other, is

         12  it fair to say, for quite a bit of time?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

         14  Councilman, that is correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Going back to

         16  even before I held this current office.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes. I

         18  remember visiting you when you were very active in

         19  the community, yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And is it fair

         21  to say that in that time we've talked quite a bit

         22  about noise issues?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I

         24  think that's very fair to say.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Councilman
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          2  Gerson --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: No, the

          4  important point is to --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:-- Let's get to

          6  the question.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: You know, it's

          8  important to establish the proper context.

          9                 Well, let me just first say for the

         10  record --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We're trying to

         12  minimize noise, remember, in talking, in decibels?

         13  Please. Please.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Let me just

         15  state for the record that I believe, and I'm sure

         16  it's shared by everyone who is familiar with these

         17  issues, that our City is better off because of the

         18  work of Mr. Avaltroni and it will continue to be so.

         19                 When was my office, or I, presented

         20  with a copy of the Administration's current

         21  proposal?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Well,

         23  I think we --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: In its current

         25  revised form?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: In its

          3  current revised form, we've been working diligently

          4  with Council staff, as the Commissioner alluded to,

          5  in the beginning.

          6                 But that being said, we've been

          7  obviously trying to get passed -- as you said, we've

          8  been working very hard for a long period of time, to

          9  get a new Noise Code. It's time.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Does that mean

         11  I was first given this, or this was first made

         12  available to me early this morning?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I'm

         14  going to defer to the very capable wisdom of

         15  Commissioner Lloyd.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. I look

         17  forward to dialoguing with the Commissioner. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Council member, I

         20  do not know exactly when it went in your hands, but

         21  I would like to make the point that it has been

         22  being amended in small ways in intense discussions

         23  through our conversations with the Speaker's Office,

         24  all of which our intent was to improve the bill.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: In all
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          2  seriousness, I'm not asking this in order as any

          3  criticism. I'm asking this so we could gauge what is

          4  the proper timetable going forward for us to follow

          5  to proceed to an adoption.

          6                 So, maybe let's put aside me. Has

          7  this current version, as of today when we're having

          8  a hearing on it, has this been circulated to all of

          9  the community boards in each of our districts?

         10                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I think as

         11  currently amended it has not been, but certainly

         12  could be very quickly.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And that would

         14  probably be a good idea, to get their feedback

         15  before we take a vote perhaps?

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I can't comment

         17  on how the Council works, sir.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I understand

         19  that.

         20                 Okay, let me just go through briefly,

         21  Mr. Chair, some of the major areas covered, and just

         22  for clarification. And let me just say before that,

         23  I hope in the next few days, recognizing that this

         24  is the first hearing on this current version, that

         25  we will have an opportunity between now and any vote
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          2  to engage in dialogue about any concerns recognizing

          3  that especially when it comes to noise, the devil is

          4  in the details. And I hope your office will be

          5  available for that type of input from each of us.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We have been in

          7  intensive conversations through the Speaker's

          8  Office, and we intend to continue to be available

          9  for that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Construction

         11  noise --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me just pop

         13  in for a minute and kind of recognize that there

         14  are, you know, not only have there been

         15  consultations between the Administration and the

         16  Council and various stakeholder entities, but there

         17  has been a lot of dialogue with individual Council

         18  member offices who are very interested in this

         19  issue, and I'd like to commend Council Member Gerson

         20  and his staff, you know, both of whom have been in

         21  contact with Council staff in the week or weeks

         22  leading up to this, and so we appreciate your

         23  involvement in the process.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, thank

         25  you very much.
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          2                 And, again, your leadership has made

          3  that involvement possible.

          4                 Just construction noise, we recently

          5  reached an agreement with a major construction

          6  company doing construction directly opposite an

          7  elementary school in my district.

          8                 We reached an agreement to protect or

          9  to assure the integrity of the educational process

         10  by coming up with different construction plans,

         11  hydraulic drills, acoustical blankets, et cetera, to

         12  limit the decibel level within the school from the

         13  construction site during school hours to something

         14  close to 50 decibels.

         15                 My question to you is, with

         16  construction, why can't we take that agreement as a

         17  precedent and instead of having a best management

         18  practices subject to regulations to be issued, have

         19  a more specific standard, a more target goal, that

         20  specifies a decibel limit, especially within

         21  sensitive facilities, schools, hospitals, and maybe

         22  over extended times within residence, and then allow

         23  for that level to be waived in cases of urgency or

         24  exigency or where meeting that level is not

         25  practical?
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          2                 Would there be any problem, do you

          3  think, Commissioner, with amending the code to set

          4  forth that type of internal decibel level within

          5  schools and sensitive facilities, hospitals, as I've

          6  said, and then allowing, again, for a process of

          7  waiver in those cases where that level is not

          8  practical, so we have, the industry and the public

          9  has a target goal to work around?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I could,

         11  Commissioner, I just want sort of the first pass at

         12  this before you give your answer.

         13                 I think one of the things that's been

         14  worked out recently with respect to the creation of

         15  an advisory committee that would bring together all,

         16  you know, relevant stakeholders in the rule-making

         17  process, and the Commissioner, on the record, even

         18  indicated that the Council itself could participate

         19  as part of that committee, I think, you know, goes a

         20  long way towards giving everyone a voice in the

         21  rule-making process, in the formation of the

         22  rule-making process, when ordinarily we would have

         23  our opportunity to be involved only after the rules

         24  were drafted and we would be able to participate

         25  only in the CAPA process, and this would be sort of
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          2  pre-CAPA involvement of the Council and other

          3  stakeholders that I think could get to these issues.

          4                 Commissioner, please.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I think I'll just

          6  echo what you said. Obviously there have been over

          7  the, really it's years now that there's been

          8  discussion of trying to write a better bill, a lot

          9  of discussion on how to balance the different

         10  activities that go on. And I think that in the

         11  course of discussions and in the rule-making,

         12  everyone will be willing to look at models that had

         13  worked elsewhere and consider anything reasonable.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, we've

         15  all been through situations where we've been

         16  promised rule-making, and not necessarily with your

         17  agency, or certainly with your office, but there's a

         18  difference between rule-making to happen in the

         19  future, and standards to be legislated in the

         20  current, and something as important as this where

         21  the technology information exists seems to me we

         22  might want to at least consider as we have these

         23  discussions having a standard, and then allowing the

         24  rule-making process to develop procedures for

         25  waiving the standard where the standard is not
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          2  practical.

          3                 Something to consider. I promised one

          4  question in a few selected areas, so I want to keep

          5  to that promise, so evening hour construction

          6  permits. My question to you, in cases of

          7  non-emergency, and I know from my district many of

          8  these construction projects for which their request

          9  for evening or weekend permits are planned months in

         10  advance, if not longer, is there any reason why in a

         11  non-emergency situation we cannot incorporate in the

         12  process notification to the community board and a

         13  20- or 30-day period for the community board to

         14  comment before, or the Council member to comment

         15  before a weekend or evening permit is issued in

         16  their districts?

         17                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, these

         18  permits are generally issued by DOB and DOT, and I

         19  think we'd have to get back to you in terms of how

         20  that would be how they would respond to that

         21  suggestion.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: All right.

         23  Because we are in this code considering standards

         24  for after hour permits, so I would ask that we

         25  consult with those agencies on this.
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          2                 Two more. Circulation devices, and I

          3  appreciate the attention to closing the cumulative

          4  loophole. I understand there was a change between

          5  the last version the Administration presented and

          6  the current version. Correct me if I'm wrong,

          7  because, again, I just received the current version,

          8  so I'm hearing this secondhand. But I understand

          9  that the previous version set forth a standard for

         10  the entire building, that the current version sets

         11  forth a cumulative standard only for particular

         12  tenants within the building. So, you could still,

         13  under your current proposal have a situation wherein

         14  a building as a whole could exceed your standard if

         15  each tenant, and my question to you is, recognizing

         16  the legal complexity in some cases of a leasehold,

         17  but also recognizing a landlord's basic

         18  responsibility to oversee noise conduct of the

         19  landlord's tenants, why deviate from the original

         20  version? Why not keep a building-wide standard, and

         21  then, again, allow exceptions or a phase-in in those

         22  cases where a prior existing lease does not

         23  effectively allow the landlord to enforce the

         24  standard, rather than concede and do away with the

         25  building-wide standard all together?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We just felt in

          3  our discussions that this was a much more effective

          4  way to do it, that in adding a layer between DEP and

          5  the people who owned and operated the equipment,

          6  that that would make finding solutions more

          7  difficult and tie things up in numerous legal

          8  questions having to do with landlord/tenant law and

          9  that this was a more effective way to go.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Again,

         11  something to be considered.

         12                 Two more. Nightclubs. I guess I don't

         13  understand why we're concerned about plainly audible

         14  on the sidewalk, but not within residence, within

         15  units where people live. You testified, and you're

         16  correct, and I congratulate you on your approach,

         17  that a plainly audible standard is a lot more

         18  enforceable than a decibel measurement standard.

         19  But, yet, when it comes to amplification noise, you

         20  require the more difficult measure of enforcement

         21  for inside of residents, and allow plainly audible

         22  on the sidewalk.

         23                 I mean, I, quite frankly, most of my

         24  community doesn't care all that much about what is

         25  plainly audible on the sidewalk or on the street.
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          2  They do care about what is audible within their

          3  bedrooms and within their livingrooms, so why cannot

          4  we --

          5                 (Applause.)

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Excuse me. As I

          7  stated at the outset, I really can't have any

          8  interruption at all. We just have to maintain that

          9  standard because if we allow applause, then we have

         10  to allow hooting and hollering, and we're just not

         11  going there, okay? So, please stay silent. Thank

         12  you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Why can't we

         14  have, especially now that the technology exists for

         15  what are called "sound limiter devices," which can

         16  be affixed to amplification equipment, why cannot we

         17  require establishments using commercial noise, I

         18  mean using amplified sound for commercial purposes,

         19  to use sound limiteds or other devices, to prevent

         20  noise from going into residential units in a way

         21  that's plainly audible, and we can deal with the

         22  public sidewalks or streets in one way or the other,

         23  but would you be open to considering ways of

         24  assuring the sound treatment to prevent noise that

         25  you're preventing on the sidewalk from being heard
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          2  within residence?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I think the

          4  intent of what we have drafted for inside residences

          5  is actually meant to be much more calibrated than

          6  plainly audible, and record things that might not be

          7  as easily picked up out on the street where there's

          8  so much more ambient noise level.

          9                 So, we think it's really an

         10  improvement over what's --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Let me just

         12  interject. If that is the case, then why can't we

         13  have it either/or? Keep that but then also allow the

         14  standard of audibility within residence, and if it

         15  fails under one or the other -- again, it seems to

         16  be we should be focusing on the conditions where

         17  people live primarily.

         18                 Could we at least discuss that a

         19  little bit more?

         20                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, I would

         21  certainly be happy to discuss it with staff.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: My very last

         23  question, Mr. Chair.

         24                 I'm just a little disappointed that

         25  on your otherwise very comprehensive chart where you
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          2  identify major noise sources, you did not include

          3  motorcycles. And I know you did cover it --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's because I

          5  knew you were going to do it. I didn't want to take

          6  your thunder on that one.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Oh. I was

          8  going to rev up and drive over here, Mr. Chair. It

          9  was a little too cold today, but you and I will do

         10  it.

         11                 I just want to ask you, the police

         12  have testified that they have problems, and I

         13  understand these problems, I don't dispute them at

         14  all, I want to make that clear to Ms. Petito who is

         15  here, but for the obvious reasons, they have

         16  problems chasing motorcycles on public thoroughfares

         17  for safety problems. So, the issue is getting at

         18  motorcycles that are parked or that are stationary,

         19  either as they rev up or before they rev, and except

         20  for when you have labor-intensive checkpoints, which

         21  we know are not practical to do, you know, beyond a

         22  certain point. You have an audibility distance

         23  standard; could we compliment that, or supplement

         24  that with standards that get at the source, either

         25  by proscribing what is called exhibitionist conduct,
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          2  such as stationary revving or other pieces of

          3  conduct which can be observed, and then you could

          4  track down the perpetrator, you know, later when

          5  they're not moving? Or identifying the sources, you

          6  know, the types of straightpipes, the motorcycle

          7  engines and bafflers, I mean the racing engines and

          8  bafflers that plainly create this noise, and

          9  authorizing police officers, (a) to inspect parked

         10  motorcycles to see if they have such equipment, and

         11  then (b) for cases of repeat offenders, to impound

         12  the motorcycles? Is there something we could do

         13  along those lines?

         14                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, Ms. Kelpin

         15  is telling me --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I can't hear

         17  you.

         18                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Sorry. Is telling

         19  me that she thinks that the Vehicle Traffic Law may

         20  be the more appropriate way to do this.

         21                 I'm very intrigued by the idea of an

         22  exhibitionist provision.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: That's a state

         24  of art. It's not what we think it is initially.

         25                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes, I know.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I learned

          3  that.

          4                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I think as with

          5  everything else, you know, these things have been

          6  discussed. I'm happy to discuss with the staff

          7  whether we've missed something that would help us be

          8  more effective.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: There may be a

         10  loophole in the VTL, State Vehicle and Traffic Law,

         11  with respect to motorcycles, in that their

         12  proscriptions, the way it's worded, are applied to

         13  installation or operation. So, if you read it

         14  literally, and I think police officers have been

         15  reluctant for this reason, to get at parked cycles.

         16  If you read it literally, a parked cycle that is not

         17  in operation, even if it has an engine or soundpipe

         18  that if operated would generate the noise, is not

         19  necessarily in violation.

         20                 I think it would be helpful to police

         21  officers to clarify the code to give them that

         22  authority. And if it's redundant, then this sends a

         23  message we want the enforcement, but it clearly

         24  closes any loophole, along with a loophole of

         25  motorcycles traveling in packs to where you can't
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          2  identify the single motorcycle that's creating the

          3  noise, but when they travel all together as a group

          4  they're creating the boom and the zoom that clearly

          5  is disruptive.

          6                 And we're talking about travel in

          7  residential areas. If they want to do it on race

          8  tracks or in the country setting, that's wonderful,

          9  but not where people live.

         10                 Could we talk about that a little bit

         11  more?

         12                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, the nature

         13  of this bill is one that goes to performance, to

         14  what you can hear or measure, and I think if we open

         15  the door to handing out tickets, if you happen to

         16  own something that might make a lot of noise --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Not might but

         18  will. As soon as you turn on the key.

         19                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Right. I think

         20  that is going to complicate things considerably, but

         21  we will certainly take that under advisement.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'm

         23  concluding. On that issue, I would urge you to

         24  rethink that, because otherwise the effectiveness of

         25  enforcement against motorcycles is going to be very,
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          2  very, very limited, if not impossible, and from our

          3  experience and from what police officers on the beat

          4  tell us in conversations.

          5                 So, I look forward to continuing to

          6  discuss these issues and others, Mr. Chair.

          7                 I just hope before we go to any vote

          8  there will be ample time to consider all of these

          9  issues, including the issue of setting a time frame

         10  date certain by when some of the studies you call

         11  for in the report, like airplane studies, must be

         12  due. Currently you call for studies but you don't

         13  give a time certain by when they must be concluded.

         14  So, that's something also to talk about.

         15                 Thank you very, very, very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         17  Council Member Gerson.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I correct my

         19  remarks. I'm told you just added a time frame,

         20  again, because I was not privy to that, I'm glad to

         21  see that improvement. That's one thing we could take

         22  off our list to discuss, but we have plenty else.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you, Council Member Gerson.
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          2                 Council Member Koppell.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you

          4  very much, Mr. Chairman.

          5                 I'm a little bit confused and

          6  troubled and I'm not the greatest expert on this, so

          7  in your definitional section you have an

          8  unreasonable noise standard which relates to a

          9  particular decibel level, and it seems to me that

         10  especially given the improvements in technology,

         11  having a specified decibel level is preferable,

         12  although it might be that you would want, as I think

         13  Councilman Gerson was suggesting an alternative,

         14  that you could have two alternatives, a specified

         15  decibel level or plainly audible sound, because the

         16  plainly audible sound definition, which is on, it's

         17  paragraph 45, that's very subjective, in my view,

         18  very subjective. If you read it, it's more

         19  subjective, because it doesn't say you have to

         20  comprehensible musical rhythms. Well, for some

         21  people something might be a comprehensible rhythm

         22  that for another person would not be a

         23  comprehensible rhythm. I think it's a very vague

         24  standard, and maybe you'd want to have that

         25  standard. But I think that given the fact that
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          2  unreasonable noise has a specific decibel level

          3  standard, we should consider having a specific

          4  decibel level standard with respect to all of these

          5  requirements.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: It is the

          7  unreasonable where the decibel standard always can

          8  apply. So, it's always there as an alternative.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Even for any

         10  kind of noise?

         11                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I believe so.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, that's

         13  good to know.

         14                 The other thing is, on motorcycles, I

         15  am troubled, as I believe my other colleague

         16  Councilman Gerson is, by something that maybe the

         17  Vehicle and Traffic Law provision, maybe the Vehicle

         18  and Traffic Law provision, which is made reference

         19  to here as Section 386 of the Vehicle and Traffic

         20  Law, applies to motor vehicles, I don't know if that

         21  covers motorcycles or not, but to have the only

         22  provision on motorcycles, a sound that is plainly

         23  audible to another individual at a distance of 200

         24  feet, seems to me to be, if that's all that applies

         25  to motorcycles, that's, in my view, completely
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          2  inadequate.

          3                 Because we heard testimony at the

          4  hearings that we had on motorcycle noise, about

          5  people who live in an apartment house or a building

          6  adjacent to the street, and then the people are

          7  revving up the motorcycles in front of their

          8  apartment, or driving on certain streets. We heard

          9  about certain streets, and there are certain streets

         10  in my district where the motorcycles drive by. Well,

         11  now what's the police officer going to do when faced

         12  with that? He can't go into the house of the person

         13  complaining and listen to the noise because that's

         14  not 200 feet away. So, he not only has to respond to

         15  the noise complaint, but now he has to go to the

         16  house and then go 200 feet away, by that time of

         17  course the motorcycle is long gone, to see whether

         18  he can hear the noise 200 feet away.

         19                 Again, it seems to me a decibel

         20  standard, plus as Mr. Gerson also suggested, some

         21  limitation on the type of devices that are attached

         22  or not attached, so there's no muffler or something

         23  of that sort, that that has to be there to deal with

         24  motorcycles, which at least in my district up in the

         25  North Bronx is probably the single most vexing
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          2  source of noise that we have.

          3                 So, this motorcycle standard is very

          4  troublesome to me, unless you can tell me that it's

          5  complimented somewhere else.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: It is

          7  complimented by the unreasonable noise. If the

          8  police officer is close to the vehicle, then they

          9  can deal with it with the unreasonable noise. The

         10  plainly audible --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So that

         12  unreasonable noise standard applies to the

         13  motorcycles? Is that what you're saying?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Susan

         15  Petito.

         16                 Yes, unreasonable noise is a general

         17  standard. It includes, but is not limited to several

         18  decibel levels as outlined in the various provisions

         19  of the Noise Code.  But unreasonable noise in any

         20  situation is still a violation. What the code

         21  revision does is add additional tools that can be

         22  tailored to situations as they emerge; for example,

         23  plainly audible, it's a new concept, but it doesn't

         24  necessarily replace unreasonable noise or decibel

         25  levels. It's just an additional tool that may be

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  more properly used in various other situations.

          3                 So, in the situation you described

          4  where the motorcycle noise is rattling people's

          5  windows, the police officer can respond to that

          6  situation, get that description, understand it,

          7  identify the motorcycle, and issue a summons based

          8  on unreasonable noise, without needing to establish

          9  decibel level or distance.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I must

         11  say that I'm a little bit troubled because it's only

         12  after 10:00 p.m.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: No.

         14  Unreasonable noise can be at any time of day or

         15  night. Unreasonable noise is its own standard. But

         16  then there are various illustrations of what

         17  unreasonable noise can be. Because if you notice,

         18  everywhere unreasonable noise appears, it's followed

         19  by an "including but not limited to," and then it

         20  would set forth, you know, distances or decibel

         21  levels, but we retain the ability to charge plain

         22  out unreasonable noise, and then use more literal

         23  descriptions rather than distance or decibel level

         24  to support that finding, that in that circumstance

         25  that noise was unreasonable.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, take a

          3  look at this section 24-218, which talks about the

          4  general prohibitions where unreasonable noise is

          5  defined.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Right.

          7  It reads paragraph A, "No person shall, may,

          8  continue or cause to permit to be made or continued

          9  any unreasonable noise."

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: And

         12  then paragraph B says, "Unreasonable noise shall

         13  include but not be limited to sound attributable to

         14  any device that exceeds the following noise levels."

         15                 In other words, it is written in such

         16  a way as to give concrete examples of what

         17  unreasonable noise is, either by decibel level or by

         18  distance, but in no way does it eliminate the

         19  general --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Oh, okay. So,

         21  what if someone calls up and complains about loud

         22  motorcycle noise at 9:00 in the evening, and says

         23  that's unreasonable. How does an enforcement officer

         24  deal with that? It's before 10:00 so this standard

         25  of seven, I don't know, is that decibels? I don't
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          2  want to state it wrong, but there's a standard here,

          3  I take it these are reasonable standards. I'm not

          4  quarreling with them, I don't know enough to do

          5  that.

          6                 But it says here "Sound other than

          7  impulsive sound attributable that soars much at a

          8  level of 7 dBA or more above the ambient sound level

          9  at or after 10:00 p.m. and before 7:00 a.m."

         10                 So, now what happens if the noise,

         11  very loud motorcycle noise is at 9:00 p.m.; where is

         12  that covered?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: It's

         14  covered by unreasonable noise. Paragraph A.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, how do

         16  you measure whether it's unreasonable or not?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: What

         18  you do is you describe the circumstances. It depends

         19  on a lot of facts.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, but after

         21  10:00 p.m. you've got a standard. Do you have a

         22  standard before 10:00 p.m.? That's what I'm asking

         23  you. There's a clear standard here. At least it

         24  seems like a clear standard here.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:
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          2  There's a standard written in paragraph two, after

          3  7:00 a.m. and before 10:00 p.m., so that covers the

          4  rest of the 24-hour day.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Where is

          6  that? Right below where you're reading. It's

          7  paragraph two.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: It's a

          9  10 decibel, rather than a 7 decibel measurement.

         10  That covers the --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay. Well,

         12  I'm told that it's covered, but it doesn't say it in

         13  my draft anyway, because it all talks about after

         14  10:00 p.m.

         15                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm sorry,

         16  Section 2. This is 24-218, Section 2 or paragraph

         17  two.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay. Well,

         19  my draft is mixed up here a little bit. My

         20  pagination, something is wrong.

         21                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Sound other than

         22  impulsive sound attributable to the source measured

         23  at a level of 10 decibel A, or more above the

         24  ambient sound level at or after 9:00 a.m. and before

         25  10:00 p.m. So there's a daytime standard and --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I see that.

          3  My page was mixed up. I see that now. Thank you.

          4  That's helpful. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you, Council Member Koppell.

          7                 Council Member Vallone.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chair.

         10                 Thank you all, for all the work

         11  you've done on this. My concern is that this bill,

         12  apparently the last revised version was given to us

         13  last night, potentially even this morning, and I

         14  know what happens when bills are given at the end of

         15  the term. The idea is to get them voted out by the

         16  end of the term, which would be our last meeting,

         17  December 21st, which is less than seven days away,

         18  which for all intents and purposes means there's no

         19  more chance to do any amendments on this bill.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's not true.

         21                 In my opening statement I indicated

         22  that we're more than happy to revisit any aspect of

         23  the bill that needed to be revisited, and I will

         24  hold to that standard, and if that means that

         25  something gets changed before you vote it out on the
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          2  21st, or if it means it doesn't get voted at all,

          3  then that's what it means.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I don't think

          5  what either of us said is not true. We can't make

          6  any amendments before the 21st, but you can revisit

          7  it after the 21st.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If we were to

          9  make changes between now and the 21st, how that

         10  happens like in a parliamentary -- in the procedure

         11  of doing that, we, I guess, we would need more than

         12  a simple majority to pass the bill, but these are

         13  details that we can talk about. But my general

         14  standard is that I have made no commitment to pass

         15  this bill out of Committee or even put it before the

         16  Committee for a vote, that's why this hearing is so

         17  important, because based on what we hear today, it

         18  will either be go, go with some sort of changes, or

         19  no go, and that has not been, that's a determination

         20  that has not been made by me yet until this hearing

         21  is over.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I have

         23  absolute faith in you, Mr. Chair, to do absolutely

         24  that. And if it wasn't for you, I might be even more

         25  concerned. I'm just stating what the actual law of
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          2  the City Council is.

          3                 And the reason I'm concerned is

          4  because there are so many issues here, like

          5  motorcycles that need more, perhaps more thought.

          6  But that being said, I know how hard the people at

          7  that table have worked on this, my chair, who have

          8  worked on this bill, and I applaud your efforts.

          9  We'll see if we can get it done.

         10                 It's a monumental task, and we will

         11  see. It's concerning, but, again, we have good

         12  people involved.

         13                 My quick question here is, I don't

         14  know if it's quick, but car alarms. I don't believe

         15  you testified about them. I read your testimony. As

         16  you know, City Council passed a bill which outlawed

         17  the sale of illegal car alarms, which sounds like a

         18  no-brainer, but it was actually vetoed, which I

         19  still don't understand.

         20                 So, that's why I'm a little bit

         21  concerned about what the goal is. I know there's a

         22  study involved in this bill apparently, and I'd like

         23  to hear a little bit more about that.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Car alarms

         25  currently are limited in terms of the duration that
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          2  they can sound, and the way in which they can be set

          3  off. I think that there is, our perception is that

          4  there is strong feeling, and that's corroborated by

          5  the Police Department, that car alarms have played a

          6  very important part by reducing car theft. And, so,

          7  it is not probably a good plan to do away with them

          8  all together.

          9                 However, when they malfunction and

         10  either are too sensitive or go on too long, then

         11  that is obviously a real problem for people in the

         12  neighborhood who are trying to sleep, since mostly

         13  they go off during the night. I suppose it's a

         14  problem any time of day, but more so at night.

         15                 So, one of the things that we propose

         16  to do is to do is to undertake a study and really

         17  look at the best research in this area to see if

         18  there are other kinds of alarms, are ways to make

         19  them effective in drawing attention at the moment

         20  when something, when a car is being broken into, but

         21  makes them less intrusive or for a lesser amount of

         22  time for the people living in the neighborhood.

         23                 Again, this is a question where what

         24  is needed is balance, and we felt at this point we

         25  didn't really have a proposal that brought all of
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          2  the competing needs here into balance and we would

          3  like the opportunity to do that, because we know

          4  it's a significant concern for people in terms of

          5  the noise in their community.

          6                 We also know that it is an important

          7  device that helps reduce car theft in the City.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I was present

          9  at the hearings and Ray Kelly absolutely said that,

         10  whose opinion I respect, a lot of people don't

         11  believe that, and that is a topic for another day,

         12  whether or not they're effective any longer in

         13  deterring crime.

         14                 But the biggest problem we have is,

         15  as you said, either the malfunctioning ones, but

         16  more likely just the illegal ones which go off by

         17  vibration. That is illegal. People don't realize

         18  that. They can only go off with contact, or with the

         19  door opening, or something like that. And the ones

         20  that go off when motorcycles go by are all illegal.

         21  We banned their sale here, but they still are for

         22  sale everywhere else and that's the problem. We need

         23  some enforcement on that end, and you go a long way

         24  to solving that problem right now with the laws we

         25  have. I'd like to work with you on that actually. Do
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          2  you have any plans with a study to undertake

          3  something like that?

          4                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: What the

          5  Department has been looking at is having teams of

          6  people who would go -- we know, obviously, through

          7  3-1-1, where complaints come from, and there

          8  certainly are patterns in neighborhoods where one

          9  particular kind of noise or another is a particular

         10  problem, so what we would like to do is to have

         11  groups that would go out of our staff and go through

         12  a neighborhood and try to do intensive enforcement

         13  for a period of time.

         14                 We also think that many alarms have,

         15  can be set and reset, from the legal to the illegal

         16  standard, and that if people receive summonses and

         17  also receive information about how to reset them to

         18  be at the legal standard, that there will be an

         19  opportunity for people to fix the problem

         20  themselves, and that we will then be able. Because

         21  at night I think both the police and we find within

         22  a neighborhood, not necessarily on a particular

         23  block, but within a neighborhood you get repeats in

         24  terms of people parking, because mostly the people

         25  live there and they park in the neighborhood. We are
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          2  then able, if we have people working intensively in

          3  a particular area, to check those vehicles and see

          4  if just normal street noise is setting them off. So,

          5  we feel that we can do more effective enforcement

          6  even while we're doing this study.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Well, I'm

          8  happy to hear that, and perhaps we will be

          9  revisiting the entire car alarm situation on a

         10  different day in a future term.

         11                 Again, I'm sure I have a thousand

         12  other questions, but I just received this so I'm

         13  going to have the utmost faith in my Chair, which I

         14  do, and the people at that table to come up with

         15  something which is a compromise and will perhaps

         16  make everyone a little bit angry, but nobody

         17  completely angry so that we can fix the situation

         18  that exists here in the City. Thank you.

         19                 Thank you, Council Member Vallone.

         20                 Before I recognize Council Member

         21  Brewer for a very, very quick follow-up question, I

         22  would just like to reinforce what Council Member

         23  Vallone was saying with regard to using laws that we

         24  have now to enforcing illegal car alarms. It is

         25  probably not the case that a patrol car, or even one
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          2  of our impact police that are walking in the

          3  streets, if they hear a clap of thunder or a truck

          4  rumble by, and five or six car alarms go off without

          5  any impact, I just don't think it's the case that

          6  anyone is ever, ever, ever given a violation a

          7  violation for that, you know, notwithstanding the

          8  fact that it is not legal to have a car alarm that

          9  does that. And as Peter mentioned, we took the step

         10  last year of banning the sale of those kinds of car

         11  alarms in New York City in our quest to have a

         12  quieter city. It seems that that is sort of the

         13  ultimate low-hanging fruit out there. If there is a

         14  police officer that observes by a truck rumbling by

         15  or a clap of thunder that a person's car alarm goes

         16  out with any contact to it, that person should be

         17  given a summons. And I don't think that happens.

         18                 I'd like to ask Susan Petito whether

         19  or not that ever, ever, ever happens?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Mr.

         21  Chairman, I don't know if it ever happens.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: There you have

         23  it. There you have it.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: We

         25  don't capture that as a separate violation for

                                                            74

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  counting ECB summonses. And I can also say that

          3  depending on circumstances, certainly it could be

          4  issued, but I don't have data to tell you whether or

          5  not or with what frequency it's issued.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Peter is

          7  absolutely right. We already have a noise law in

          8  effect that prohibits that kind of nonsense, and I

          9  don't think anything is being done about that. And

         10  that really, really is a shame. And, so, we would

         11  urge, in the strongest possible terms, why don't we

         12  have an oversight hearing on this, on that very

         13  issue.  In the very near future I would like to

         14  direct staff to put together such a hearing, because

         15  I want to see how many illegal car alarms are being

         16  enforced against, okay?

         17                 And with that said, I would like to

         18  recognize Council Member Brewer for a very, very

         19  quick question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you. I

         21  appreciate that, Mr. Chairman. This is a question on

         22  enforcement again.

         23                 If, as you suggest correctly, and

         24  your staff is wonderful at DEP at showing up during

         25  the day to do what's necessary, even currently, but
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          2  if at night there's an issue, the Police Department

          3  will be trained, and will look at the audible

          4  situation, but they will not have any need for

          5  decibel readers, because part of carters, for

          6  instance, there are other mechanisms, as I

          7  understand it, for enforcement, and not just

          8  audible. So, I don't understand how you could do

          9  that without some kind of mechanism.

         10                 I'm just confused. It's my loss.

         11                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We are planning

         12  to have staff available during evening hours to do

         13  the carters and other things at night.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So you'll have

         15  more staff? You will be hiring more staff?

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We will

         17  restructure so that some are available at night.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. So,

         19  that's how the enforcement will be done.

         20                 All right. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I

         21  think this needs more discussion, but it's an

         22  answer. Thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Could I ask a

         24  follow-up on that?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Very quickly,
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          2  because we have many people who are waiting

          3  patiently to testify and we really have to move

          4  along.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Are you

          6  saying the police are going to be removed from

          7  enforcement?

          8                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: No. The police

          9  have the authority to enforce any of these

         10  provisions that they choose to enforce. There are

         11  some that we do not enforce, I would say densely

         12  now. For example, many things at night, we will have

         13  period of time for we put staff out at night to do a

         14  particular intensive enforcement effort, but

         15  frequently we don't have much staff available at

         16  night.

         17                 Under when these rules go into

         18  effect, we plan to restructure how the staff is

         19  organized so that we have more people available at

         20  night.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Did you say

         22  in answer to Council Member Brewer that the police

         23  will not have meters anymore?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: No,

         25  the Police Department is not going to give up its
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          2  meters. The Police Department is just having more

          3  tools available to it by virtue of this code. There

          4  is no intention to stop enforcing with all of the

          5  tools that we had, including with meters.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay. Well,

          7  we were confused about that. I'm glad to hear that.

          8  I know both Council Member Brewer and I both

          9  misunderstood on that.

         10                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I apologize if I

         11  misspoke.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: And it

         13  was just the question that we don't necessarily need

         14  it in certain circumstances, but we will continue to

         15  have sound meters.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         17  Council Member Koppell. Just before I get to my

         18  final question, and I'd like to direct my chief of

         19  staff to make a note of this, I really need to know

         20  before we act on this bill what is going on with

         21  respect to the Police Department enforcement of

         22  illegal car alarms.

         23                 If you don't have separate data on

         24  that or whatever, I need to know what the policy is

         25  in the, whether it's the patrol guide or whatever it
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          2  is that, you know, what is the disposition of the

          3  police at the precinct level to observing and being

          4  aware of the fact that they're able to give

          5  summonses for illegal car alarms, and whether or not

          6  that ever happens. There has got to be a way to pull

          7  that together, and I need that.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Mr.

          9  Chairman, we will try to get that for you.

         10                 In my view, it is much more likely

         11  that we will happen upon a situation, not happen

         12  upon a situation as much as be called to a situation

         13  where the car alarm is already going off, which is

         14  different from the situation that you described

         15  before, and in that case we do take action, issue

         16  summonses, but I just can't speak to the other

         17  circumstance that you were talking about.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think it's

         19  appropriate if a police officer that observes

         20  illegal activity, for which he or she can write a

         21  summons, then should do so or at least know that

         22  they're allowed to do so, and I just have no

         23  confidence whatsoever that if -- if I ran into the

         24  first ten police officers driving around in unit

         25  patrol cars or walking a beat or whatever and
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          2  indicated to them that -- if I ask the ten officers,

          3  for the first ten officers I see, and I ask every

          4  single one of them whether or not they had ever

          5  given out a car, a summons for an illegal car alarm

          6  and what constitutes an illegal car alarm with the

          7  whole vibration versus impact or whatever, I would

          8  venture to say that none would know, would have the

          9  vaguest idea what I was talking about. That's what I

         10  think, and I think that's a big problem.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Mr.

         12  Chairman, I would disagree with you on that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good. I hope I'm

         14  wrong.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

         16  Officers are trained on this. I think it's a

         17  question of priorities at that particular time. If

         18  police officers are driving by a location and that

         19  happens, they might actually be responding to

         20  another kind of job and --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I'm wrong,

         22  I'm willing to be proven wrong, but, you know, I

         23  need something out of the Police Department to show

         24  me that I'm wrong, some sense that this is something

         25  that needs to be enforced against, and I think it's
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          2  wrong. This is one sort of gaping hole in the

          3  Administration's very noble quest to make a quieter

          4  city, that we have this big gaping hole out there in

          5  the Administration's sensitivity to an easily

          6  correctable situation. These people, once they get a

          7  ticket, will endeavor presumably to have their

          8  alarms, you know, calibrated to the so-called, you

          9  know, legal setting, and then we would all have a

         10  much quieter City. So, why don't we leave it at

         11  that, but I need that. I need something from the

         12  Police Department that tells me what is going on

         13  right now with respect to enforcing against this

         14  very important quality of life issue, okay? I don't

         15  want to belabor it, I just want to keep going.

         16                 COMMISSIONER VALLONE: Mr. Chair?

         17                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Before we close

         18  -- go ahead. After Councilman Vallone.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I just would

         20  like to say as Chair of Public Safety, I think you

         21  have a great idea, maybe next term we do have

         22  another hearing on that topic specifically.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Here here. Okay,

         24  thank you.

         25                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Mr. Chairman?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Before you close,

          4  I would just like to make one last statement, but

          5  not until you're ready to close. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, fine. Fine.

          7  One last question. This is my last, and the last

          8  from the counsel here.

          9                 In the bill there are specific

         10  standards applicable to refuse collection vehicles;

         11  can you please describe these in a little more

         12  detail and how you derived these standards?

         13                 You've got to put the thing on.

         14                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm going to ask

         15  Ms. Kelpin to address this.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         17                 MS. KELPIN: In Section 225-A, there's

         18  a section that we carried over from the existing

         19  Noise Code that relates directly to the compacting

         20  unit on those types of vehicles.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Could you just

         22  speak a little louder, please.

         23                 MS. KELPIN: It's against my

         24  principles, I'm sorry.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.
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          2                 MS. KELPIN: It's a problem. I'm

          3  sorry.

          4                 225-A relates to compacting vehicles

          5  specifically. It's a standard that was in the

          6  existing code, we've carried it over. It relates to

          7  really the vice itself, the compactor unit in these

          8  trucks that prior to their actually compacting

          9  should be at a certain level. That's a carryover.

         10  We, for enforcement purposes, when we come up close

         11  to a truck, very often they stop their activity so

         12  it's difficult to observe. So, what we did was we

         13  changed, we moved the distance further away, so my

         14  inspector is not as visible, and we adjusted the

         15  standard to take into account the change in

         16  distance. So, that's just a modification of the

         17  existing.

         18                 The second part that's captured in

         19  225-A is a new section. It was a combination of

         20  factors that exist in legislation elsewhere

         21  concerning setting a time period and a sound level

         22  for collection of refuse or recyclables, and based

         23  on our complaints are problems are overnight

         24  essentially, 2:00 to 4:00 a.m. collection. So, what

         25  we tried to do was say between 11:00 p.m. to 7:00
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          2  a.m., that the sound from the combination of the

          3  vehicle and its collection could not exceed 85

          4  decibels measured at 35 feet from the truck.

          5                 We had done some testing on vehicles

          6  that are compacting. We don't -- there's no standard

          7  that we're aware of that is, you know, available for

          8  that combined activity. We decided that using what

          9  the trucks are essentially making was a way to start

         10  a measurement. The distance, again, deals with not

         11  being observed, and the other piece that we put in

         12  is within residential area where people would be

         13  sleeping during those hours most likely, and those

         14  are the elements that we put together for that.

         15                 We said we think that the industry

         16  can do better with time, so we have a second part

         17  that says in, I think we said three years, that 80

         18  would be a more acceptable number to be measuring on

         19  the street, and that's how we did it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Now, again, just

         21  to follow-up. Someone who is in the position of

         22  having to comply with that, if the truck didn't meet

         23  the standard, would it be to buy a new truck or

         24  retrofit the truck to make it quieter or to not

         25  collect during those hours? What's the pathway to
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          2  compliance?

          3                 MS. KELPIN: Well, in this particular

          4  situation there are several options. One would be to

          5  do some best management practices in their

          6  collection so that they did meet the 85.

          7                 The other is to redo their schedule

          8  so that they're not in the residential at that time,

          9  or to collect and not do the actual compacting

         10  activity right at the residential. So, it is not

         11  actually to force them to buy new equipment but to

         12  adjust.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you.

         14                 That concludes things from our end. I

         15  know the Commissioner has a statement, right?

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I just wanted to

         17  thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank the Council for

         18  hearing this bill.

         19                 As you know, it's 30 years that New

         20  York City has been trying to do something to

         21  mitigate noise in a very busy City, and this bill

         22  represents the best thinking of staff who have been

         23  trying to enforce these regulations, and trying to

         24  address the complaints they received for many, many

         25  years. And then, in addition, it reflects a great
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          2  deal of listening to people who operate businesses,

          3  carry out the instructions so that it is balanced in

          4  how it affects people. It gives some real relief to

          5  people who are concerned about the noise, but allows

          6  people to carry on their daily work in a way that

          7  they can do their business. And we are very eager to

          8  see it passed. We think it will enable us to be much

          9  more effective in addressing people's concerns, and

         10  we are really looking forward to getting going on it

         11  because the rule-making appropriately will take

         12  quite a bit of time.

         13                 So, I just wanted to thank you for

         14  giving it this attention at this time.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, I want to

         16  thank you, Commissioner. I want to thank my good

         17  friend Bob Avaltroni in a special way for all of his

         18  efforts on this and all of your great staff, and

         19  Jerry, who I've known for so many years. So, we

         20  appreciate the very intensive, you know, late nights

         21  that have been going on for the last few weeks to

         22  bring us to this day. Of course, the story of this

         23  hearing will be written most by the people who

         24  follow your panel, and we shall see how it goes. But

         25  we have made such great strides over the last few
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          2  weeks, and we're heartened by this great, by this

          3  great move forward on this important, very, very

          4  important issue, and without the hard work of Bob

          5  and Jerry and yourself and all of your staff, we

          6  wouldn't be here today, so you know, thank you for

          7  the late nights at a time of year when people are

          8  starting to have other things on their mind. Thank

          9  you all very much, and we'll be talking in the days

         10  to follow. Thank you. Thank you, Commissioner.

         11                 Our next witness is James Conway, who

         12  represents the Mister Softee Company.

         13                 Mr. Conway, a pleasure to have you.

         14  We'll have Donna Decostanzo give you the oath, and

         15  then you can proceed with your good testimony. It's

         16  a real pleasure to see you here today.

         17                 MR. CONWAY: Thank you.

         18                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         19  right hand.

         20                 In the testimony that you're about to

         21  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         22  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         23                 MR. CONWAY: I do.

         24                 (Witness sworn.)

         25                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thanks.
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          2                 MR. CONWAY: I would like to begin by

          3  thanking the Committee on behalf of the New York

          4  franchisees of Mister Softee for all the wonderful

          5  work that you've done, particularly Mr. Gennaro and

          6  his staff, and Ms. DeCostanzo. Their help in

          7  reaching a solution that works for all of us has

          8  been invaluable.

          9                 I think we also want to give some

         10  credit to the Mayor's Office and the members of the

         11  DEP staff. Initially the proposal that was put forth

         12  would have had a significant impact on many working

         13  class families and they were good enough to

         14  understand the impact that this would have had, and

         15  I think willing to compromise with us in reaching a

         16  solution.

         17                 To me, it's a great example of

         18  democracy in action, and we got a number of people

         19  with diverse interests, yet we were able to reach

         20  some common ground. And I can see from the t-shirts

         21  there's probably some more ground to be reached, but

         22  it's certainly been an instructive lesson, one that

         23  I've come to appreciate the challenges that the

         24  people of New York have.  Coming from a small town,

         25  I don't see this as much.
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          2                 But we are looking forward to 2006,

          3  where Mister Softee will be celebrating its 50th

          4  anniversary in New York, and hope we'll be able to

          5  do so in a quieter and better fashion and look

          6  forward to many more years to come.

          7                 So, thank you very much. I appreciate

          8  this opportunity.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Conway, I

         10  wish to thank you.

         11                 Council Member Gerson.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Just a

         13  pre-anniversary congratulations, and an observation

         14  that with the same energy and effort, if we could

         15  solve the problem of Mister Softee, we should be

         16  able to solve all the other issues raised, and that

         17  will be raised by the witnesses upcoming. So, I look

         18  forward to that, and look forward to Mister Softee.

         19                 MR. CONWAY: Thank you very much, and

         20  good luck.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And Mr. Conway,

         22  as I was saying, I want to thank you. You're an

         23  example of some of the many stakeholders that work

         24  with us to try to achieve a successful compromise,

         25  and we do, you know, very much appreciate your

                                                            89

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  personal involvement in this, and I'd like to follow

          3  up on what Alan was saying by wishing you many

          4  congratulations on 50 years in New York City, and I

          5  wish you warm weather and a very healthy and happy

          6  2006.

          7                 MR. CONWAY: Thank you very much, Mr.

          8  Chairman. We'll see you in the spring.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, Jim. You

         10  bet.

         11                 I just want to confirm the next

         12  witness. Arline Bronzaft.

         13                 Donna. Oh, pardon me. Arline, the

         14  Counsel of the Committee will put you under oath and

         15  then you can proceed.

         16                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         17  right hand.

         18                 In the testimony that you're about to

         19  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         20  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         21                 MS. BRONZAFT: I do.

         22                 (Witness sworn.)

         23                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         24                 MS. BRONZAFT: First of all, let me

         25  thank the Committee, particularly for the rush job
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          2  in this last week, and actually may I note that I

          3  was speaking to the Council's counsel as late as

          4  11:15 last night and changes are being made probably

          5  as we speak.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, that is not

          7  the case.

          8                 MS. BRONZAFT: No? No more changes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The bill that

         10  you have before you is the bill. If we decide to

         11  make changes --

         12                 MS. BRONZAFT: Do you have the time of

         13  -- what about the studies? The studies on the

         14  aircraft noise, on the burglar alarms.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Without getting

         16  into specifics, the procedural process, which I

         17  first broached a few moments ago with Council Member

         18  Vallone, would be that if there were any changes to

         19  the bill at this point, in order to pass the bill by

         20  the 21st that would require what's called a Message

         21  of Necessity from the Mayor, and it would require,

         22  rather than the simple majority vote of the Council,

         23  a two-thirds in the majority vote by the Council.

         24                 MS. BRONZAFT: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So,
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          2  hypothetically we could pass the bill as is, pass it

          3  with changes that would require this Message of

          4  Necessity and a two-thirds vote, or just decide not

          5  to pass the bill. These are sort of like the

          6  theoretical possibilities.

          7                 MS. BRONZAFT: The short time that I

          8  have had since yesterday to digest this bill does

          9  indicate to me that there are definitely certain

         10  areas, as Councilman Gerson raised earlier, in the

         11  area of construction, in the area of motorcycle,

         12  circulation devices and sanitation trucks that

         13  indeed have to be improved before the passage of the

         14  bill.

         15                 I am particularly concerned that the

         16  Advisory Committee, which included a wide range of

         17  individuals with pertaining to construction, and in

         18  light of the fact that schools are often affected by

         19  the noise, as Councilman Gerson brought up, I did

         20  not see in that Advisory Committee any

         21  representation of people who are affected by noise

         22  and would be complaining about the noise. I think

         23  those people should be part of any kind of advisory

         24  committee. They are very knowledgeable. The people

         25  who are affected by the noise really know how
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          2  disturbing the noises can be.

          3                 I also know that accompanying this

          4  document, there was really no analysis of 3-1-1

          5  complaints. I think that had this document looked at

          6  these complaints, they may have been able to write

          7  sections that would be more directly related to the

          8  complaints that individuals make, and I would urge

          9  that in some way that we look at the complaints and

         10  we actually survey citizens as to what bothers them.

         11                 If we indeed had done that, we would

         12  find that in the City of New York, in a survey that

         13  I would be releasing, in a study I would be

         14  releasing very shortly, people are very much

         15  affected by neighbor noises, and in no way does this

         16  code really address the issue of neighbor noises.

         17  And rather we leave this between the individual

         18  resident tenant, or the member of a building managed

         19  by a board, to deal with these noises.

         20                 I was wondering if we could have at

         21  least addressed the issue of neighbor noises by

         22  requiring landlords and managing agents to indeed

         23  enforce those portions of the lease that require the

         24  managing agents to provide their residents with the

         25  right to quiet.
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          2                 The purpose of the code basically is

          3  to lower the din of the City, but let me add that we

          4  cannot get rid of the vibrant sounds of the City. We

          5  are not restraining the children that shout at

          6  Macy's Day Parade, and definitely those who shout at

          7  Yankee Stadium. But we do want to lower the din

          8  particularly in the homes of people.

          9                 People in New York are very tolerant

         10  and very decent about the way they respect this

         11  City, and they're almost I think tolerant enough to

         12  say, we'll deal with the noises of the street. Those

         13  should be lowered. But it's in the homes that the

         14  people are not tolerant of noise. And that is really

         15  the purpose of this code, to lessen the din so that

         16  people can enjoy their homes with less intrusive

         17  noise.

         18                 In order to do that, this code has to

         19  have some means to evaluate the effectiveness of

         20  their sections. I see none of that happening here.

         21                 If the section of a code is not

         22  effective, then we should have a means, first of

         23  all, to determine its effectiveness, by surveying

         24  people, by looking at complaints, and secondly, by

         25  correcting it.
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          2                 We have waited over 30 years to try

          3  to change this code. I don't think we should be -- I

          4  don't think we should wait that long. I think there

          5  should be greater flexibility. If a section doesn't

          6  work, change it. And I don't see anything in this

          7  code that allows for this kind of flexibility and I

          8  urge that something like that be added, because we

          9  have to know if it really works. It's the law, but

         10  will it actually lessen the din. You don't know that

         11  unless you have measuring instruments to evaluate

         12  the effectiveness of a code. I urge you to do that.

         13                 The other thing that I would also

         14  like to see is some educational materials. I mean,

         15  people are not knowledgeable enough about the ways

         16  to lessen noises and they might do that on their own

         17  without law.

         18                 You know, people live in homes, they

         19  can lower their televisions, they can lower their

         20  radios, they can cover their floors. I think there

         21  has to be some educational materials accompanying

         22  the code so that we can have the citizens of this

         23  City maybe lessen the noises on their own. We used

         24  to have such things at DEP.

         25                 So, what I want to say in summary,
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          2  yes, I strongly support that we revise the code, but

          3  you put me in the position that I have found myself

          4  trying to accept something that's not as good as it

          5  could be. As an academic, I always aimed for A's in

          6  class. I didn't always get them, but I aimed for

          7  them. I wasn't really satisfied with a B minus or a

          8  C. And that's pretty much the position you've put me

          9  in now. I have to say yes to a B minus or a C.

         10                 On the other hand, the one thing I

         11  never took in school was an incomplete, which meant

         12  I have to leave my work for the next semester, and

         13  I'm very nervous about an incomplete because I can't

         14  trust that the new Council would have this on top of

         15  its agenda.

         16                 So, in summary, I'd like to say, of

         17  course, I support revisions, but I would really urge

         18  this body to work with the interested Councilpeople

         19  and the DEP representatives of trying to improve

         20  those sections that could be improved with some work

         21  and to try to establish a method of evaluating its

         22  effectiveness so that one year from today when we

         23  review the code, or whenever it's passed, and by the

         24  way, you've put in 2007 as the year for it to be

         25  passed, and this is still 2005, so I'm expecting you
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          2  to want to look at things a little further by

          3  putting in that late date.

          4                 I would hate a year after this code

          5  to be passed, to find that the 3-1-1 numbers have

          6  not gone down, that the people are still unhappy

          7  about the noise in the City.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'd like to ask

          9  you to summarize your testimony, please.

         10                 MS. BRONZAFT: And that's really what

         11  I'm saying. Revise. Do some adjustments in the next

         12  week, but provide the people with an evaluative tool

         13  to demonstrate that the code is really working to

         14  help them.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, I'd just

         16  like to say, first of all, thank you very much for

         17  coming, and for helping DEP and others as you did

         18  with this, by making your views known to everyone. I

         19  know that DEP people greatly appreciate your input,

         20  as do we.

         21                 With regard to the flexibility that

         22  you speak of, we do have the ability, of course,

         23  here to do oversight hearings on this or any other

         24  law, and to amend any law that exists, which we do

         25  all the time, and that's what this process is now,
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          2  it's like really an amendment to the Noise Code.

          3                 So, thank you very much. We also send

          4  our best wishes to your husband.

          5                 MS. BRONZAFT: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And wish him a

          7  very speedy recovery.

          8                 MS. BRONZAFT: Thank you very, very

          9  much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 MS. BRONZAFT: I appreciated that.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Very quickly,

         15  Councilman, because we have about 9,000 witnesses.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Is it your

         17  recommendation -- well, that's what happens when we

         18  do things when we're in a rush.

         19                 But Dr. Bronzaft, how long have you

         20  been involved with the noise abatement issues

         21  roughly?

         22                 MS. BRONZAFT: Over 30 years.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And it's your

         24  recommendation that we work into the code a specific

         25  provision to require say an annual report on the
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          2  effectiveness of the different provisions based on

          3  state-of-the-art evaluative techniques?

          4                 MS. BRONZAFT: Yes. I would agree to

          5  that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And just a

          7  final question. And that makes sense to me.

          8                 When did you receive a copy of the

          9  code on which we're having this hearing today?

         10                 MS. BRONZAFT: Yesterday.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         14  you. Thank you.

         15                 Robert Altman, Felice Farber and

         16  Marolyn Davenport.

         17                 Thank you. Thank you all so much for

         18  being here. And I greatly appreciated the

         19  opportunity to hear your views and to have you work

         20  with staff, as you have.

         21                 I will have Donna DeCostanzo

         22  administer the oath, and then you can proceed.

         23                 I guess we'll hear from Mr. Altman,

         24  Ms. Farber, and Ms. Davenport, in that order.

         25                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your
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          2  right hand.

          3                 In the testimony that you're about to

          4  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          5  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          6                 (Witnesses are sworn.)

          7                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          8                 MR. ALTMAN: Good morning.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Altman, it's

         10  a pleasure to see you.

         11                 MR. ALTMAN: I should say good

         12  afternoon at this point in time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         14                 MR. ALTMAN: My name is Robert Altman.

         15  I represent the Queens and Bronx Building

         16  Association and the Building Industry Association

         17  New York City. I testify today in support of Intro.

         18  397-A.

         19                 I would like to begin by thanking the

         20  staffs of the City Council, the Department of

         21  Environmental Protection, and Committee Chair James

         22  Gennaro.

         23                 Over the past week we have had open

         24  and unfettered access to discuss the legislation,

         25  and hopefully we have made constructive
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          2  recommendations.

          3                 While not every change was made, I

          4  can honestly say that every recommended change

          5  received due consideration. Our organizations

          6  appreciate the staff's diligence and hard work.

          7                 As you are aware, the two

          8  organizations now face certain limits on our

          9  builders that have previously not existed.

         10                 To prevent any inappropriate damage

         11  to the industry while improving the quality of life

         12  in the City, we look forward to working with the

         13  City to produce sound and fair regulations. In the

         14  end, it is our hope that the legislation and the

         15  regulations do not unduly constrain our members,

         16  while also improving the quality of life in the

         17  City.

         18                 Thank you for your consideration.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you, Mr. Altman.

         21                 And I guess everyone should just stay

         22  as a panel, and once everyone has read their

         23  statement, if I have questions or comments, I can

         24  pose them to you.

         25                 Ms. Farber.
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          2                 MS. FARBER: Thank you.

          3                 My name is Felice Farber. I speak

          4  today on behalf of the General Contractors'

          5  Association.

          6                 The GCA represents the heavy

          7  construction industry active in New York City. Our

          8  member contractors repair and build the City

          9  streets, highways, bridges, subway stations, sewers

         10  and other infrastructure.

         11                 We also represent the firms that

         12  construct the foundation for the office towers and

         13  apartment complexes built in New York City. We

         14  appreciate the openness of DEP's staff and the

         15  Council in listening to our concerns and really

         16  trying to find a balance between our issues and the

         17  concerns of reducing noise in the City. We

         18  appreciate the open dialogue.

         19                 We applaud the Council's and the

         20  Administration's efforts to address quality of life

         21  issues in New York City. The existing code is not

         22  perfect. The decibel level standard set forth in the

         23  current code are, in many instances, below ambient

         24  levels and impractical to comply with.

         25                 The current noise --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Ms. Farber, if I

          3  could just ask you to put the mike a little closer

          4  to you. Right. That would be great, because we're

          5  having difficulty picking up your voice on the

          6  recorder.

          7                 MS. FARBER: Okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          9                 MS. FARBER: The current noise

         10  standard of unreasonable noise when applied to

         11  construction can lead to no other conclusion that

         12  the noise level is unreasonable.

         13                 Nevertheless, construction is a

         14  necessity to allow for infrastructure development

         15  and repairs to move forward in a timely and

         16  cost-effective manner.

         17                 We believe the proposed changes to

         18  the Noise Code have potential benefits and are

         19  clearly intended to improve the quality of urban

         20  life for all of us. But we remain concerned that the

         21  changes leave terms that are ambiguous, open to

         22  multiple interpretations and subject to trust over

         23  the development of regulations.

         24                 We have shared our concerns with DEP,

         25  and we hope that through the rule-making process we
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          2  can work cooperatively on the development of the

          3  noise mitigations that are practical, reasonable,

          4  safe and cost effective.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, thank you.

          7  Thank you, Ms. Farber.

          8                 MS. DAVENPORT: Hello. I'm Marolyn

          9  Davenport.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         11                 MS. DAVENPORT: With the Real Estate

         12  Board of New York.

         13                 I don't have prepared testimony, but

         14  I did want to thank --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have a

         16  statement, Ms. Davenport? Do you have a prepared

         17  written statement?

         18                 MS. DAVENPORT: No, I have a

         19  handwritten --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I want to

         21  make sure that if you had a prepared statement, I

         22  had it.

         23                 Okay, please.

         24                 MS. DAVENPORT: We do appreciate the

         25  hard work of the Council and of DEP. An awful lot
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          2  went into this, and we appreciate the consultation,

          3  and we think that this is overall a big improvement

          4  over the past bill, and we look forward to

          5  participating in the rule-making process. We think

          6  that's absolutely critical.

          7                 I would just point out one item. We

          8  did a test in the Real Estate Board's conference

          9  room. We had a sound consultant come in and measure

         10  and it's 48 dB. So, these levels are tricky.

         11                 One of the things that was changed at

         12  the last minute was there was a phrase building lot,

         13  which is a very imprecise term. And it talked about

         14  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Council Member

         16  Gerson wishes you to repeat that term.

         17                 MS. DAVENPORT: There was a phrase in

         18  the prior bill that referred to air circulation

         19  devices on a building lot, which is not a precise

         20  term. And we understand the need to clarify it, but

         21  it was changed to zoning lot, and I think the intent

         22  was that in a condo, every condo is a separate tax

         23  lot. The problem with zoning lot as a term is that

         24  you can do an air rights transfer and merge lots to

         25  a single zoning lot where you may have multiple
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          2  buildings. And I don't think this was the intent of

          3  the change. It's a technical correction, but I think

          4  we do need to, and we'll certainly work with you,

          5  and I don't think you're hitting quite what you

          6  meant.

          7                 We look forward to working with you.

          8  We look forward to working with DEP in the

          9  rule-making process, and, again, thank you all for

         10  your hard work.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         12  you all.

         13                 And particularly, I've directed

         14  Counsel to the Committee to make note of that

         15  technical correction regarding the zoning lot

         16  versus, tax lot was it? And we appreciate that

         17  input.

         18                 With regard to the rule-making

         19  process, I asked the Commissioner on the record for

         20  the Council to be able to participate in that, in

         21  that process. And, so, we will be there, as will

         22  you, during this process, you know, pre-CAPA, and I

         23  think that that bodes well for getting the type of

         24  rules that we all believe are important and

         25  necessary. Would you agree with that?
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          2                 MS. DAVENPORT: Absolutely.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And, so, with

          4  that said, I would like to thank you for the hard

          5  work and late nights, and your input in this process

          6  has been very, very valuable. And we greatly

          7  appreciate it.

          8                 Thank you all very much.

          9                 The next witness is Alan Fierstein

         10  from a company called Acoustilog.

         11                 Okay, it's been brought to my

         12  attention that you want to do a sound demonstration?

         13                 MR. FIERSTEIN: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. And it was

         15  previously discussed with staff. I'll allow it.

         16                 Do you have a written statement, sir?

         17  How about we just have Donna DeCostanzo, and you'll

         18  have to speak into the microphone because she's

         19  going to put you under oath.

         20                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

         21  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         22  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         23  truth?

         24                 MR. FIERSTEIN: I do.

         25                 (Witness sworn.)
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, I would ask

          4  you to state your name for the record, and begin

          5  your testimony. I just got a question I guess for

          6  counsel about how the sound demonstration will be

          7  recorded on the record?

          8                 Okay, so we have a way of putting it

          9  on the record, I'm told.

         10                 Mr. Fierstein, please state your name

         11  for the record and commence your testimony.

         12                 MR. FIERSTEIN: My name is Alan

         13  Fierstein. I'm the President and Founder of

         14  Acoustilog, Incorporated. Thank you very much for

         15  inviting me here today.

         16                 I've been in business since 1976,

         17  almost 30 years, in the same location on Mercer

         18  Street, New York City.

         19                 I have performed over 5,000 jobs for

         20  residents and businesses in the City. Presently my

         21  work is 60 percent residential customers, 40 percent

         22  business industrial. I'm not being paid by any group

         23  for this testimony or any of the other work that

         24  I've put in on this over the last year.

         25                 I'm going to make some comments then
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          2  have a very short demonstration which consists of

          3  about a minute and a half of a CD, which I can

          4  furnish you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          6                 MR. FIERSTEIN: The code, I agree,

          7  needs changes. It needs a lot of changes, but it

          8  also happens to have a lot of foresight into it in

          9  the way it was originally done and the way it's been

         10  modified over the years.

         11                 New York City was the first one to

         12  have a stringent low-frequency base music standard,

         13  Local Law 92, when they put that in, it's now

         14  24-241.1, and that was paragraph B. I'm the bad guy

         15  ten years ago who stopped the City from using

         16  paragraph B because they weren't using it right.

         17                 But if they use it right, it's a

         18  really good standard. A really good one. And I'm

         19  going to demonstrate that in a minute.

         20                 I think that the present Intro. 397-A

         21  you should not pass without having more time to go

         22  over it and change certain things.

         23                 As you know, I testified in January

         24  of this year. I presented written comments. I'll

         25  present them again. My old ones, as well as new
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          2  ones. I had 12 bullet points. Only one of the 12 has

          3  been addressed in the new changes, which I got

          4  yesterday.

          5                 The regulations are unfair. They are

          6  burdensome. Very expensive and burdensome.

          7  Arbitrary. Very arbitrary, as many of the Council

          8  members have mentioned. They also don't go far

          9  enough to protect residents and they actually hurt

         10  many residents by increasing costs in their

         11  building, in their co-op, with MCI improvements, in

         12  their condo board, et cetera.

         13                 First, let's discuss plainly audible.

         14  Plainly audible is very arbitrary. The case has been

         15  made that this has been adopted and extensively

         16  litigated around the country. I'm not surprised.

         17  This is a situation where New York City should not

         18  be following. We should be leading. We led with

         19  Local Law 92, we should lead with our own objective

         20  standards.

         21                 First of all, what one person can

         22  hear is not what another person can hear. Again, a

         23  short demonstration in a minute. A reasonable person

         24  was not defined in the code. It says any person.

         25                 The website of the consultant to the
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          2  DEP states the following, I'm just going to read one

          3  sentence from their home page: "If your jurisdiction

          4  has a subjective nuisance code, our sound study may

          5  prove the objective presence of a subjective

          6  nuisance."

          7                 I think sidewalk noise isn't

          8  important as several of the Councilpeople mentioned.

          9  It's generally a way to catch people that won't get

         10  caught by the conventional means, because the

         11  conventional means aren't being used. 241.1B.

         12                 If you ask me a question about that

         13  later, I'll describe the basic procedure in which

         14  sidewalk noise gets used on my customers, as well as

         15  for residential, as well as commercial. It will

         16  backfire also, but what's in the apartment is really

         17  what the bottom line is, that's what's important.

         18                 Comparing noise to the ambient noise,

         19  whether it's inside an apartment or outside an

         20  apartment on the street is very bad, very unfair,

         21  very arbitrary and changes all over the place and

         22  puts people like me who advise businesses how to

         23  soundproof in the first place at a tremendous

         24  quandary. I have to tell the businesses forget it,

         25  you're on your own on this one. The people upstairs
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          2  have a very super-quiet apartment, and you're at a

          3  level that's reasonable, but it can be heard, you're

          4  going to be in trouble. If you add City windows to

          5  the inside of your existing windows, you're going to

          6  be in trouble.

          7                 They mentioned, the DEP mentioned

          8  earlier, I'm dismayed to see that Charlie left, but

          9  they want better and smarter enforcement.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Charlie is here.

         11  Charlie is here.

         12                 MR. FIERSTEIN: Where? Oh, there you

         13  are. Thank you, Charlie. Okay, great.

         14                 They want better and smarter

         15  enforcement. I think that we can offer a lot of

         16  suggestions to how we can do that, but right now the

         17  way it's tailored is to have many, many -- you

         18  remember the discussion before about unreasonable

         19  noise, including but not limited to? That's a good

         20  example of how they basically allowed everything to

         21  be a big catch-all and a quick analogy. If you go

         22  fishing and you don't catch anything, and an old

         23  timer says to you, well, you're not using the right

         24  lure for pike, say, well, you know, I don't know how

         25  to use that lure. Give me a giant net. And you scoop
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          2  up everything. You scoop up people who aren't

          3  violators, you scoop up fish that are too small to

          4  be heard, and a good example of that is going to be

          5  small contractors and supers and people doing home

          6  improvement. Small contractors are not part

          7  necessarily of the Building Trades Association.

          8  They're a big group but they make a lot of noise,

          9  but a lot of that noise is very low and they can't

         10  afford to do noise mitigation plans. This is an

         11  example of burdensome. And all of their activities,

         12  including just using a hammer or electric drill, are

         13  regulated now.

         14                 The ambient noise changes all the

         15  time, even a particular place. The Intro. 397 refers

         16  to comparable sites to use as an ambient noise

         17  measurement place. If you can't measure the noise in

         18  this particular street, maybe you can measure it in

         19  another street. That gives no opportunity for

         20  someone who is a respondent to a violation summons

         21  to test themselves. To say that the respondent can

         22  go listen for plainly eligible noise, again, people

         23  vary, so it's just not real.

         24                 Also, the sound isn't predictable in

         25  advance, which makes designers have a big problem.
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          2  If I was an architect and someone told me, look, you

          3  can make the hallway any width you want. Not 36

          4  inches, any width you want. It will be subject to

          5  the discretion of the inspector. That's going to be

          6  no good. But if I, as an architect, say I'm going to

          7  make that exit sign be a standard exit sign that's

          8  approved, I know that if an inspector comes in and

          9  finds that the ambient level of light in that room

         10  is too bright and washes out the exit sign or the

         11  exit sign arrow, I know I'm not going to lose my

         12  license, or that the building isn't going to get a

         13  violation because it conformed to a particular

         14  objective standard. So, that I can hang my hat on

         15  and people can vest in that project and people can

         16  do that project.

         17                 Now, compressors, that's a big

         18  problem. Everybody has compressors and they don't

         19  know it. This building has compressors. Every

         20  residential building has compressors. Refrigerators

         21  have compressors, although they might be considered

         22  an air circulation device also.

         23                 This code regulates compressors

         24  whether or not they're a problem. You're going to

         25  have to replace your compressor if it's too noisy,
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          2  even if it's in a sub-basement where no one can hear

          3  it, on a mechanical room on a roof where no one can

          4  hear it, or on a high roof where no one is around

          5  where no one can hear it.

          6                 Where it can be heard, of course it

          7  should be regulated. But not willy-nilly replace

          8  every compressor in the City because they don't

          9  conform to the 75 dBA standard, which by the way, no

         10  manufacturer rates them this way.

         11                 So, the data isn't out there for

         12  people to say, oh, I'll take this one. And where it

         13  is in an environment dramatically affects what that

         14  reading would be. So, it would be very difficult for

         15  a manufacturer to rate it, probably the reason they

         16  haven't rated it.

         17                 Commercial music. Now it's time for a

         18  little demonstration. I'll talk loud so you can hear

         19  me.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Any statements

         21  you make have to be miked, otherwise it won't be

         22  included in the record. I can't really allow you to

         23  make verbal statements that are not recorded.

         24                 And, again, if we could move through

         25  this with some dispatch.
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          2                 MR. FIERSTEIN: Okay. I'm cancelling

          3  the demonstration. Unless my assistant can quickly

          4  find some batteries.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          6                 MR. FIERSTEIN: But I will continue.

          7  I'm almost done.

          8                 Unfortunately, machines fail.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please, because

         10  we have to move along.

         11                 MR. FIERSTEIN: The commercial music

         12  section has basically been described as a way where

         13  if the respondent to commercial, and that respondent

         14  may not just be a bar or a restaurant, but could be

         15  a clothing store, it could be a restaurant, it could

         16  be --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I need you to be

         18  as specific as possible.

         19                 MR. FIERSTEIN: Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Speak in kind of

         21  global sense, the legislative hearings are what's

         22  wrong, what's right.

         23                 MR. FIERSTEIN: No one will cooperate

         24  with this because to admit to the violation

         25  immediately subjects you, according to a section
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          2  right below there, that says they can issue more

          3  violations. And the second and third violations have

          4  sixteen and twenty-four thousand dollar fines. So,

          5  it's absolutely in no one's interest to cooperate

          6  with a sound mitigation plan.

          7                 Now, these are things that I believe

          8  are mistakes in the code, but this is what they've

          9  left out.

         10                 They have left out a sensible way to

         11  be fair to all of the parties. They have left out a

         12  statement to the effect that sound levels of 45

         13  decibels, for example, or ten decibels above the

         14  ambient, whichever is higher, that's the important

         15  thing, whichever is higher, are unreasonable.

         16                 They have simply ignored my request

         17  that they prohibit residents from causing

         18  unreasonable noise. They have basically ignored the

         19  possibility, there's great opportunity to require a

         20  proactive sound mitigation plan for new bars,

         21  restaurants, nightclubs, when they can do something

         22  about it. When you're building the place in the

         23  first place, there's a lot of myths. People always

         24  soundproof wrong. This is the time to do it in this

         25  code.
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          2                 They haven't addressed a reasonable

          3  way to enforce against the loud booming car stereos.

          4  I read a note saying that you can't go chasing after

          5  cars. Believe me, on Canal Street, you don't have to

          6  go chasing after the cars, they're stuck in traffic.

          7  And I presented a way to do that in my previous

          8  proposal, I'll give you a copy of it.

          9                 They haven't taken care of the

         10  confusing 177-word sentence in 24.244 of business

         11  advertising purposes. Used to be the old 220.B. If

         12  they take out one word, "or," o-r, it will make it

         13  more specific to what the intent of the legislation

         14  was, to prohibit advertising music.

         15                 They have repealed the citizen's

         16  complaint. There's an opportunity, the citizen's

         17  complaint, for people to get late-night inspections

         18  from private people.

         19                 They have not acknowledged that

         20  sometimes it's correct to measure inside apartments

         21  with the windows closed, and sometimes correct the

         22  measure with the windows open. They say measure with

         23  the windows closed, if possible, windows open, if

         24  possible, not if practical. If the noise is coming

         25  through your ceiling, like one of my clients is
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          2  suffering with right now, you don't want to measure

          3  the noise of coming in through the window. There's

          4  nothing out there. And basically they haven't put

          5  any specifics for what constitutes continuous dog

          6  barking noise. Because there's a lot of definitions

          7  of that.

          8                 I think that if you have any

          9  questions, I'll be glad to answer them.

         10                 Let me just tell you, what I was

         11  going to show, so this will go on the record, with

         12  the demonstration.  A one-third octive analyzer,

         13  which is not that expensive, for the specific noises

         14  that need base measurement, can be adequately

         15  measured with 241.1B, even in the presence of

         16  low-frequency subway and machinery noise. It shows

         17  it sticks out like a sore thumb.

         18                 I could actually show it to you, but,

         19  unfortunately, the batteries are dead on my CD

         20  player. And also what is just barely audible to one

         21  person would not be to another.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         23                 MR. FIERSTEIN: I had a demonstration

         24  of that too. But I will give you the CD and you can

         25  listen to it. It will be very clear and
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          2  self-explanatory.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          4  you.

          5                 Mr. Fierstein, I'm going to move on.

          6  We have many, many witnesses. I thank you for

          7  meeting with the staff and they, fortunately, are

          8  well versed in all of your issues, and we will give

          9  them due consideration. And I do thank you for

         10  working on this.

         11                 Okay, Councilman Gerson has a

         12  question.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I just want to

         14  ask one question on one of your statements. Because

         15  you're absolutely right, what is of greatest

         16  importance, what is heard within the residential

         17  unit.

         18                 Do you feel, recognizing that new

         19  establishments are moving into places that

         20  previously had no establishment, that buildings have

         21  different types of walls and ceilings, are old or

         22  new, is it nevertheless possible, using current

         23  sound treatment technology, to require, to draft

         24  language that puts in place where you describe

         25  proactive sound mitigation, or sound treatment
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          2  measures, using sound limiters, other insulation, so

          3  as to effectively contain amplified sound within the

          4  establishment, writing it in an objective way that

          5  takes account of the different types of materials

          6  and conditions that we find in different type of

          7  buildings?

          8                 I'm not going to ask you to write

          9  that for us now, but just tell us, is that something

         10  from your expertise that it is possible to do in the

         11  context of a Noise Code? You can even answer that

         12  yes or no.

         13                 MR. FIERSTEIN: I was the first one to

         14  recommend limiters and install them, in clubs, bars

         15  and restaurants 25 years ago.

         16                 Limiters work very well if they're

         17  installed properly and locked properly. But the best

         18  thing is to have motivation for businesses to

         19  properly soundproof their places, for builders to

         20  properly soundproof their co-ops and condos and

         21  developments in the first place. Because otherwise,

         22  when you're socked with a violation, it's cheaper to

         23  fight it and delay it, and stall it, and everyone

         24  goes to court and everyone's taxpayer dollars are

         25  wasted.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: But I'm asking

          3  a technological question. Is the answer yes?

          4                 MR. FIERSTEIN: It's 2005, of course

          5  it's possible.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chair, very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          9                 Thank you, Mr. Fierstein. I

         10  appreciate it.

         11                 MR. FIERSTEIN: You're welcome.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The next witness

         13  is a representative of the State Assembly Richard

         14  Gottfried. He's being represented by Eliyanna

         15  Kaiser, I believe it is? Okay.

         16                 Thank you very much for coming today.

         17  Please pass along the best regards to Mr. Gottfried.

         18                 MS. KAISER: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Donna will swear

         20  you in and you could proceed with Mr. Gottfried's

         21  statement.

         22                 MS. KAISER: Sure.

         23                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Sure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: In the testimony

         25  that you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to
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          2  tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

          3  truth?

          4                 MS. KAISER: I do.

          5                 (Witness sworn.)

          6                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          7                 MS. KAISER: Thanks.

          8                 I'm representing Assemblymember

          9  Gottfried today. He represents the neighborhoods of

         10  Chelsea, Clinton, Midtown, Murray Hill and part of

         11  the Upper West Side.

         12                 Thank you very much for the

         13  opportunity. First of all, I'm not going to read

         14  this verbatim because it would be too long. I'm just

         15  going to summarize. But he wanted to express that he

         16  felt that the communities that he represents haven't

         17  been given ample time to review especially the stuff

         18  that was available only late yesterday to some of

         19  us, and I'm sure for the first time today to many

         20  members of the community. So, he would urge the

         21  Council and this Committee to provide other

         22  opportunities for communities to review these

         23  proposals.

         24                 In general, the Assemblymember is

         25  very excited about this, and particularly encourage
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          2  that a lot of the -- the maximum allowable levels

          3  have been lowered in many cases in the code. There

          4  are new prohibitions on a lot of commercial

          5  advertising, other kinds of contemporary problems

          6  that probably weren't envisioned 30 years ago, and

          7  that's great.

          8                 The study that is outlined in the

          9  code is an important step in terms of addressing

         10  some of the larger issues that need to be examined

         11  more thoroughly.

         12                 He is concerned about a few sections,

         13  though, and I'm sure that if we had more time we

         14  probably would be concerned about more details.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Excuse me.

         16                 I would just like to ask you to be

         17  quiet in the room. There are people having

         18  conversations in the back. Anyone having a

         19  conversation, please take it outside into the

         20  rotunda. This includes the people in the back having

         21  the conversations. Please take it outside into the

         22  rotunda.

         23                 Sergeants, I direct you to talk to

         24  the people in the back whose conversations I want

         25  moved out into the rotunda.
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          2                 Okay.

          3                 MS. KAISER: Okay.

          4                 The first is the construction

          5  section, which I came in a little bit late, but I

          6  know was being addressed to a certain extent. The

          7  new language that gives City agencies more broad

          8  discretion to grant after hours permits is something

          9  he's very concerned about, particularly the section

         10  on undue hardship that includes scheduling

         11  commitments and financial considerations as grounds.

         12                 The existing Noise Code only

         13  authorizes after hours work in the case of urgent

         14  necessity in the interest of public safety. And even

         15  though over the years developers have been able to

         16  secure permits for after hours work, for some less

         17  compelling reasons, the Assemblymember believes that

         18  the question here is, you know, not whether we

         19  should codify what's essentially been an illegal

         20  practice, but instead we should be enforcing the

         21  City law in this respect. So, that's our first

         22  concern.

         23                 The second is in regards to bars and

         24  nightclubs. You know, while most bars and

         25  restaurants operate as good neighbors, there are
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          2  problem establishments. And while a lot of the

          3  language changes do a lot to address some of the

          4  issues that have come up over the years, and he

          5  actually is grateful for the language clarifying the

          6  illegality of street level noise, because that's

          7  something that really people have been quite unclear

          8  on what the status of that was for quite some time,

          9  Community Board 4 has told us, and I'm sure they're

         10  here to testify about it today, that they would like

         11  to see some more specific language dealing with

         12  rowdy, the consistent rowdiness outside of problem

         13  establishments.

         14                 Specifically he thinks that the

         15  language should be further amended to hold business

         16  owners responsible for consistent loud, rowdy

         17  patrons of rooftop gardens, sidewalk cafes,

         18  backyards and queues, and so we hope that's

         19  something that will be considered.

         20                 In terms of refuse-compacting

         21  vehicles, he is concerned about the changes that are

         22  being made in terms of, we're hearing a bit about

         23  how the measurements are going to be taken from

         24  farther away and the decibel level is going to be

         25  changed. The Assemblymember thinks that the
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          2  measurement should be taken while the machine is

          3  compacting the load, first of all, because that is

          4  the point where that is the most noisy and causes

          5  the most problems for the surrounding residents, and

          6  that the threshold for an aggregate sound level

          7  should be lowered.

          8                 In addition, another common sense

          9  addition would be to require existing sound barriers

         10  like loading docks to be closed.

         11                 We have problems in the district

         12  where, you know, compactors are functioning in a

         13  loading dock and a loading dock door is open. If

         14  there's a loading dock open it can be closed, and

         15  that will do a lot to mitigate the sound.

         16                 We had in here that another sensible

         17  measure would be to have more restrictive

         18  regulations for nighttime compacting in an area

         19  zoned for residential. I think that's something

         20  that's been addressed in the last 24 hours that we

         21  might have missed. And in addition, it would make

         22  sense to require noise mitigation measures on the

         23  vehicles themselves.

         24                 Finally, in terms of loose steel

         25  plates and manhole covers, which as the
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          2  Assemblymember represents Midtown, and I'm sure it's

          3  a problem in other parts of the City, is it's

          4  something that actually causes a lot of noise. We

          5  would encourage the Committee to examine

          6  recommendations made by advocates as to how best the

          7  Noise Code could be used as a tool to mitigate the

          8  sound caused by loose steel plates and manhole

          9  covers.

         10                 I'm sure that we'll have more

         11  recommendations as we have more time to examine

         12  this, and we really encourage the Council to provide

         13  the community with greater opportunities to review

         14  this in detail.

         15                 We were discussing what the Noise

         16  Code is, and, you know, Dick and I were talking

         17  about it, and we really came to kind of a

         18  philosophical understanding that it's really, it's

         19  about how people live together a in really, really,

         20  really, you know, closed urban setting. It's about

         21  how people have to interact with each other in kind

         22  of a really, really basic level. How am I going to

         23  exist so close to you? Our private spheres are all

         24  overlapping. So, really important questions, and

         25  there's been some really major changes in the last
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          2  24 hours, so please do give some more opportunities

          3  for comment. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          5  you. Please give our best wishes to Mr. Gottfried.

          6                 And the next panel, Mr. Robert

          7  Bookman, the New York Nightlife Association; Mr.

          8  Chuck Hunt, New York State Restaurant Association,

          9  and Mr. David Rabin, also of the New York Nightlife

         10  Association.

         11                 Before we start, Mr. Bookman, did you

         12  have a prepared written statement? Okay. I just want

         13  to make sure I have everything. Okay, I got it.

         14                 Okay, thank you all very much for

         15  coming, and for interacting with myself and with

         16  staff in this most recent run up to today. We

         17  greatly appreciate your input and look forward to

         18  your testimony.

         19                 Donna will give the oath and then you

         20  could proceed with your statements. I guess we'll

         21  take it in the sequence of slips, which would be Mr.

         22  Bookman first, Mr. Hunt and Mr. Rabin, in that

         23  order. And then, you know, everyone stay on the

         24  panel, if I have questions or comments I can speak

         25  to that and to all of you as a group.
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          2                 Donna.

          3                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          4  right hand.

          5                 In the testimony that you're about to

          6  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          7  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          8                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

         11  put on the mike.

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN: No, I purposely had it

         13  off, I didn't know if being plainly audible was

         14  against the law at this point, you know?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Touche'.

         16                 MR. BOOKMAN: On behalf of New York

         17  City's thousands of bars, clubs and lounges, on a

         18  serious note, thank you once again for inviting us

         19  to testify at this very important proposal. A

         20  special thank you to your staff, to your excellent

         21  Chief of Staff, to the Committee staff, and to DEP,

         22  it's new Commissioner, Emily Lloyd, who was a

         23  pleasure meeting, Deputy Commissioner Bob Avaltroni,

         24  who is wonderful to work with, and the rest of the

         25  DEP staff that have met with us and carefully
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          2  listened to our concerns. It is a process that we

          3  look forward to continuing.

          4                 There is even a rumor that within the

          5  last 24 hours some changes have been made to the

          6  Noise Code proposal made over a year ago, but if the

          7  purpose of today's hearing is to solicit comments

          8  from the public and affected business groups

          9  concerning these changes, then with all due respect,

         10  we are not using our time wisely. It is simply not a

         11  fair, open, or deliberative process if the public is

         12  given one day to read, absorb and develop a position

         13  on changes made yesterday. Even minor agency

         14  regulations require a minimum 30-day notice to the

         15  public. We need time to continue the positive

         16  process began in earnest the past couple of weeks.

         17  Not months. A major new code that we will all have

         18  to live with for the next 30 years should take all

         19  the time necessary to get it right, and not

         20  encourage litigation over lack of timely review,

         21  which takes me to my next point.

         22                 This legislative body has yet to

         23  retain its own sound expert, independent of DEP, to

         24  analyze this code and advise the Council of its

         25  impact.
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          2                 This, as we are learning today, is

          3  dense, technical material. There are private sound

          4  engineers here today, who you have already heard

          5  from one, experts in their field who disagree with

          6  DEP on many proposed sections. Who is correct? The

          7  Council needs to know, frankly, before it passes a

          8  new Noise Code.

          9                 Moreover, the Council does not know

         10  what the impact of the proposed code will be on

         11  businesses or how many businesses that are currently

         12  in compliance with the Noise Code will wake up the

         13  day after, if it goes into effect, as law violators

         14  due to a lowering of decibel standards for existing

         15  equipment, such as air conditioners, air

         16  compressors, refrigeration units and sound systems,

         17  all installed in good faith under the current Noise

         18  Code.

         19                 New building codes, zoning laws and

         20  the like are generally prospective in nature. Yet,

         21  this proposal is retroactive. There is no

         22  grandfathering of existing equipment installed in

         23  good faith, in compliance with the current code.

         24  Although, I am told that yesterday's version has

         25  some limited phase-in for some equipment, this needs
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          2  to be further discussed.

          3                 Frankly, without the tourism

          4  industry, New York City will go bankrupt. It has

          5  become that critical a part of our City's economy.

          6  And without a vibrant nightlife industry, tourism

          7  will be decimated.

          8                 Nightlife is almost a 10 billion,

          9  that's with a B, dollar a year economic engine for

         10  this City. We have over 64 million admissions a

         11  year. To put that in context, that's more than all

         12  of the Broadway theaters, all of New York City

         13  sports teams, and our largest museum, the

         14  Metropolitan Museum, combined.

         15                 I would guess that 64 million people

         16  a year produce some noise. Yet, it's an essential

         17  element of an important industry. Our businesses

         18  understand the need for our sound to be regulated,

         19  but by objective standards that can be easily

         20  measured and complied with. This code creates those

         21  standards in some sections, but then goes in the

         22  opposite direction by creating a violation for music

         23  being plainly audible 15 feet from a storefront,

         24  even when that music is lower than the surrounding

         25  sounds on the street, even when that music is in
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          2  compliance with other sections of the code that have

          3  new objective standards, even when that music is not

          4  considered unreasonable under the existing code, and

          5  may in fact only be audible in areas with no

          6  residences, which is another issue here, that this

          7  code makes no difference in allowances for music in

          8  a manufacturing zone, and music in a residential

          9  zone. And clearly there have to be differences, but

         10  this code doesn't recognize those differences. So

         11  what. If Lotus's sound system leaks through its

         12  plate glass window in the middle of the meat market

         13  district, when it's lower than the surrounding din

         14  of the sidewalk, let alone cannot be heard by any

         15  resident, yet it becomes a violation just as if it

         16  was a bar in a residential building on the Upper

         17  West Side. Can't be the same standard for both. Or

         18  should it be?

         19                 This plainly audible is a major

         20  change in the status quo, which will result in

         21  thousands of summonses being issued while frankly

         22  not reducing the ambient sound level one decibel of

         23  the City. It serves no public policy objective

         24  unless the ability for the police to issue

         25  harassment tickets to taxpaying, job-creating
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          2  businesses has become acceptable public policy.

          3                 Plainly audible makes sense in many

          4  situations, such as car stereos, barking dogs,

          5  mobile equipment, places where it's not practical to

          6  do a sound measurement. But it's not, and makes no

          7  sense, for fixed locations such as ours where

          8  testing is practical and where specific decibel

          9  levels are now set forth in other sections of the

         10  code.

         11                 There are many other proposed

         12  provisions that still need additional discussions

         13  with DEP and the Council, such as the definition for

         14  ambient sound, which frankly, is not realistic, yet

         15  it sets the tone, if you will, no pun intended, for

         16  the rest of the code.

         17                 DEP is providing for the first time

         18  that up to 50 percent of the sounds of the street

         19  not be included in the ambient, pretending that

         20  they're not part of the sounds of the City. There

         21  are many sections such as this which were maybe not

         22  on the first one, two or three points that the

         23  industry groups had to deal with, but because of the

         24  rushed nature in the last couple of weeks, we

         25  haven't even gotten to discussing yet, and yet they
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          2  are a critical and important part.

          3                 The review process for this code,

          4  finally, is finally on the right track. You have

          5  done, Mr. Chairman, and the Council has done an

          6  excellent job, by forcing the parties together in

          7  the last few weeks. But please do not cut that

          8  process short by passing the code before this

          9  Council ends. We're on the right track, the parties

         10  are talking, let us keep talking.

         11                 Just a couple of other notes that

         12  aren't in my, from the testimony that I've heard

         13  today, that's important to bring up.

         14                 It was mentioned a couple of times

         15  about the 3-1-1 noise complaints. Let me just

         16  reiterate, which was in my first testimony in

         17  January.

         18                 Statistically 3-1-1, the largest

         19  number of complaints 3-1-1 receives is about noise,

         20  and within those complaints, the single largest

         21  category of noise complaints, 56 percent of all

         22  noise complaints, are about residents complaining

         23  about other residences. So, I say to Assemblyman

         24  Gottfried, and his office, if they want to make us

         25  responsible for patrons on the street, and have them
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          2  make bars and restaurants responsible for people

          3  making noise on the street, I'm willing to discuss

          4  that, if his office is willing to be held liable for

          5  his residences in his district making unacceptable

          6  amount of noises.

          7                 This code does nothing to address,

          8  and so we shouldn't pretend that it does, that

          9  single largest area of complaints, which are

         10  residents about other residences.

         11                 And Councilman Gerson, if we want to

         12  talk about a plainly audible standard for commercial

         13  establishments and residences, which quite frankly

         14  scares the hell out of us, you know, this audible

         15  being a violation, let's make that standard the same

         16  to everybody, residences about other residences, and

         17  let's give real enforcement to what people are

         18  complaining about.

         19                 Lastly, I'm not so sanguine about

         20  this legislative body once again punting its legal

         21  legislative responsibilities to an agency and saying

         22  everything will be taken care of in rule-making.

         23  We've been burned on that process many, many times

         24  in this Council in the last four years, quite

         25  frankly, from sidewalk cafes to other issues. It's
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          2  not something that previous Councils, you know, were

          3  apt to do.

          4                 They wanted to see those rules before

          5  they passed the statute and gave the agencies the

          6  authority, not afterwards when they're not involved

          7  in the rule-making process any more than we are.

          8  You're an opinion, and a point in fact is table one

          9  of this statute which has the penalties provisions

         10  is already by rule-making being ignored by DEP

         11  because they've taken the minimum statutory

         12  violations that you have passed and they've already

         13  overruled you by promulgating a regulation saying

         14  that, for example, on 24-231A, instead of a $2,000

         15  first-time penalty, it's $3,200 at their ECB. So, we

         16  need some language in here to say that when we pass

         17  something, we mean what it says and you can't by

         18  rule-making overrule us. You know, they already

         19  have, and they will continue to ignore the sections

         20  of this code they want to ignore by rule-making. So,

         21  I'm hesitant to solve all problems in the next year

         22  and a half by rule-making.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         25                 Thank you, Mr. Bookman.
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          2                 Mr. Hunt.

          3                 MR. HUNT: Good afternoon. Good

          4  afternoon, Mr. Chairman. And I join Mr. Bookman in

          5  thanking the Committee and yourself for your

          6  diligent work in this process.

          7                 My name is Charles Hunt. I'm the

          8  Executive Vice President of the Greater New York

          9  City Chapters of the New York State Restaurant

         10  Association. NYSRA is a statewide not-for-profit

         11  trade association representing approximately 7,000

         12  establishments in New York State, close to 3,000 of

         13  which are located within the five boroughs of New

         14  York City.

         15                 Our New York City membership consists

         16  of all manner of food service, hospitality and

         17  nightlife establishments large and small, which as

         18  you know, play a vital part in the City's economy,

         19  contributing jobs, taxes and ambiance to the City.

         20                 Almost a year ago we came into this

         21  room along with many of our colleagues from our and

         22  other of the City's industries for the first hearing

         23  on the proposed Noise Code revisions. At that time

         24  we acknowledged that after 30 years it was

         25  appropriate to update and revise the code. However,
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          2  the bill before us at that time contained many

          3  provisions of concern to us that were not, in our

          4  opinion, necessary or well thought out.

          5                 At the conclusion of that hearing, we

          6  were assured that our concerns had been noted, and

          7  further work was necessary to achieve a workable,

          8  fair and effective code that would be good for the

          9  public and also the business communities.

         10                 Over the ten months following, we

         11  heard no more regarding this legislation. Then

         12  around Thanksgiving, word came down that Noise Code

         13  revision was on the fast track. The following week

         14  my colleague, Mr. Bookman and I were invited to meet

         15  with Commissioner Lloyd and her staff to discuss the

         16  code revisions and our objections and suggestions in

         17  detail. It was a productive meeting of nearly two

         18  hours, and we had been able to cover many, but not

         19  all of our issues.

         20                 We were told that changes were being

         21  made and that the agency was also meeting with other

         22  affected industries for their input as well.

         23                 Only yesterday did we finally receive

         24  a revised draft of the legislation. We had about as

         25  much time to review it as this hearing has taken
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          2  place, taken so far. However, less than one day is

          3  hardly enough time to review a complicated 49-page

          4  highly-technical document. At this point we have to

          5  ask what's the rush?

          6                 This legislation will probably be in

          7  place for another 30 years. It deserves careful and

          8  extended study to assure its fairness and balance.

          9                 There are still parts of this bill

         10  that need to be carefully considered. Questions need

         11  to be answered. Why should extremely costly

         12  equipment installed in good faith that is currently

         13  in compliance not be grandfathered? Why should noise

         14  emanating from a restaurant with open French doors

         15  or at an approved sidewalk cafe be subject to a

         16  plainly audible interpretation or a

         17  misinterpretation, rather than a measurable standard

         18  set in other parts of the code?

         19                 Responsible restaurant, food service,

         20  bar, club and lounge operators strive to be good

         21  neighbors, and we frequently make repairs,

         22  adjustments, replacements and take other actions on

         23  our own in direct response to complaints heard from

         24  nearby residents.

         25                 We sincerely urge this Committee to
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          2  take its time and carefully consider what is being

          3  said today by the industries that will be affected.

          4                 Once again, thank you for your work.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Hunt. I appreciate it.

          7                 Mr. Rabin.

          8                 MR. RABIN: Good afternoon. Thank you

          9  very much, Mr. Chairman, and members of the Council.

         10  Thank you for inviting me to speak today. My name is

         11  David Rabin. I am president of the New York

         12  Nightlife Association and I co-own Lotus and the

         13  Double 7.

         14                 I'd like to say I'm glad to be here

         15  but, frankly, I'm not. In fact, I'm a little tired

         16  of coming here. I don't get paid to do so. I've had

         17  to come here quite a bit in the last few years, and

         18  most of those occasions I've left feeling very

         19  frustrated.

         20                 The first time I came here was to

         21  talk to you guys about the smoking ban. We never

         22  raised an economic objection. We predicted a quality

         23  of life problem for neighbors of all bars and clubs

         24  in New York City, all over this City, but especially

         25  below 14th Street this has become an undeniable
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          2  reality, so much so that even the New York Times

          3  which so one-sidedly favored the ban recently came

          4  up with a new word, "smurting" for those customers

          5  who spend their time flirting and smoking outside

          6  our bars.

          7                 The true story of the smoking ban,

          8  not the official version, would take an entire day's

          9  hearing, and you've almost already had that, so I'll

         10  move on.

         11                 We came back to you regarding

         12  expanding the use of the paid detail unit to bring

         13  foot patrols back to areas where nightlife is

         14  prevalent, and we offered to pay for it ourselves.

         15  So, the very industry that is the source of so many

         16  problems supposedly, and the one that you would

         17  think would want few cops around as possible, came

         18  to you and asked you to change policy. We asked this

         19  body to allow us to hire off-duty police, just like

         20  they can do at Yankee Stadium and Madison Square

         21  Garden, to work outside our venues and help us

         22  control the crowds and keep the streets quieter.

         23                 We were supported in this effort by

         24  Community Boards 3, 4 and 5, and yet we couldn't get

         25  this Council to muster the votes for the proposal
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          2  because it was blocked from up high. It seems that

          3  nightlife owners have more faith in the guys and

          4  gals in blue than even their own brass has.

          5                 So now why are we here? We're here

          6  because the DEP wants you and I to believe that

          7  plainly audible is an objective standard, and I ask

          8  you, what kind of joke is that? Don't they know we

          9  want to college? None of us object to being metered

         10  and regulated in a well-defined and productive

         11  manner, but the City wants to cut the books in two

         12  ways: First, they want to change the definition of

         13  ambient noise by flippantly disregarding 50 percent

         14  of the very sounds that make up New York. This is

         15  not a suburb of New Jersey the last time I checked.

         16                 Then more egregiously, they want to

         17  tell you and me that plainly audible will be

         18  administered fairly, and I say that's a bunch of

         19  baloney. It will not be administered fairly. It will

         20  be used as a hammer by any higher up an authority

         21  that has gotten a bunch of calls about an

         22  establishment but can't find a way to find them.

         23  They'll just decide their sound system is plainly

         24  audible, and they'll try to put them out of business

         25  with no concern for the employees or for the overall
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          2  impact on the economy.

          3                 This would be funny if it wasn't so

          4  serious. I went to law school in this City. I was

          5  instrumental in forming one of its most successful

          6  charitable groups. I have formed a Chamber of

          7  Commerce in the meatpacking district. I have served

          8  on the community board. I'm raising a family in this

          9  City, I have a child, and we employ over 130 people

         10  and they have families. So, probably 300 to 400

         11  people are supported by the places that I run. I am

         12  here to tell you that they are very good, very

         13  hard-working people in our industry, and thousands

         14  of New Yorkers earn their living in our business.

         15  When is enough enough? No one is saying don't

         16  regulate us. In fact, just like we welcomed the paid

         17  detail unit, we would welcome a fair system of

         18  metering. What wordsmith managed to switch the

         19  definitions of subjective and objective in the DEP

         20  dictionary?

         21                 It is pretty discouraging to read in

         22  the New York Times as I come down here on the subway

         23  today that a deal has already been struck. In the

         24  end, all I ask from this Council is to be fair. For

         25  one time to us be fair and hear our complaints.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And let me ask

          4  that there be no outbursts. And also, apropos of

          5  your last observation with regard to the article in

          6  the New York Times, it's not the New York Times that

          7  determines whether any deal has been struck. I am

          8  the Chairman of this Committee and I'll make that

          9  decision in consultation with other members of the

         10  Council and people that I speak to. So, I think they

         11  jumped the gun a little bit on that.

         12                 And as I personally told the New York

         13  Times yesterday when they spoke with me, I said,

         14  well, we will just have to see what transpires at

         15  the hearing. That's why we have hearings. And, so,

         16  as I said, let me just reiterate a section of my

         17  opening statement, is that the passage of this bill

         18  is not a foregone conclusion. Is not a foregone

         19  conclusion, you know, particularly because I wanted

         20  and needed the opportunity to hear from stakeholders

         21  like yourself that have legitimate concerns.

         22                 So, you presented them. We've been

         23  talking to Mr. Bookman, and I want to thank you for

         24  bringing forward very, very compelling testimony,

         25  which will weigh heavily in my own deliberations on
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          2  where we go from here.

          3                 Mr. Bookman wants to respond.

          4                 MR. BOOKMAN: Yes. Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman.

          6                 There's one point I was reminded of,

          7  which I neglected to mention. While plainly audible

          8  is a standard that is being used in some

          9  municipalities throughout the country, because you

         10  had asked for some more background on that --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN: -- The operative

         13  question from our perspective is, and DEP's own

         14  sound expert had said this, that while it may be a

         15  defensible standard, its application to any

         16  particular sound source is open to a relevant

         17  debate.

         18                 In other words, yes, plainly audible

         19  may work for car stereos that are driving by so you

         20  don't have to go run down the block with a sound

         21  meter with them, but the question is, how many of

         22  those municipalities that have plainly audible have

         23  them when they had specific standards for a

         24  particular sound source in their Noise Code? That's

         25  the relevant question from our perspective.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: This new Noise Code, for

          4  the first time, for the first time, creates an

          5  objective criteria for measuring commercial music on

          6  the public sidewalk. It's above a certain decibel, 7

          7  dBs at night and 10 dBs during the day. We did not

          8  argue with whether that's a fair or unfair level. We

          9  were pleased after the first time in history there

         10  was going to be an objective criteria for measuring

         11  commercial sound on the public sidewalk. But then

         12  there was kind of like at Three Card Monty game, and

         13  they created this unreasonable plainly audible

         14  standard, which is going to be the new unreasonable

         15  noise standard as relates to commercial music. So,

         16  our question is, not is plainly audible used

         17  somewhere in Detroit for types of measurement when

         18  there is no weight and there is no code for a

         19  specific measurement, but is it used in Detroit and

         20  elsewhere when there is a specific section like

         21  there is going to be for commercial music? There is

         22  no reason for there to be plainly audible for fixed

         23  commercial music any longer, because now the code

         24  has specific standards.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you for

          4  clarifying that.

          5                 Councilman Brewer has a question.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: A little bit

          7  picking up on that for David.

          8                 The question I had, and I pursued it

          9  earlier, was enforcement. Because I must admit, it

         10  would create a lot of training, now I'm a little bit

         11  more confused than I was earlier. But with the

         12  Police Department, currently, if there's a huge

         13  amount of noise I assume, and it's at night, that

         14  they visit and they have a hand-held device. I don't

         15  know if they've ever used it in your situation,

         16  because you're probably very quiet, but there may be

         17  others.

         18                 So, my question is, what do you

         19  envision would work under a new bill in terms of

         20  being fair?

         21                 MR. RABIN: Establishing an ambient

         22  sound level that's reasonable and then having a

         23  hand-held device and measuring whether or not we're

         24  over that. We have no objection to that. That's

         25  fair. We want, the great misconception is that
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          2  somehow we want to be bad neighbors. We don't. Most

          3  operators don't. We just want to get along and do

          4  our business. We're saying, please, set a standard,

          5  come outside with a meter, tell us we're over the

          6  standard, we'll pay a fine and we'll fix it. Very

          7  eager to do so.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: In other

          9  words, it's the audible issue that's bothering you?

         10                 MR. RABIN: It's a wide open -- I

         11  mean, am I audible now? You can hear me. I mean, am

         12  I keeping you awake? I don't think so.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         16  you, Council member.

         17                 Council Member Gerson.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Just one

         19  point. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         20                 Because I can't leave Robert Bookman

         21  leave feeling scared to death because he doesn't

         22  scare easily, so let me clarify a point and then ask

         23  you a question.

         24                 When I raised plainly audible with

         25  respect to sound within residential units emanating
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          2  from amplified sound elsewhere, it was in

          3  conjunction with a point I had discussed with Mr.

          4  Fierstein; and that is about the possibilities of

          5  preventative measures, of establishing, making use

          6  of current sound treatment technology, of

          7  establishing a regime wherein we affix, in clear

          8  ways and processes which your members can be

          9  satisfied as being objective, we affixed sound

         10  treatment in residential areas. Because I agree with

         11  you, there is a difference, and we should recognize

         12  the difference between residential and

         13  non-residential. But in residential areas to achieve

         14  the goal of no sound generating to within

         15  residential units, because, quite frankly, in the

         16  last example which our mutual friend Mr. Rabin gave,

         17  that type of low-level noise continually, non-stop

         18  overnight would drive me crazy and most of my

         19  constituents. So, my answer, if it were within my

         20  bedroom, and that's the purpose.

         21                 So, my question to you is, would you

         22  be willing to work with us to come up, to see if

         23  it's possible to come up with some kind of regime

         24  for residential areas of sound treatment to achieve

         25  preventative success, and identifying, recognizing
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          2  there have to be differences with types of

          3  structures, but recognizing the need to have some

          4  kind of objective process and criteria in advance.

          5  Is that something we could talk about? That's my

          6  question.

          7                 MR. BOOKMAN: Yes, it most certainly

          8  is, Councilman. And now I can sleep better tonight

          9  because you've clarified, you know, your statement.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: As long as you

         11  don't have any plainly audible noise within your

         12  bedroom -- no.

         13                 MR. BOOKMAN: We certainly would. And

         14  I would be remiss if I didn't say that what's

         15  missing from all of this is the Building Code. And

         16  we have new zoning constantly, areas that were

         17  heretofore, especially in Manhattan, but you're

         18  seeing it in Brooklyn and you're seeing it in

         19  Queens, zones, high densely commercial or

         20  manufacturing, where there's continuous spot zoning

         21  or other changes, you're seeing it in West Chelsea

         22  now, where as a result of these zoning changes there

         23  is going to be residential, new constituents for you

         24  down the road, there's going to be multi-million

         25  dollar, because everything is multi-million dollar
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          2  now condominiums. And these people are going to,

          3  while they're attracted to the neighborhood because

          4  of its vibrancy, once they get in they're going to

          5  want a residential quality of life. Yet, there is

          6  nothing in the Building Code requiring that builder

          7  to say you're building a building in a manufacturing

          8  zone. You've got to put in triple windows, you've

          9  got to put in double-thick walls. You know, we have

         10  ten to twenty-million dollars of nightlife

         11  investment in West Chelsea in the last few years,

         12  large clubs that employ, with all due respect to

         13  Mister Softee, each and every one of those clubs

         14  employs about five times the amount of all Mister

         15  Softee franchizes together, and they developed that

         16  money -- and they put that money in specifically

         17  because there were no lawful residences there. Well,

         18  five years from now there's going to be lawful

         19  residences there, and we're going to be held to this

         20  residential quality of life decibel standard when

         21  what was next to us before was an empty factory. And

         22  you're going to force this industry to Las Vegas and

         23  to South Beach and that's where they're going.

         24  People are not opening that second place anymore in

         25  this industry. I've been in private practice 20
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          2  years now, they're opening that second place in

          3  other cities, and that's why. Because there's no

          4  safe place to go because you are not grandfathering

          5  people, you're not making codes prospective, and

          6  you're not recognizing residential encroachments in

          7  heretofore nightlife areas.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         10  you, Council Member Gerson. And I just want to, I

         11  guess, finish where I just was in thanking you for

         12  putting forward some very, very compelling testimony

         13  which will weigh heavily upon me as we decide where

         14  we go from here.

         15                 Thank you all very much. We

         16  appreciate it.

         17                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18  Thank you, Council member.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

         20                 The next panel will be Dr. Annette

         21  Zaner, Raphael Mostel, Mark Ameruso and Jean-Daniel

         22  Noland. I hope I'm saying that right.

         23                 And while that panel is setting

         24  itself up, I just need a two-minute break. But

         25  literally that is all it's going to be.  Please keep
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          2  the room in some order, and Donna is swearing in the

          3  witnesses so that when I come back we'll be ready to

          4  go right away.

          5                 (Recess taken.)

          6                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

          7  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

          8  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

          9  truth?

         10                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         11                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         13  very much for being here. Before the panel commences

         14  I'd like to recognize that we've been joined by

         15  Council Member Kendall Stewart from Brooklyn, not a

         16  member of the Committee by very interested in this

         17  issue. We thank Council Member Stewart for being

         18  here, and I thank all of you for being here as well.

         19  We appreciate you giving of your time to be here. I

         20  just want to make sure I have everyone's statement.

         21  I've got a statement from Manhattan Community Board

         22  4, okay? That's Mr. Noland, right? Does anyone else

         23  have a written prepared statement? Okay, Dr. Zaner,

         24  okay? So, I have both of these statements and the

         25  rest I'll just listen.
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          2                 So, maybe we'll do a ladies first,

          3  what do you say?

          4                 Dr. Zaner, please. If you could state

          5  your name for the record and proceed with your

          6  testimony.

          7                 DR. ZANER: My name is Annette Zaner.

          8  As an audiologist and as a member of the Committee

          9  that worked with DEP over a year ago to present the

         10  first draft of the revised code, I feel like echoing

         11  some of the things that Dr. Bronzaft had to say,

         12  that is, I want this bill to go through; on the

         13  other hand, there are issues.

         14                 Having received a copy of this latest

         15  revision of the proposed Noise Code yesterday, only

         16  yesterday, I'm afraid that I have not had ample time

         17  to go into detail about some of my concerns. It is

         18  my hope, therefore, that there will be opportunity

         19  to consider some of the issues.

         20                 I'm here today to tell you that we

         21  have known for some time now that the quality of

         22  life issues negatively impacting our citizenry have

         23  overwhelmingly been noise related. As a number of

         24  people have already stated, noise complaints

         25  consistently appear at the top of the list of calls
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          2  received by 3-1-1, the City's help phone line, and

          3  yet, we continue to deal with a truly outdated code.

          4  The proposed revision of the code currently under

          5  consideration provides for many improvements.

          6                 For instance, the revision currently

          7  under consideration stipulates that the Police

          8  Department, as well as other agencies, so

          9  designated, shall have the authority to enforce the

         10  code's provisions, thereby providing for less

         11  complicated and frequently speedier resolutions to

         12  such reported quality of life problems.

         13                 I would like to note, however, that

         14  both in my former role as citizen member of the New

         15  York City environment, Environmental Control Board,

         16  as well as my previous and current status of private

         17  citizen, I have only too often been aware of the

         18  discrepancies between the stated problems noted in

         19  the old code and the lapses in the enforcement of

         20  those code issues, and the items.

         21                 Will we experience similar

         22  enforcement problems once the new code is passed

         23  into law? Although we know that noise complaints far

         24  outnumber other quality of life complaints, we don't

         25  yet know which repugnant noise sources are most
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          2  often complained about. In the results of an on-line

          3  survey about the noise problems in New York City and

          4  in the nation, however, conducted by the New York

          5  City Council on the Environment, and Baruch College,

          6  New Yorkers indicated that honking horns, car alarms

          7  and car stereos most often bother them.

          8                 Inspectors from the DEP do not

          9  necessarily respond to these noises. Those

         10  inspectors mostly operate on an appointment basis,

         11  to inspect noisy situations that are repetitive. And

         12  they do it well. Rather, police officers and other

         13  agents are called upon for those infractions.

         14                 The questions are many. How can we be

         15  assured that the designated agent or police officer

         16  will introduce or will indeed, I should say, cite

         17  the horn-honking offender, or that there will even

         18  be a police officer or other designated agent on the

         19  spot when illegal horn honking takes place?

         20                 Will the traffic control officer be

         21  able to take the time away from his or her ticketing

         22  or traffic directing activity to issue an

         23  appropriate violation to the driver of the car with

         24  the blasting stereo?

         25                 Can the person that receives a call
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          2  about the car alarm that doesn't stop, after the

          3  legally designated time limit, can that person spare

          4  the manpower to attend to that quality of life

          5  issue? Or are the precinct officers even trained in

          6  how to dismantle the alarm? What if the ticket is

          7  appropriately issued, the offender appeals the

          8  violation, the Environmental Control Board acts in

          9  support of the issuing agency, and the matter winds

         10  up in the courts? Can the judge be counted on to be

         11  knowledgeable about and thus uphold the previously

         12  determined quality of life decisions?

         13                 Further, though we consider noise to

         14  be a quality of life issue, it is a known health

         15  contaminant, affecting cardiovascular,

         16  neuroendocrine, immunologic, gastrointestinal,

         17  sleep, fetal development, hearing loss, learning,

         18  cognitive development and social behavior. I refer

         19  you to a volume called Noise & Health, published by

         20  the New York Academy of Medicine in 1991.

         21                 Therefore, when the proposed Noise

         22  Code is passed, we must find a way to be certain

         23  that enforcement is assured. I sincerely hope that

         24  all parties responsible for carrying out the intent,

         25  as well as the letter of the law, will act in favor
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          2  of the effect of the infraction on the citizenry.

          3                 Now, in closing, I would like to

          4  mention just two of the things that I am concerned

          5  about with the current proposed revision.

          6                 The Committee on Construction, the

          7  designated Committee of Construction has no simply

          8  citizenry appointed, and I think that's a very big

          9  mistake.

         10                 Secondly, in Section 236 paragraph B,

         11  it talks about plainly audible sound from

         12  motorcycles at 200 feet. Two-hundred feet is wider

         13  than a side street in New York City. It's ridiculous

         14  to expect that you can't have a plainly audible

         15  sound detected in a shorter distance from a

         16  motorcycle. And that is all I have to say. Thank you

         17  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         19  you, Dr. Zaner.

         20                 Yes, Marc, right?

         21                 MR. AMERUSO: Yes. My name is Marc

         22  Ameruso. It's M-a-r-c, A-m-e-r-u-s-o. I'm a Tribeca

         23  resident, and just for identification purposes, full

         24  disclosure, I'm also a member of Community Board 1,

         25  but speaking on behalf of myself.
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          2                 I testified at the last hearing and

          3  one of my pet peeves or major concerns was that, and

          4  it was mentioned by a previous speaker, is that

          5  noise not be treated as a qualify of life issue, but

          6  more in the direction of a health hazard issue. And

          7  I was happy to see that even on the first page, as

          8  you're dealing with that, public health and safety

          9  and welfare and words to that effect, and

         10  definitions to that effect. So, that was a very

         11  important big step, that I think will just set the

         12  tone for everything else to go into the right

         13  direction.

         14                 On that note, you know, you had

         15  Mister Softee come here and everybody laughs, you

         16  know, Mister Softee is here and whatnot, but Mister

         17  Softee, even some construction noises and things

         18  like that, they're kind of sounds of the City that

         19  we accepted over time. New Yorkers know how to kind

         20  of zone them out and accept them.

         21                 Where the egregious problems are,

         22  some of these nightclubs, some construction, and

         23  boombox cars, which I think is also my second pet

         24  peeve, which is addressed in the legislation but I

         25  think needs to be addressed a little better.
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          2                 Mr. Fierstein had mentioned Canal

          3  Street. I live right along Canal Street and when

          4  those boombox cars are going, it is a health hazard.

          5  And when Ms. Zaner had mentioned all the health

          6  effects, and one that she left out was it's

          7  literally physically painful at times. It hurts your

          8  ears. I mean, it literally hurts your ears at points

          9  in time. And that's when it doesn't become a 3-1-1

         10  call. It should become a 9-1-1 call, because it is

         11  kind of a form of assault in a sense, and these

         12  persons are invading our space with some of these

         13  noises.

         14                 So, the other thing, and you touched

         15  upon it, it is on page 32, is how to measure

         16  vibration or base, and I think that needs to be made

         17  a little bit clearer, because I'm not so sure that

         18  the meters that were described in the legislation

         19  are capable of measuring that. I'm not 100 percent

         20  sure about that, but I just want to see if there's a

         21  clarification on that. And there also needs to be

         22  funding and training for the police and whoever

         23  other agencies that are going to meter these things

         24  and give out fines and summonses. I know there seems

         25  to be kind of a culture in the police that they're
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          2  quality of life issues and they don't want to deal

          3  with them, but it's something we need to change.

          4                 And a lot of people had mentioned

          5  there may be some more time for review maybe by

          6  community boards and other individuals to kind of

          7  tweak it. I mean, I really support the legislation.

          8  I want to see it pass. But maybe, you know, a little

          9  more time to tweak it.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         12  you, Mr. Ameruso.

         13                 Mr. Mostel, correct?

         14                 MR. MOSTEL: Yes, Raphael Mostel. I

         15  represent One University Place Tenants Association

         16  and also myself, as a resident there.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I need you to

         18  speak directly into the microphone.

         19                 MR. MOSTEL: I'm sorry. Is this

         20  better?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, very much.

         22                 MR. MOSTEL: And I wanted to address

         23  the question of the cumulative effect of sound and

         24  noise in the City, that I very much am in favor of

         25  passing a new Noise Code, but I am sharing the
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          2  concern here that the current version does not

          3  address some very major issues.

          4                 One, in talking about cumulative

          5  effect of machines, there is not just the few that

          6  are on the roof. I became involved in this because

          7  of the construction of NYU, we're facing the

          8  building. And they went from a system -- this must

          9  be the microphone?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think it's

         11  okay. You can just continue.

         12                 MR. MOSTEL: They went from a system

         13  where they had many machines they just turned on and

         14  off, and we lived with it because New York is a City

         15  with many noises, it's part of the atmosphere. But

         16  in the new construction, what they did was they

         17  installed these machines, many dozens of them, on

         18  the main building which occupies a whole block, and

         19  several other buildings which go 24 hours a day,

         20  seven days a night. And there is a cumulative effect

         21  which is far beyond just the moment, if you measure

         22  it in five minutes, one-hour, one-day interval. If

         23  you're living with this day and night over a long

         24  period of time it becomes agonizing to be able to

         25  deal with, and I think there has to be some
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          2  interaction with the zoning and the actual

          3  architecture in space, especially in Manhattan where

          4  you have buildings close to each other. There is an

          5  acoustic phenomenon that happens as a secondary

          6  Doppler effect where you amplify the effect from

          7  distant machines in the acoustic space around them.

          8                 Should I use that one? We're

          9  switching microphones. Much better. This is quieter.

         10                 And I very much approve what you did

         11  before, Mr. Chair, when there were people speaking

         12  in the back. It was very distracting and you asked

         13  the people to take it outside of the room. Well, you

         14  can imagine if you did not have the ability of

         15  calling on your Sergeant-At-Arms and the people

         16  would just continue speaking in the back. Not only

         17  that, but that would encourage other people to have

         18  further conversations, go in the back and stand and

         19  talk and the din would just increase. And that is

         20  exactly the problem with the cumulative effect of

         21  machines. Whether it's by a single owner or a single

         22  building, it's in the whole neighborhood they should

         23  be judged by what is happening to the whole area,

         24  all of the sounds. It's the classic commons problem.

         25  You know, everybody wants to raise their cow on the
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          2  village commons, but if everybody does there's no

          3  grass left. And what we have right now in our

          4  neighborhood and in many other areas of the City, is

          5  that the level of ambient noise has reached a level

          6  which is drowning out conversation literally, and an

          7  apartment in the building, in many parts of our

          8  building, if you have the windows open, you cannot

          9  hear the radio in the room that you're in without

         10  raising it to an extreme level or have a normal

         11  conversation to another person in another room, in

         12  the same apartment, and that's fairly extreme.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         14                 Thank you, Mr. Mostel. I'll have some

         15  comments, but I just want to finish the panel.

         16                 Mr. Noland. And you have a prepared

         17  statement?

         18                 MR. NOLAND: Yes.

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chair. I won't read my

         20  prepared statement, but we do have that. My name is

         21  John-Daniel Noland. I'm the First Vice Chair of

         22  Community Board 4, and I'm speaking for Community

         23  Board 4 in Manhattan, Chelsea, Clinton, Hell's

         24  Kitchen. We know from noise. We got more noise than

         25  anybody. We got traffic. We got construction. We got
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          2  nightclubs and bars and restaurants.

          3                 I want, first of all, to commend you

          4  and your Committee for your work on this Noise Code.

          5  We are also very gratified that our letter of

          6  November 2003 to Commissioner Ward when this process

          7  was beginning, a lot of our concerns have been

          8  reflected in what you were putting out. So we thank

          9  you for that. There have been wonderful things said

         10  since this morning, so I'm going to be very brief

         11  and just mention two concerns that are particular to

         12  our area, and that we would like you to revisit. We

         13  did get this late last night and we did manage to

         14  look at it.

         15                 One is the extension or permitting of

         16  after hours construction work or weekend work. We

         17  understand that construction is noisy. We have no

         18  problem, we'll live with it. What we cannot live

         19  with is when it's on the weekends or it's after

         20  hours.

         21                 In the old code I believe they said

         22  it was permitted if, quote, urgent necessity in the

         23  interest of public safety. Well, I gotta tell ya,

         24  there's a whole lot of public safety issues, I

         25  gather, because no application for a permit has ever
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          2  been denied by the City. I'm exaggerating, but it

          3  seems that way.

          4                 Our problem with the way you have it

          5  now is that the proposed revision would allow

          6  after-hour permits to be issued in the case of, for

          7  instance, undue hardship. If you look under undue

          8  hardship, that includes scheduling commitments,

          9  quote/unquote. That includes financial

         10  considerations, quote/unquote. That's just not

         11  acceptable.

         12                 We need to sleep. Fish gotta swim,

         13  bird gotta fly, we gotta sleep sometimes. So,

         14  please, we urge you in the strongest possible terms,

         15  give us a break on the weekends, public holidays,

         16  federal holidays, and keep to the hours.

         17                 The second thing is, I think there is

         18  wonderful specificity in your proposal, an octave

         19  boost and standards, vibration standards, it's

         20  really great. The more specific it is, the better.

         21  It helps the businesses and so we're very much in

         22  favor of that. But there is no provision for the

         23  human voice, and especially for the young male human

         24  voice in full throat.

         25                 I would like to clarify or correct
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          2  something that Mr. Bookman said, and I'm sure

          3  inadvertently. We are asking bars and clubs to be

          4  responsible for rowdy noise within the clubs, on

          5  their roofs, in their gardens, in their sidewalk

          6  cafes and in their queues in front of their

          7  establishments.

          8                 We think that's reasonable. We've

          9  worked well with the nightlife establishment.

         10  They've been helpful. We want to work with them.

         11  They need to be responsible for that, it is a big

         12  source of problems, when you have an outdoor cafe in

         13  back, it affects the residents a block away if

         14  they're noisy.

         15                 And in conclusion, just one

         16  statement, we are pleased to see that throughout the

         17  proposed revisions, most of the standards are clear

         18  and comprehensible and expressed in exact decibel

         19  limits. An understandable and precise code benefits

         20  both residents and businesses, and enforcement of

         21  these standards must be fair and even-handed at all

         22  times.

         23                 So, we want to thank you for all your

         24  hard work, and that's it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. And
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          2  I'd like to, you know, thank you specifically, and

          3  Board 4 generally, for your activism on this

          4  subject.

          5                 You know, I'll just finish my

          6  comments to the panel, and then Council Member

          7  Gerson has a question.

          8                 Mr. Mostel, with respect to the

          9  circulation devices on NYU or any other building --

         10                 MR. MOSTEL: They may be more than

         11  circulation devices. We have never been given an

         12  exact determination what the machinery is. Although

         13  they did shut off during the blackout.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. Because one

         15  of the things that we've come into some criticism

         16  for is by having a sort of cluster effect and

         17  figuring out a way to sort of weave that into the

         18  bill which is in the bill and some people don't want

         19  it in the bill.

         20                 There are representatives from DEP

         21  here that could probably speak to you on how your

         22  particular issue is spoken to with this cumulative

         23  impact, and would also give you an excellent

         24  opportunity to register a formal complaint at the

         25  highest levels of DEP, because even in advance of
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          2  passing this bill we may be able to do something

          3  regarding that issue.

          4                 Jerry I think just indicated a

          5  willingness to -- wasn't that what your hand moving

          6  was?

          7                 MR. MOSTEL: May I just say --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. I've got to

          9  move on, but, yes, I think Jerry could help you with

         10  that.

         11                 Council Member Gerson has a question.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Two real quick

         13  ones.

         14                 Dr. Zaner, it's always good to see

         15  you, as well as everyone, your testimony, and that

         16  of others. Would it make sense for there to be a

         17  kind of Citywide noise coordinator, whatever you

         18  want to call it, for the purposes of dealing,

         19  whether it's within DEP or separately, you could

         20  work all that out, but should there be some office

         21  kind of responsible for interagency education and

         22  coordination? Because we talked about NYPD, their

         23  role, DOB, there are other agencies as well in

         24  addition to DEP, does it make sense to have that

         25  kind of coordinator's office set up for both
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          2  education and coordination purposes?

          3                 DR. ZANER: Mr. Gerson, I know you

          4  have been pushing for this for a long time. And I

          5  appreciate that. I don't know the answer to that

          6  question. I hesitate to think about yet another

          7  level of governance. I don't know the answer, but I

          8  would be nervous about it. There are so many other

          9  things that we need to deal with.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: But somehow

         11  the job has to be done in terms of education and

         12  inter --

         13                 DR. ZANER: I agree.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

         15                 And Mr. Noland, you've talked about

         16  spaces, you know, back yard, rooftop, locations

         17  controlled by premises.

         18                 MR. NOLAND: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Is it the

         20  Board's experience that adjoining buildings, as well

         21  as your building is in sounds way, from court yard,

         22  or back yard cafes and rooftops, have a significant

         23  noise impact both from amplified and non-amplified

         24  sound to the point that any Noise Code should take

         25  effect of the non-amplified, as well as the
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          2  amplified sound from those locations?

          3                 MR. NOLAND: Yes, thank you, Council

          4  member. I think it's unamplified. We're talking

          5  about human voices. The amplification, I think most

          6  bar and restaurant owners are quite considerate and

          7  they would not put loud speakers outside. It's when

          8  people get happy at ten, 11:00 at night and they're

          9  loud, and you can hear it a block away unamplified.

         10  And thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And thank you

         12  all.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chair, again.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         15  you, Council Member. And my thanks once again to

         16  this panel.

         17                 Marc, with regard to the boom boxes,

         18  you know, we've had a lot of discussion about that,

         19  and I think one of the reasons for going to the

         20  plainly audible standard was to have the ability to

         21  very aggressively go after them. And I think Jerry

         22  also has some philosophy on that that might, you

         23  know, be helpful.

         24                 MR. AMERUSO: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You know, to go
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          2  beyond the plainly audible, we'd have to catch them

          3  at the time they're buying their stereo.

          4                 MR. AMERUSO: But the issue I talked,

          5  if you call 9-1-1 about that, they'll refer you to

          6  3-1-1, and, of course, they're gone by then.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          8                 MR. AMERUSO: Even though it is a

          9  health hazard, falling under the health hazard, you

         10  know, framework, not a quality of life issue.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         12                 MR. AMERUSO: So that was the point I

         13  was trying to make about that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. I don't

         15  think there is going to be any movement on that.

         16                 MR. AMERUSO: Well, I wanted to put it

         17  on the record anyway.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Sure.

         19  Thank you. Thank you, Marc.

         20                 MR. AMERUSO: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. David

         22  Biderman, National Solid Waste Associate, and

         23  National Solid Waste Management Association. And I

         24  know that you have an associate with you, which is

         25  fine.
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          2                 Mr. Biderman, pleasure to see you

          3  again. Thank you. Happy to have you here today. I

          4  know you've been talking to staff and we greatly

          5  appreciate your input.

          6                 Donna will put you and your associate

          7  under oath and then you can identify your copanelist

          8  and then proceed with your testimony.

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

         10  you're about to give --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You forgot the

         12  raise the right hand.

         13                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: He was about to do

         14  it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         16                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Do you swear or

         17  affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and

         18  nothing but the truth?

         19                 MR. BIDERMAN: We do.

         20                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         21                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         23                 MR. BIDERMAN: Good afternoon,

         24  Chairman Gennaro. It's similarly good to see you

         25  again. Members of the City Council and guests, my
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          2  name is David Biderman. I'm the General Counsel of

          3  the National Solid Wastes Management Association.

          4                 I'm joined here today by Dominick

          5  Incantalupo, who is the Chairman of our New York

          6  City Chapter, who owns a carting company here in New

          7  York City and we do appreciate the opportunity to

          8  appear here today.

          9                 NSWMA is a national trade association

         10  for the private sector waste industry, and our

         11  association represents small carters, large haulers,

         12  transfer station owners, and it's a very growing

         13  presence in New York City.

         14                 NSWMA supports the overall goal of

         15  improving the quality of life in New York City by

         16  reducing noise levels, and we have been working with

         17  the New York City Department of Environmental

         18  Protection, and City Council staff to develop noise

         19  rules applicable to our industry that are

         20  reasonable, fair and achievable.

         21                 The proposed revisions set forth on

         22  page 27 of the new bill, Section 24-225 of Intro.

         23  397-A are unreasonable, unfair and not feasible and

         24  will force many carters in New York City to choose

         25  between violating the law, and not collecting their
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          2  customers' trash, and for that reason NSWMA opposes

          3  enactment of Intro. 397-A.

          4                 Now, according to our conversations

          5  with the DEP, they did not test a single private

          6  sector waste collection vehicle in developing these

          7  proposed standards. All the vehicles they tested

          8  belonged to the Department of Sanitation.

          9  Specifically DEP has advised that Sanitation's

         10  collection vehicles with compaction units are able

         11  to achieve 78 decibels at 23 feet standard in

         12  24-225(a). So, therefore, they think the private

         13  sector should also be able to do so. But this belief

         14  ignores several fundamental differences between the

         15  Sanitation Department and the private sector waste

         16  collection in New York City.

         17                 The majority of the Sanitation

         18  Department's collection involves tossing bags of

         19  residential waste into the back of a truck. Some,

         20  and a significant amount of private sector

         21  collection, involves commercial waste in metal

         22  containers, and the waste stream collected by

         23  carters is much more diverse and often noisier than

         24  what Sanitation collects.

         25                 Now, several of our members have
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          2  recently performed tests on the noise generated by

          3  the compaction of commercial waste as described in

          4  225(a). A substantial number of the vehicles with

          5  compactors tested were not able to satisfy the

          6  proposed 78 decibels at 23 feet standards. And

          7  simply put, this proposal will put carters into a

          8  no-win situation of either violating the law or not

          9  collecting a customer's trash, and this should not

         10  be the City's policy.

         11                 Now, Section 225(b) would initially

         12  require all refuse collection vehicles to satisfy an

         13  85 decibel at 35 foot standard if we're within 50

         14  feet of a residence at night.

         15                 This provision will cover the actual

         16  compaction of commercial waste, that is the crushing

         17  of metal or garbage, whatever, in the back of the

         18  truck, the lifting and emptying of waste containers,

         19  and the placing of the empty container back on the

         20  ground.

         21                 Now, NSWMA candidly doesn't know

         22  whether a few, some, most or all of the carters can

         23  satisfy the standard, because NSWMA just received

         24  that proposed language less than 48 hours ago.

         25  However, it is very unlikely that carters will be
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          2  able to satisfy the 80 decibel standard that is

          3  proposed to go into effect in 2009.

          4                 Now, this is partially because

          5  carters don't control what the customer throws away,

          6  and when a door or some other large wooden or metal

          7  object is thrown away, the compacting of that

          8  material will create a loud noise, often louder than

          9  80 decibels at 35 feet.

         10                 Further, the placement of metal

         11  containers back on the ground after they're emptied

         12  is not, regrettably, a quiet operation. And many

         13  carters will be unable to comply with the proposed

         14  standards in 24-225(b).

         15                 Now, we've had conversations with DEP

         16  about this provision and DEP made several

         17  suggestions that highlight the unreasonableness of

         18  the standards.

         19                 DEP suggested that perhaps waste

         20  collection just not take place in residential areas

         21  at night. Now, in New York City, and especially

         22  Manhattan, virtually all neighborhoods have some

         23  residences, and we've heard testimony today about

         24  the encroachments of residential neighborhoods into

         25  formerly industrial and commercial areas, if carters
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          2  shift commercial collections to the daytime, it will

          3  increase traffic on already crowded City streets.

          4  This will delay collection and increase costs to the

          5  carters.

          6                 DEP also suggested that

          7  noise-dampening paint can be put on the containers

          8  to reduce the sound associated with those metal

          9  containers. When pressed, however, DEP could not

         10  identify a single solid waste company or a local

         11  government anywhere in the United States using such

         12  paint on its containers.

         13                 In addition, our research suggests

         14  that this paint will only reduce noise by four to

         15  five decibels and the noise associated with the

         16  containers would still exceed the 80 decibel

         17  standard that would apply in 2009.

         18                 Now, here in Section 3 there had been

         19  a provision in 397-A that apparently has now been

         20  taken out in the most recent version of the bill, so

         21  I'm going to skip over Section 3.

         22                 Section 4. Now, there may be a few on

         23  the Committee or in the room who wonder why carters

         24  are unable to just purchase new and presumably

         25  quieter trucks, and explore a variety of noise
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          2  abatement technologies that might reduce the noise

          3  associated with waste collection.

          4                 This is because in New York City,

          5  unlike every other major City in the United States,

          6  there is a rate cap that limits what carters can

          7  charge their customers. This rate cap which was

          8  reduced by 20 percent more than eight years ago,

          9  prevents carters from investing into equipment that

         10  could reduce noise, as well as pollution. Unlike all

         11  of the other industry groups that would be affected

         12  by Intro. 397, carters do not have the ability to

         13  charge customers more to comply with new City rules.

         14                 If the construction company needs to

         15  spend $10,000 to comply with the new rules, they'll

         16  just add that to the cost of the project. My members

         17  don't have the ability to pass on cost increases,

         18  including compliance costs for Intro. 397-A, to

         19  their customers.

         20                 Our members have suffered through a

         21  40 percent increase in the cost of diesel fuel over

         22  the past year. There have been no adjustments to the

         23  rate cap. It's unfair and unreasonable to ask them

         24  to incur these additional costs.

         25                 Now, earlier this year with regard to
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          2  transfer stations, the Department of Sanitation

          3  revised its regulations. Now, these regulations

          4  contain specific noise standards governing transfer

          5  stations that are based on the time of day and the

          6  type of residential or other zone the facility is

          7  located. These regulations are helpfully attached as

          8  the back page of my testimony.

          9                 Transfer stations already regulated

         10  by one set of Department of Sanitation regulations

         11  should not be subject to an additional noise

         12  regulation enforced by a separate City agency. And

         13  this has been particularly true here, when the times

         14  of day set forth in the Sanitation Department's

         15  rules differ from what's proposed in 24-224(b). And

         16  also, NSWMA wants to point out that while Intro. 397

         17  proposes to use something called the L-MAX

         18  (phonetic) standard to regulate noise, the

         19  Sanitation Department regs and most other federal,

         20  state and local agencies, use a different standard,

         21  the LEQ standard, as the preferred way to measure

         22  noise.

         23                 In conclusion, we recommend that

         24  24-225 be dropped from this bill, and that DEP and

         25  NSWMA perform a comprehensive study on the real
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          2  trucks in real operating conditions to identify

          3  feasible and reasonable noise standards applicable

          4  to waste collection.

          5                 Alternatively, we urge the Committee

          6  to revise 225(a) by making it an 85 decibels at 35

          7  foot standard, consistent with 225(b). This will

          8  make the section easier to understand, easier to

          9  comply with and easier to enforce.

         10                 Second, we propose revising 225(b) to

         11  eliminate that proposed reduction from 85 decibels

         12  down to 80 decibels in 2009 to allow DEP and the

         13  industry to evaluate what noise standards and types

         14  of engineering and operational changes can feasibly

         15  be made.

         16                 The third proposal has been adopted,

         17  and I appreciate that.

         18                 Finally, we would like a section

         19  added to Intro. 397, if it's acted upon, that

         20  clarifies that transfer stations subject to

         21  Department of Sanitation's noise rules are not

         22  subject to these additional and potentially

         23  conflicting standards.

         24                 NSWMA wants to continue working with

         25  City officials to develop feasible and reasonable
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          2  noise standards. As currently written, Section

          3  24-225(a) is neither of these. It would be very

          4  vulnerable to legal challenge, and threatens the

          5  ability of carters to collect more than 10,000 tons

          6  generated by commercial customers in New York City

          7  each day.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         10  you. And I've got a question for you, I just have to

         11  consult with counsel for a minute.

         12                 Okay, here it goes: it is our

         13  understanding that the 78 decibel limit at 23 feet

         14  is an extrapolation from the 70 decibel standard at

         15  ten feet.

         16                 In your testimony you say that the 78

         17  decibel standard is not feasible; does that mean you

         18  think the current standard is unfeasible or

         19  infeasible -- unfeasible, I guess? And have you had

         20  difficulty meeting it?

         21                 MR. BIDERMAN: Well, in response to

         22  the proposed regulation, we went out and tested

         23  vehicles at the 23 foot standard, because that is

         24  what was being proposed.

         25                 I don't know with a matter of
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          2  mathematical certainty whether or not 70 at ten

          3  decibels, 70 decibels at ten feet is feasible or

          4  whether it's being enforced universally. But what I

          5  can tell you with a matter of certainty, is that

          6  half the trucks that were tested by our member

          7  companies, can't satisfy 78 at 23 feet.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, I just

          9  want to go over your conclusion again with regard

         10  what you're urging us to do.

         11                 Revise 24-225(a), making it 85

         12  decibels at 35 feet, right?

         13                 MR. BIDERMAN: Correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And how did you

         15  arrive at this standard?

         16                 MR. BIDERMAN: Well, given that 225(b)

         17  is imposing an 85 decibels at 35 foot standard, it

         18  seems appropriate for all garbage-related activities

         19  in the City to be subject to a single noise

         20  standard. It's easier for me to explain to my

         21  members, that's the standard you need to care about.

         22                 It's easier for the enforcers of this

         23  to say, okay, it's 35 feet. I don't have to look at

         24  the truck and see is it compacting, is it not

         25  compacting? Well, that's a container, so that's a
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          2  certain distance. And it's equally important because

          3  now residents or others who might complain will have

          4  a single criteria to look at and to determine

          5  whether or not they have a legitimate complaint

          6  about a garbage collection vehicle.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. And revise

          8  24-225(b) by eliminating proposed reduction, okay,

          9  so to 80 decibel in 2009, okay.

         10                 Okay, the counsel just wanted to make

         11  me aware of some fine print in the section which

         12  kind of speaks to it. It could theoretically be

         13  postponed for three years if the industry makes a

         14  showing that the best management practices will not

         15  result in the reduction set forth in the bill.

         16                 MR. BIDERMAN: And what you said was

         17  the key word, "theoretically."

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         19                 MR. BIDERMAN: Right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just trying to

         21  get information back and forth.

         22                 MR. BIDERMAN: Sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And three, that

         24  was dropped anyway, right?

         25                 MR. BIDERMAN: That's correct. So,
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          2  number four.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Four. Oh, that's

          4  the different entities, each proposing standards

          5  possibly conflicting.

          6                 MR. BIDERMAN: That is correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I just

          8  want a thorough understanding of what your position

          9  is.

         10                 I'd also like to commend you just

         11  from like a process point of view of coming forward

         12  and putting forth concise testimony that talks about

         13  what things you have problems with and just what the

         14  problems are and this is what we think would be a

         15  better way to do things specifically, you know,

         16  which you've outlined which is terrific.

         17                 Thank you. Thank you once again, for

         18  being here, and we'll be talking, okay?

         19                 MR. BIDERMAN: Sure.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet. Yes,

         22  that will be all. Thank you.

         23                 Okay, we'll hear from some folks in

         24  the restaurant business. Jessie Feldman of Tony

         25  DiNapoli Restaurant; Herb Wetanson, Dallas Barbeque;
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          2  Jeffrey, I can't make out the last name, from China

          3  Grill; Ariel Palitz from Sutra Lounge.

          4                 Okay, it looks like you have the

          5  panel all to yourself, okay? Try the one on the

          6  right. I think that's the one that Mr. Biderman was

          7  just speaking into.

          8                 And what we'll do is Donna will put

          9  you under oath and then you can proceed with your

         10  statement.

         11                 MS. PALITZ: Thank you.

         12                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         13  right hand.

         14                 In the testimony that you're about to

         15  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         16  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         17                 MS. PALITZ: I do.

         18                 (Witness sworn.)

         19                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You have to

         21  state your name for the record.

         22                 MS. PALITZ: Oh. Ariel Palitz.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         24                 MS. PALITZ: I lost my voice. I

         25  apologize for that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          3                 MS. PALITZ: And thank you for the

          4  opportunity to be here.

          5                 I chose to come down as a

          6  representative of a partner and operator of a

          7  nightlife establishment that this particular address

          8  is actually on First Avenue between First and Second

          9  Street, it's been a nightlife establishment for over

         10  20 years. A lot of the problems that I have are

         11  actually inherited problems.

         12                 But I think the thing that pretty

         13  much sets me apart at this moment from many of the

         14  other places is the fact that in July, when Eva

         15  Moskowitz put the top ten list together of the

         16  noisiest bars in New York, that Sutra Lounge was

         17  number one. And this was not because we were the

         18  loudest bar in New York. In fact, in The Post

         19  article in which this list came out, I won't use

         20  names, but the head Inspector of the 9th Precinct at

         21  the time was quoted in that same article saying that

         22  by no means were we the loudest in the East Village

         23  or New York for that matter. And, so, I felt

         24  compelled to come down here to explain to you that

         25  the monitoring system that determines who is noisy,
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          2  who is troublesome, who is in need of reprimand

          3  isn't necessarily accurate. In fact, may be

          4  completely off.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What is I guess

          6  implied by your statement is that, although you

          7  didn't state it directly, is that you were subject

          8  to disproportionate enforcement?

          9                 MS. PALITZ:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: People went to

         11  your establishment, regulators went to your

         12  establishment more than they go to others, and

         13  therefore you were cited more than they are?

         14                 MS. PALITZ: No.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's not what

         16  you mean?

         17                 MS. PALITZ: We received more

         18  telephone calls, complaints, from neighbors to

         19  neighbors, campaigned neighbors, that by all the

         20  sources and powers that be, the Police Department,

         21  community board, everyone realized that these two

         22  particular neighbors were abusing the 3-1-1 call

         23  system in calling anonymously, although writing

         24  letters and making themselves known other ways, they

         25  were calling at least ten times a night each, and

                                                            190

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  the Police Department are being forced, even though

          3  they know that these neighbors are not necessarily

          4  issuing justifiable complaints, they still come

          5  every single night and tell us to turn it down. Turn

          6  it down. Turn it down. Turn it down. We're going to

          7  confiscate your equipment if you don't turn it down.

          8  And I'm like, but hasn't it already been established

          9  that these people -- I mean, I'd like to digress for

         10  a moment. At the very beginning when I first started

         11  to operate this place, and I realized that there was

         12  a sound issue or complaint issue, I actually

         13  employed Alan from Acoustilog, who testified here

         14  today, to assess my sound problem.

         15                 I called the Police Department myself

         16  and arranged meetings with Acoustilog, the head of

         17  the 9th Precinct and the neighbors to go in and do

         18  decibel checks. Even though these decibel checks

         19  were justifiable, I still proceeded to put in nearly

         20  $17,000 worth of soundproofing that I couldn't

         21  really exactly afford, but I couldn't afford not to,

         22  hoping in good faith that it would show that we were

         23  willing to do what we had to.

         24                 We even did soundproofing over an air

         25  conditioning unit in the back that another isolated
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          2  neighbor was writing tens of letters to the

          3  community board over.

          4                 Completed all of those things, the

          5  soundproofing, audio consulting and to this day I

          6  still get nightly visits from the Police Department,

          7  I get calls from the State Liquor Authority

          8  threatening to revoke my liquor license. At the last

          9  community board, one of the members of the opposing

         10  parties said, you know, if the number one bar in New

         11  York, noisest bar in New York, can still have their

         12  liquor license, what hope do we have?

         13                 And my point is, if one of the top

         14  bar owners in New York, you know, who is doing

         15  everything in their power to comply to work with the

         16  Police Department and their neighbors, has no relief

         17  whatsoever, what hope do we have? And I think that,

         18  you know, obviously it's important to have checks

         19  and balances and rules and regulations. We're not

         20  here to torture our neighbors, we're here to

         21  entertain and to provide a source of enjoyment. And

         22  even though we have a legal business, many times I

         23  feel like a criminal. I mean, I understand that the

         24  neighbors are feeling tortured by the sound, but

         25  imagine trying to run a business that you're
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          2  employing people that rely on you and every day

          3  you're not exactly sure if you're going to make it,

          4  even though you're complying. And I think that's my

          5  number one frustration, that I know that there are

          6  bar owners and there are businesses that are

          7  willing, more than willing, without invitation, I

          8  wasn't asked by anyone to put the soundproofing in,

          9  I did it because I don't want to torture anyone, you

         10  know?

         11                 I think that we just need to make

         12  sure it's fair. That's all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Let me say

         14  this, and I don't want to put, you know, words in

         15  the mouth of your sort of sworn statement, but what

         16  I sort of glean from your testimony is,

         17  notwithstanding the fact that you met with City

         18  officials, the Police Department, hire an expert and

         19  essentially wanted to know what you could do to

         20  comply, soundproof, or whatever, you're actually

         21  like looking for a standard that you could just meet

         22  --

         23                 MS. PALITZ: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- And be done

         25  with it.
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          2                 MS. PALITZ: That would be good. As

          3  long as it's realistic.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You are subject,

          5  due to repeated complaints, by frequent arbitrary

          6  subjective summonses, and when you're given

          7  summonses, what are those summonses for? They don't

          8  use metering equipment to do it, they just get you,

          9  they just cite you on the --

         10                 MS. PALITZ: For the most part we're

         11  not summoned. For the most part.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What's that?

         13                 MS. PALITZ: For the most part we are

         14  not summoned. What winds up happening is, is that

         15  the Police Department responds to every single call,

         16  and then they'll come in and they'll say it's

         17  unfounded.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. But don't

         19  you get a lot of violations if because of this you

         20  racked up a lot of violations?

         21                 MS. PALITZ: No. No, the violations

         22  that we get --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How did you

         24  attain the designation of being like the noisiest

         25  bar?
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          2                 MS. PALITZ: Because of 3-1-1 calls.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see.

          4                 MS. PALITZ: That was what Eva

          5  Moskowitz failed to do, which was what made that

          6  list so incredibly --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It was based on

          8  complaints, not actual violations.

          9                 MS. PALITZ: Not actual violations.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How many are you

         11  --

         12                 MS. PALITZ: 235 calls in the year.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. But do you

         14  still get violations written to your establishment?

         15                 MS. PALITZ: Well, that's what this

         16  particular hearing isn't addressing, is that the

         17  Noise Codes is only part and parcel to a much

         18  larger, what seems to be organized and very

         19  deliberate campaign to over-regulate and make

         20  nightlife industry owners scared for their

         21  businesses.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think it's

         23  just a case of government getting a lot of

         24  complaints and wanting to be responsive to people

         25  who are making complaints.
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          2                 MS. PALITZ: Well, it's not just from

          3  ours.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I think what

          5  sort of cries out here is for a clear objective

          6  standard that business people like yourself would

          7  simply have to meet and --

          8                 MS. PALITZ: We would love that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And that would

         10  be that.

         11                 Okay, you've furnished very, very

         12  compelling testimony, and I'm very grateful to have

         13  had the opportunity to hear what you had to say.

         14                 MS. PALITZ: Thank you for hearing me.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you for

         16  coming.

         17                 We'll have the next panel of people

         18  from the local community, from block associations,

         19  and so they may not be aware of the fact that

         20  they're going to be paneled with each other, but I'd

         21  like to ask people to come forward when their name

         22  is called.

         23                 Veronika Couant.  I can't make out

         24  the last name. Couant? It looks like Amou

         25  Prashantini from Manhattan Community Board 5. Jean
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          2  Grillo. Ron Barney. And Tim Lannan.

          3                 Let me just reiterate what I said

          4  earlier.

          5                 Welcome. Thank you all very much for

          6  being here and for your patience. As I mentioned

          7  when Mr. Biderman was up, the types of testimony

          8  that are most relevant, being that this is a

          9  legislative hearing is, this is what we agree with

         10  in the bill, this is what we don't agree with in the

         11  bill, this is what we agree with, here's how to make

         12  it better, here's what we disagree with, is why we

         13  should get rid of it.

         14                 You know, global statements about

         15  noise being bad and peace being good, you know,

         16  doesn't help us so much in the legislative process.

         17  You know, no one here likes noise, and so that's a

         18  given. So, to the extent that, you know, no one is

         19  on the clock, but you know, to the extent that the

         20  comments can be paired specifically to this piece of

         21  legislation, and what is good or bad about it, or if

         22  you have a real problem, what the process. I think

         23  that that's fair as well. But focused, insightful

         24  sort of surgical, if you will, focused comments are

         25  of the most help to us.
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          2                 With that being said, I guess we'll

          3  take in any order that we have that I called the

          4  panel.

          5                 Oh, yes, Donna reminded me that

          6  you're not yet sworn in, so we'll do that and then

          7  we'll commence.

          8                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          9  right hands.

         10                 In the testimony that you're about to

         11  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         12  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         13                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         14                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, thank you.

         16                 Okay, and I guess we'll start with

         17  Veronika. I'll call her first, and hopefully your

         18  microphone is working well. And of course, everyone

         19  who testifies will --

         20                 MS. COUANT: Can you hear me?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You see there's

         22  only about an inch and a half between my mouth and

         23  the --

         24                 MS. COUANT: Yes. Can people hear me?

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 My name is Veronika Couant. I am

          3  President of the West 54th 55th Street Block

          4  Association, located in Midtown Manhattan, between

          5  Fifth and Sixth Avenues in a mixed commercial

          6  residential neighborhood.

          7                 Several of us came. Some had to leave

          8  to testify, others have sent written testimonies,

          9  which I'll enclose.

         10                 A survey the Block Association did

         11  last year found noise our top concern and priority,

         12  therefore, we welcome the revision of the old Noise

         13  Code written in 1972. We got hold of both versions,

         14  studied them and spent several months working on our

         15  recommendations for the proposed Noise Code.

         16                 In October 2005, Community Board 5,

         17  with whom we had worked, passed a resolution in

         18  support of some of our recommendations for amending

         19  Intro. 397-A. We found out recently by accident

         20  about the Mayor's decision to bring the bill to the

         21  present Council for a vote this year. No City

         22  official or community board or anyone informed us.

         23  There was no public announcement who else have been

         24  involved in this issue. Only yesterday afternoon did

         25  I receive electronically the latest amended 50 pages
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          2  long version of the bill, too late to allow us to

          3  make further changes.

          4                 This amended bill is not ready for a

          5  vote yet. It needs more work, and adequate public

          6  hearings. The latest version might serve industry

          7  and business as well, but it doesn't have a single

          8  improvement over the July 2004 version for us

          9  residents living, working and paying taxes, and

         10  voting in New York City.

         11                 I recommend and request that you

         12  postpone voting on this bill until next year, set

         13  public hearings well ahead of time, inform

         14  residents, allow a healthy public discussion about

         15  our needs and write a balanced Noise Code which will

         16  make a difference to us.

         17                 Our requests for amending the

         18  proposed Noise Code are before you today. We would

         19  like to request to change the policy from

         20  accommodating primary leaders who work and do

         21  business in the City, to also include those who live

         22  and work here.

         23                 We would like to have mixed

         24  commercial and residential areas and there are

         25  thousands and thousands of these, to be treated as

                                                            200

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  residential during nights, weekends and holidays.

          3                 We also request whenever possible to

          4  place a noise barrier between a noise source and

          5  residents.

          6                 Our top priorities to have noise-free

          7  nights, allowing us our right to sleep. Sleep

          8  deprivation is a public health issue.

          9                 We recommend for residential and

         10  mixed commercial residential neighborhoods the

         11  following:

         12                 Refuse collection vehicles, limit

         13  hours of operation to 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. and

         14  lower the maximum sound limit to back what it was 33

         15  years ago, 70 decibels at ten foot distance. Ten

         16  feet distance.

         17                 Take construction debris compacting

         18  vehicles as part of construction, which they are,

         19  limit hours to that of construction weekdays 7:00

         20  a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

         21                 Do not allow after-hour construction,

         22  unless it is an emergency in commercial residential

         23  neighborhoods where it all applies.

         24                 Set a response time to loose steel

         25  plate complaints.
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          2                 Regulate aggregate noise levels from

          3  circulation devices considering multiple lots, as

          4  well as what comes from a single lot.

          5                 We recommend also to have a public

          6  representation on the Plan Advisory Committee, which

          7  you discussed earlier. The public should be

          8  represented.

          9                 Council Member Gennaro received the

         10  folder of documents, he has more than everybody

         11  else, in support of our recommendations.

         12                 According to a computerized 3-1-1

         13  database printout, in 2005, Community Board 5 was

         14  among the noisest in the City, and our block was on

         15  the top of that. Quieter New York at night is our

         16  number one goal, and quieter New York 24 times seven

         17  is our long-term goal.

         18                 We believe New York could be made

         19  quieter.

         20                 Thank you for listening, and please

         21  support our needs by making the bill into one which

         22  really addresses and solves our most pressing noise

         23  complaints and concerns. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you so much.
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          2                 MS. COUANT: I have a summary which

          3  gives a brief summary in a tabulated form, so it's

          4  easy to see what the present bills do and also what

          5  our recommendations are. It's tabulated for you to

          6  make it easiest, as well as we have a list of

          7  recommendations written up for the community board.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          9                 MS. COUANT: And much more for you.

         10  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you so

         12  much.

         13                 Ms. Prashantini.

         14                 MS. PRASHANTINI: Hi.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me make sure

         16  I have -- do you have a written statement?

         17                 MS. PRASHANTINI: Yes, I do.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Make sure

         19  I get it before you proceed. I don't have it. Oh,

         20  guess what, I had it. Sorry. I just wanted to make

         21  sure I had it before you proceeded. Thank you.

         22                 Please state your name for the record

         23  and continue with your testimony.

         24                 MS. PRASHANTINI: My name is Ammu

         25  Prashantini, and I'm representing the Manhattan
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          2  Community Board 5, which covers Midtown Manhattan.

          3                 At a monthly meeting of Community

          4  Board 5 on Thursday, October 20th, 2005, the Board

          5  passed the following resolution recommending

          6  approval by a vote of 27 in favor, zero opposed and

          7  one abstention. The one abstention is the Chair who

          8  abstains from every vote, so this resolution, for

          9  all intents and purposes, passed unanimously.

         10                 Whereas, noise is a problem in New

         11  York City in Community Board 5, and studies have

         12  shown excessive noise impacts the health of

         13  residents and their quality of life; and

         14                 Whereas, New York City was one of the

         15  first cities in the nation to adopt a Noise Code in

         16  1972, and that Noise Code has not been updated since

         17  its enactment; and

         18                 Whereas, the Mayor and reports from

         19  3-1-1 have identified noise as one of the major

         20  quality of life issues in the City, and undertaken a

         21  revision of the Noise Code, which has been

         22  introduced in the City Council as Intro. No. 397;

         23  and

         24                 Whereas, the supervision in most

         25  instances lowers the decibel level for ambient noise
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          2  and would help address the noise problems many

          3  communities face; and

          4                 Whereas: Specifics of the proposed

          5  Noise Code include:

          6                 1) Raising the level of noise

          7  permitted in some cases, including increasing trash

          8  collection compactors from 70 decibels to 78

          9  decibels.

         10                 2) Limiting most construction and

         11  construction-related noise from 10:00 p.m. to 7:00

         12  a.m.

         13                 3) Lowering the decibel level for

         14  building air conditioning and heating units from 45

         15  decibels to 42 decibels, for all units on the

         16  building; and

         17                 4) Establishing a commission to

         18  examine and make recommendations on solutions to

         19  airport Rapid Transit and railroad noise within two

         20  yeas.

         21                 Whereas, Community Board 5 believes

         22  that the following changes need to be made to

         23  strengthen the Noise Code:

         24                 1) return the permitted noise level

         25  for trash collection compactors to 70 decibels,
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          2  rather than the proposed 78 decibels.

          3                 2) Prohibit trash compacting and

          4  dumpster drops and pick-ups from 10:00 p.m. to 7:00

          5  a.m., except in emergency conditions.

          6                 3) Add car alarms to the study of

          7  airport, Rapid Transit and railroad noise.

          8                 4) Include standards to reduce street

          9  traffic noise, including late night street traffic

         10  construction and L fitting traffic gradings and

         11  plates, which should prominently indicate who placed

         12  the plates; and

         13                 5) Include standards to monitor and

         14  reduce noise from late-night crowds dispersing from

         15  establishments and loud car radios.

         16                 Whereas, enforcement of the Noise

         17  Code is a key element towards effectiveness, and we

         18  encourage that the Department of Environmental

         19  Protection provide adequate resources for this.

         20                 Therefore, be it resolved, Community

         21  Board 5 supports enactment of a new Noise Code with

         22  the above recommended changes.

         23                 Thank you for the opportunity for me

         24  to comment on this important piece of legislation.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you so
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          2  much.

          3                 Again, once again, very, very concise

          4  testimony. This is, as I said, this is the type of

          5  testimony which really is most helpful to us and I'm

          6  very grateful to you.

          7                 Jean Grillo.

          8                 MS. GRILLO: Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Jean Grillo. Do

         10  you have a statement, Ms. Grillo?

         11                 MS. GRILLO: I e-mailed it to Richard

         12  Colon yesterday.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         14                 I guess we either don't have it or

         15  didn't reproduce it.

         16                 I'll just pay close attention. I'll

         17  take my glasses off.

         18                 MS. GRILLO: Just for purposes of

         19  identification, I am the District Leader for the

         20  Downtown Independent Democrats for Assembly District

         21  66, Part B.

         22                 I am also a Community Board 1 public

         23  member, and I am the 33-year president of the Duane

         24  Street Block Association.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.
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          2                 MS. GRILLO: In the 30 years I have

          3  lived and worked in Lower Manhattan, the biggest,

          4  most disruptive issue to my neighbors, my community

          5  board and Duane Street Block Association has been

          6  noise pollution. I want to address two issues; rowdy

          7  buildings and rowdy bars.

          8                 We have seen an increase in both

          9  residential and commercial buildings downtown with

         10  huge walls of air conditioning units added to those

         11  buildings. Just one example. On Duane Street where I

         12  live between Church and Broadway, there was a lovely

         13  park, which was part of a plaza bonus for the

         14  52-story Tribeca Tower. Sadly, between April and

         15  November, no one can sit in the park, because we are

         16  drowned in a blast of noise coming from 52 stories

         17  of individual air conditions raining down on that

         18  park.

         19                 This is a 24-hour war, seven months

         20  of the year, and this is something that affects

         21  quality of life.

         22                 Next, to me, without proper

         23  legislation mandating sound barriers on these air

         24  conditioning units, the entire City of New York will

         25  be buried under an avalanche of noise, not just from
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          2  residential buildings, but I want to point out, and

          3  Tim will speak about 60 Hudson Street, but even

          4  commercial buildings where there is no baffling on

          5  those air conditioners, and the roar on street level

          6  is constant and it does affect how you sleep and how

          7  you think.

          8                 Next, the building noise, noise from

          9  rowdy bars is the single biggest complaint we get on

         10  Community Board 1's quality of life and Tribeca

         11  committees, where I am a member. We get more people

         12  turning out against new liquor licenses, more for

         13  the noise of the club than for any other reason.

         14                 Right now there is absolutely no way

         15  to pressure the SLA to shut down rowdy bars. I'm not

         16  sure your new legislation is going to change that.

         17  These bars make a lot of money, they're going to pay

         18  those fines.

         19                 In the past we used to cite the two

         20  murder minimum (sic), in order to get the SLA to

         21  act, but that number doesn't seem to count anymore.

         22                 Just some points, personally from

         23  what I've heard today in terms of how to improve, I

         24  thank you for your efforts, and I thank you for the

         25  time that you've all spent on this. There are a
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          2  couple of key points, however.

          3                 First of all, Commissioner Lloyd,

          4  when she ended her presentation, made the sentence

          5  "This bill is the best thinking of our staff and

          6  people operating businesses."

          7                 She never mentioned hearing from

          8  community boards or citizens.

          9                 I think that's a huge oversight, and

         10  that was very troubling to me, that she would single

         11  out her staff and businesses.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Not to put words

         13  in the Commissioner's mouth, but I believe that what

         14  she probably meant is that her staff specifically

         15  and government generally does its best to sort of

         16  speak for the people, and so I think that's --

         17                 MS. GRILLO: Well, I'm telling you

         18  what she said and what I heard.

         19                 I am very worried about the rush to

         20  vote on this, and I'm very fearful of unintended

         21  consequences.

         22                 First of all, we must make sure that

         23  the bill retains things that worked in the past. I

         24  found something on 42, page 42, that I think

         25  continues the one provision that really works, which
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          2  is the prevention of businesses from attaching

          3  speakers to their stores to blast out music and

          4  attraction and whatever. I'm not sure. I think it is

          5  but it's not very clear. We need a clear enforcement

          6  and measurement of --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just so you

          8  know, that is my understanding of what it does. So

          9  you read that correctly.

         10                 MS. GRILLO: Well, I am very

         11  concerned, because that's the one thing that really

         12  works downtown. It made a huge difference in terms

         13  of being able to live and work together by making

         14  sure that nobody is allowed to put those things on

         15  their buildings or on their doorways.

         16                 We need a clear enforcement and

         17  measurement of air conditioning noise as a unit, so

         18  that -- and there has to be one single source we can

         19  go to, if it's the management of the building, the

         20  owner of the apartment house, you cannot be asked to

         21  attack individual residents for their air

         22  conditioners. If you've got a rental agency and

         23  they're allowing very noisy air conditioners or

         24  ventilation equipment, whether it's business or

         25  residential, there's got to be a single source we
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          2  can go to to say you're in violation, rather than

          3  having to attack the individual residents

          4  themselves.

          5                 I would suggest in terms of the bars

          6  and the rowdy bars, what's the point of 3-1-1 if

          7  nobody takes those complaints into account? I will

          8  say to the woman who spoke just before us, as

          9  president of my block association, my name tended to

         10  be the one that was on those 3-1-1 calls, because

         11  nine people had called me. And I think the fact that

         12  one or two people are calling, and they're taking

         13  the time to do that, give those people some credit.

         14  Nobody wants to do this. I don't want to be up 4:00

         15  in the morning calling 3-1-1 saying this bar is

         16  noisy. So, the fact that it's one or two people

         17  should not in any way, if she 238 calls, I'm

         18  suggesting as part of this law, or maybe further

         19  activity for this City Council, is a two-tier system

         20  for liquor licenses, where you have restaurants that

         21  close at 12:00, they're not a problem, we have no

         22  trouble renewing those licenses --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This is handled

         24  by the State. The State Liquor Authority.

         25                 MS. GRILLO: Well, I understand it's a
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          2  State issue, but I would love the City Council to

          3  talk to the SLA and say you need to look at

          4  restaurants that close at 12:00, they're not a

          5  problem, versus the bars, the activity is one to

          6  four a.m., and no matter what kind of meter you

          7  bring, no matter what kind of police activity, they

          8  are going to yes you to death. They do it at all our

          9  community board meetings and they go on and they pay

         10  their fines. They make too much money. It's only the

         11  threat of losing that liquor license that really

         12  makes them quiet their bars.

         13                 The last thing I want to say is, this

         14  is not a perfect code revision. I have some real

         15  problems with how it's being rushed; however, I

         16  strongly urge that we support a new Noise Code, but

         17  I urge that the local community boards be given a

         18  chance going forward to have more of a say before

         19  it's finally approved.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         22                 MS. GRILLO: Oh, I have to add one

         23  quick thing.

         24                 Someone from, a citizen from Battery

         25  Park City handed me this sheet of paper --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Anyone who wants

          3  to testify is free to sign up to do so. I won't let

          4  you testify on behalf of anybody else.

          5                 MS. GRILLO: Well, can I add then, as

          6  a community board quality of life person, member, we

          7  have heard complaints about fireworks along the

          8  River, activities along the River.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Anybody who

         10  wants to testify is more than free to sign up.

         11                 MS. GRILLO: People had 24 hours, I

         12  have a kid just coming out of the hospital, I would

         13  love not to be here, I would love to be with her,

         14  this woman had to go back to her job. You gave us,

         15  what, a few hours today? This is our first chance in

         16  30 years? I'm very disappointed we haven't had more

         17  time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Duly noted. I'm

         19  sorry.

         20                 Mr. Rob Barney from West 8th Block

         21  Association.

         22                 MR. BARNEY: Yes. My name is Ron

         23  Barney.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have a

         25  written statement?
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          2                 MR. BARNEY: I do. I'm going to depart

          3  from it, though. Five hours is a lot of time to

          4  edit.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I wanted to make

          6  sure that I had your statement. Did you hand that --

          7                 MR. BARNEY: It's part of an envelope

          8  that says "Motorcycle Noise," or something like that

          9  on it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Oh, it's a

         11  package?

         12                 MR. BARNEY: It's part of a package.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Okay, I

         14  just wanted to make sure I had it before you

         15  commenced.

         16                 Please.

         17                 MR. BARNEY: Okay. My name is Ron

         18  Barney, and I thank you for this opportunity, and I

         19  also thank Veronika Couant for sending me 397-A last

         20  night.

         21                 I live at 55 West 8th Street in

         22  Manhattan, and I am co-chair of the West 8th Street

         23  Block Association. There are several people from our

         24  neighborhood and our block here today, and we have

         25  brought written testimony from several others. All
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          2  of us are generally in favor of the Mayor's Noise

          3  Bill, but we note that in the new version 397-A,

          4  neither this section dealing with motorcycle noise,

          5  nor the one defining audible, has been changed.

          6                 We anxiously seek your support for

          7  the amendments to the bill that Councilman Gerson is

          8  suggesting with respect to motorcycle noise.

          9                 In May of this year we requested two

         10  amendments to the proposed code sending a carefully

         11  documented letter to all of you, as well as to all

         12  of the bill's sponsors, the Mayor and various other

         13  officials. We asked for a reduction in the distance

         14  of the plainly audible at 200 feet standard that the

         15  bill substitutes for decibel meter readings with

         16  regard to motorcycles, and we asked that all members

         17  of groups of motorcycles be penalized if the group

         18  makes aggregate sound above a certain level.

         19                 We showed that these changes were

         20  precedented by the codes of other municipalities and

         21  we showed that there was support for our request,

         22  both from two community boards, community

         23  organizations, and very many individuals here in the

         24  City.

         25                 We hope you thought about what we

                                                            216

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  suggested. We never heard back from you and we are

          3  afraid, considering the pressure you must be under,

          4  to pass this bill, and despite your assurances to

          5  the contrary today, you may feel you must now just

          6  rubberstamp the language that you have been given

          7  without considering our issues further.

          8                 Councilman Gerson has drafted

          9  amendments to the Mayor's bill that incorporate our

         10  suggestions and add others. It is encouraging to see

         11  thoughtful level of discourse shown by the Committee

         12  today. We hope the whole Committee will take the

         13  time to read his amendments, let him explain them,

         14  and give them full consideration. We think you will

         15  see that he is suggesting real and positive

         16  improvements.

         17                 Thank you for your consideration.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         19  you, Mr. Barney.

         20                 And Mr. Lannan, is that right?

         21                 MR. LANNAN: Right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. And I have

         23  your statement right here.

         24                 MR. LANNAN: Great.

         25                 I'm Tim Lannan. Thank you, Mr. Chair,
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          2  Committee and Council members, and fellow members

          3  against noise. I'm president of a small neighborhood

          4  group called Neighbors Against Noise and we've been

          5  working since the mid-'90s against noxious odors,

          6  incessant sounds and emissions in Tribeca.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're the 60

          8  Hudson guy?

          9                 MR. LANNAN: I'm the 60 Hudson guy.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: In January you

         11  were here.

         12                 MR. LANNAN: I was.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. And

         14  didn't I direct DEP to talk to you. Like right at

         15  the hearing, didn't I do one of those things?

         16                 MR. LANNAN: You had mentioned that at

         17  the hearing, it has not happened since.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         19                 Again, I'm going out of turn here but

         20  I remember you.

         21                 MR. LANNAN: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Did you talk to

         23  DEP at the hearing?

         24                 MR. LANNAN: We have not been involved

         25  in the process since January of last year.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. I mean,

          3  at the hearing did you have the opportunity? I

          4  recall myself --

          5                 MR. LANNAN: Other than a side bar,

          6  no.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I recall either

          8  I asked you to talk to DEP or asked DEP to talk to

          9  you. I wanted to get you guys together.

         10                 MR. LANNAN: No. That said, DEP and

         11  Jerry Kelpin specifically are very aware of 60

         12  Hudson.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. All right.

         14                 MR. LANNAN: I will give them that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I do remember

         16  you, for what that's worth to you, but please

         17  continue.

         18                 MR. LANNAN: I'm going to direct my

         19  comments specifically only to one section of the

         20  bill, which is 24-227, and in deference to time I'm

         21  going to skip my statement, just sort of cut to the

         22  chase.

         23                 But 227 when we looked at it in

         24  January was actually in pretty good shape and needed

         25  a little tweaking. Since then it's actually headed
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          2  in the wrong direction, and in my opinion, it's been

          3  pretty much completely gutted. And having listened

          4  to the conversations here today, it's not

          5  surprising, since by what I've heard the building

          6  trades, the real estate interests have actually had

          7  a role in the conversation since then, whereas my

          8  group and others like us I don't think have. And

          9  given the way 24-227 has been rewritten, I suspect

         10  it could have been written by the owners of 60

         11  Hudson Street.

         12                 You know, there is a need to hold

         13  buildings accountable for the aggregate noise

         14  produced by the building, which was the original

         15  intent of this section, and the shift to making

         16  individual tenants within the building accountable

         17  will not solve the problem any more than the current

         18  code has.

         19                 The big problem is it's going to be

         20  impossible to measure and impossible to enforce.

         21                 The current code holds each

         22  individual piece of equipment accountable. The

         23  reason they've never been able to cite 60 Hudson

         24  Street is because the owners of the building, the

         25  tenants of the building claim a sensitive operation.
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          2  To actually measure the building we would have to

          3  shut off every piece of equipment in the building

          4  and measure the impact of that piece or equipment.

          5  The same problem is going to exist even more so if

          6  the criteria shifts from piece of equipment to

          7  tenant instead of a building as a whole.

          8                 The only way they're going to be able

          9  to measure whether one tenant produces 50 decibels

         10  or more sound is to shut off everything else in the

         11  building.

         12                 60 Hudson is going to make the same

         13  argument we've always made. We've got sensitive

         14  equipment, we can't shut out and to go

         15  tenant-by-tenant in the building that has 30 some

         16  tenants is virtually impossible to cite.

         17                 The only way the Noise Code is ever

         18  going to work in this section is to actually hold

         19  the building accountable for the aggregate noise

         20  produced by that building.

         21                 You know, the second piece of this

         22  that I think is really clear is even if it's

         23  possible to measure, the way noise works, one tenant

         24  produces 50 decibels, another tenant produces 50

         25  decibels, and ten more tenants produce 50 decibels,
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          2  you're way in excess of 70 decibels.

          3                 We already have a building that is

          4  operating inside people's apartments across the

          5  street and in excess of 70, sometimes 75 decibels.

          6  It is untenable, those of you that read the New York

          7  Times yesterday, understand that this kind of

          8  sustained noise, poses a health hazard and increases

          9  the risk of heart attacks. And we now have studies

         10  that prove this.

         11                 You know, if DEP really thinks they

         12  can enforce this, this building is six blocks from

         13  here, they can go over this afternoon and actually

         14  see if they can get the building to shut down so

         15  they can measure a tenant at a time. It is not going

         16  to happen under this law any more than it's happened

         17  under the previous law.

         18                 So, I really urge you to return to

         19  the building standard, and I actually think this

         20  section should really be called building noise

         21  rather than air circulation, because it sort of

         22  brings me to my next point that it really needs to,

         23  as other speakers have said, to cover all equipment

         24  in the building. There is equipment in these

         25  buildings, especially in this building, emergency
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          2  generators, but other equipment produces noise and

          3  adds to the aggregate noise level. So what we really

          4  need is a standard that holds the building

          5  accountable for all noise generated within that

          6  building, and I think need to guarantee that the

          7  total noise level be reduced to a reasonable time, a

          8  reasonable level within a certain period of time. So

          9  really to go back to what the original intent of

         10  this section was, which is to hold building

         11  accountable for the aggregate noise produced by that

         12  building, and then look at what really is a

         13  reasonable phase-in time.

         14                 One of the original problems with the

         15  law was that there was a provision that buildings in

         16  excess of the 50 decibel be required to reduce noise

         17  by five decibels within a year without the provision

         18  that they ultimately come down to 50 decibels, and

         19  so that is a provision that needs to be in there.

         20  Whatever period of time that takes, set the limit,

         21  begin to work toward that limit. But certainly the

         22  way it's currently written, a tenant at a time,

         23  you're going to have buildings, my suspicion is that

         24  60 Hudson is probably currently in compliance with

         25  this, if you actually go tenant-by-tenant. I'd be
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          2  surprised. We could go over and measure and see, but

          3  I would be surprised if this solves the problem.

          4                 So, I think it needs to be

          5  enforceable, it needs to address the building as a

          6  whole, and I also think DEP needs the tools to

          7  actually enforce this and the first tool is a Noise

          8  Code that's going to let them do that.

          9                 So, I commend you for taking the time

         10  to get this bill right. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         12  you, Mr. Lannan. Thank you all.

         13                 Council Member Gerson has a question,

         14  who will go right after me.

         15                 With respect to Section 227, I just

         16  want to on the record direct the Counsel to the

         17  Committee to go with me after the hearing evolution

         18  of Section 227 from how it was originally proposed

         19  in the bill to where it is now, and what sort of

         20  drove the evolution; was it new concerns? Was it

         21  practical concerns? Was it the testimony? What was

         22  it? So, you have my commitment that I'll certainly

         23  look at 227 and how that evolved and why that

         24  evolved. And of course, the rest of your testimony,

         25  and everyone else's testimony, including the
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          2  motorcycle issues, Mr. Barney, so thank you all very

          3  much for giving so freely of your time. I know there

          4  are other places that you would rather be but you

          5  are choosing to serve the City by giving of your

          6  time and coming here today, and we appreciate it

          7  from all of you.

          8                 Thank you. Thank you very much.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Jim?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, pardon me.

         11  Pardon me. I didn't mean to dismiss the panel. I had

         12  a senior moment. Council Member Gerson has a

         13  question.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Just a

         15  quickie. A couple of you have mentioned it. Metal

         16  plating, which makes noise as traffic passes over

         17  it, just kind of a quick table consensus. Is that in

         18  fact a serious source of excessive noise which

         19  demands direct consideration in the Noise Code?

         20                 MS. GRILLO: Yes, and it's very

         21  fixable.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, because

         23  that is part of our amendments that we're pushing.

         24                 I just want to, Mr. Chair, assure my

         25  community and anyone else that the Chair of this
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          2  Committee I am confident will not rubber stamp

          3  anything, and that I expect that we will receive due

          4  deliberation in consideration over all the points

          5  raised, and certainly the Chair enjoys my

          6  confidence, and I hope that expect the results will

          7  reflect that confidence with adequate time given to

          8  full thought for all of the provisions which need to

          9  be considered.

         10                 MS. GRILLO: Alan, somebody else

         11  mentioned earlier today, and it's something that I

         12  think you need me to add, and that is an annual

         13  updated review of everything that's in here, because

         14  it's been so rushed, and there's so much that can be

         15  made better, and if at least we could go away today

         16  feeling that whatever is being rushed through gets a

         17  look-see in a year's time, it gives us a year to,

         18  you know, respond or get our hearings together, that

         19  would be a big help.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I think that's

         21  a good point. I'm certainly going to support that. I

         22  think that was Dr. Bronzaft's point and others, and

         23  I think it's good timing and appropriate that you

         24  underscore that. I think you're absolutely right

         25  with that.
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          2                 I thank all of you and each of you

          3  very much, and together we'll have a quieter New

          4  Year.

          5                 I'm told that the witnesses are not

          6  yet dismissed by a very distinguished colleague,

          7  Council Member Stewart.

          8                 Mr. Lannan, your presence at the

          9  table is still needed.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Good

         11  afternoon. My name is Councilman Stewart. I have a

         12  few questions, a few concerns. The first one has to

         13  do with motorcycles. In general quite a number of

         14  the riders adjust the muffler system to effectuate

         15  the noise. Do you think that we should seek to have

         16  some sort of legislation to make that illegal?

         17                 They do that with motorcycles and

         18  sometimes with cars. Because it's basically

         19  something to create that noise in response. Do you

         20  think that this should be part of the bill, you

         21  know, in terms of making it illegal for someone to

         22  do that?

         23                 MS. GRILLO: I would say that an

         24  illegal altered muffler is the same as an

         25  illegally-installed car alarm. It's illegal, and it
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          2  should be made illegal.

          3                 MR. BARNEY: This is addressed in Mr.

          4  Gerson's amendments. He has thought about this for

          5  years. Previous legislation he's written on it.

          6  Please look at his amendments, I think you'll find

          7  it's well addressed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

          9                 My other concern that I have here is,

         10  I don't know if anyone can address it, is the fact

         11  that the bill addresses the regular sanitation, but

         12  the private sanitation and the time and method and

         13  how they really remove garbage is not the same, and

         14  the type of garbage and how the garbage is being

         15  stored, which in itself is what creates some of the

         16  noise.

         17                 I would like to know what remedies

         18  would you have for the private sanitation, because

         19  you cannot measure the same as you measured the

         20  regular sanitation.

         21                 MS. COUANT: I don't know why you

         22  cannot measure them. All I can say to you, that we

         23  find the Department of Sanitation trucks much

         24  quieter than any of the private trucks. Also that

         25  our big difference is among the private carters. We
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          2  had, through two Council people, because we have two

          3  Councils involved in our area, Council members, we

          4  had a meeting in March, we had six loading docks in

          5  our block, and then on 54th Street and 55th Street

          6  has two big hotels, and we had a meeting arranged

          7  with all the managers of the loading docks and what

          8  was very interesting, that one of the hotels did

          9  hire a much quieter private truck. So, since then

         10  they have handled the problem. There are

         11  differences, but the problem is there is no

         12  inspection for them. There is no regular inspection,

         13  no standards for these trucks.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I think you

         15  are thinking in terms mainly of the City, Manhattan.

         16                 MS. COUANT: No.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But I'm

         18  thinking in terms of a place like Brooklyn. Let's

         19  take, for example, those commercial entity that has

         20  to store their garbage into a container, the

         21  container has to be emptied by the garbage truck. In

         22  Brooklyn the private sanitation doesn't do that. So,

         23  any noise that is created by the private sanitation

         24  is mainly by that container, hanging, putting it

         25  back on the ramp where it's supposed to be and
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          2  things like that.

          3                 So, I haven't seen a way in which you

          4  can really change that.

          5                 If we want them to have, if we want

          6  the commercial establishment to really store the

          7  garbage in those containers, I don't see any way we

          8  can really change that, and I can see that we have

          9  other problems in terms of rats and roaches and all

         10  those things, if they're not stored in these metal

         11  containers. So, I would like to know a solution.

         12                 MS. COUANT: Can I just say something?

         13  That I was in contact with an organization called

         14  INFORM, and I think I informed the community board,

         15  the committee, the Transportation Environmental

         16  Committee, about it, and they use natural gas in the

         17  trucks, and they are less than half quiet, they're

         18  90 percent cleaner, and I think Los Angeles uses

         19  them, and there are places, on the Harvard yard, the

         20  Harvard University, on their yard, only those trucks

         21  are used. So, there is technology -- first of all,

         22  there is the National Guard's method, there is also

         23  hydraulic technology which is much quieter than

         24  this. I am a retired librarian, so I would be very

         25  glad to provide the City Council with information
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          2  about what you requested from me. I will be very

          3  glad. Also, I am Hungarian, and last March I was in

          4  Hungary, and let me tell you, amazing differences

          5  between there and here. Incomparable. So, it must

          6  exist. Technology exists, yes. We have to find it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: My last

          8  concern that I wanted to ask, does anyone know of a

          9  device that can be installed in places like the

         10  public assembly places and catering halls, that will

         11  continuously monitor the noise? Is there anyone who

         12  knows that there's any device?

         13                 MS. COUANT: I don't know.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No one can speak

         15  from the gallery.

         16                 MS. COUANT: I don't know.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Councilman

         18  Stewart, no one has an answer to your question.

         19  Perhaps after this panel steps down, the people from

         20  DEP might have a suitable answer to that question.

         21  But I won't recall them just for that purpose, but

         22  they may be able to provide that information to you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank
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          2  you all very much.

          3                 David Mangeim, or Manjime. I know

          4  you've testified before us before, I should do you

          5  the courtesy of pronouncing your name right.

          6  Mangeim, okay.

          7                 David, thank you for being here today

          8  and Donna will -- oh, you're not going to read the

          9  whole statement, are you?

         10                 MR. MANGEIM: No, I won't. You have

         11  the whole statement.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         13                 Donna will put you under oath, and

         14  you can proceed.

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         16  right hand.

         17                 In the testimony that you're about to

         18  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         19  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         20                 MR. MANGEIM: I do so affirm.

         21                 (Witness sworn.)

         22                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         23                 MS. MANGEIM: My name is David

         24  Mangeim. I'm the Executive Director of the New York

         25  Motorcycle Coalition, which is a tax exempt
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          2  non-profit organization that is primarily

          3  responsible for legislation and analysis of issues

          4  that relate to anything motorcycling, especially as

          5  it relates to noise.

          6                 As you are aware, I wrote the State

          7  Vehicle Laws for restricting motorcycle noise. I

          8  wrote the equipment standards for the State of New

          9  York. I have a Governor's Penn Certificate, and I

         10  have worked with this Committee and with other

         11  people in this City for 28 years. There is no one in

         12  the City of New York, and I say that with all

         13  modesty, but in all truth, who has my technical

         14  knowledge --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You would have

         16  to, because you're under oath, so I'm sure you're

         17  telling the truth.

         18                 MR. MANGEIM: That's correct. I

         19  appreciate that.

         20                 I just want to commend Donna for

         21  taking time over the weekend, to use her own time to

         22  call me to do further research for your Committee. I

         23  think that's very commendable, and I want to thank

         24  you for your statement to me last January in saying

         25  that I am a member of the team that is working on
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          2  this and I appreciate that. Of course, there is no

          3  one who deserves greater adulation than Alan for the

          4  work he's been doing on this particular issue.

          5                 Let me explain to you that in

          6  reviewing the legislation and going through

          7  everything that it relates to in here, I am

          8  concerned that it is not technically feasible, it is

          9  not technically supportable. It fully fails to

         10  comprehend the technology that relates through

         11  exhaust equipment, it does not understand the

         12  culture of motorcycle noise, other than sound,

         13  because there are those who acculturate themselves

         14  and obtain visceral satisfaction through making

         15  noise, and I am opposed to these people and I have

         16  been for 28 years.

         17                 I am concerned about the community

         18  groups who have just testified today. I am concerned

         19  about their being antagonized by this. I don't want

         20  my dog being antagonized and getting upset every

         21  time the guy up the street runs off with his

         22  motorcycle with straightpipes.

         23                 But Alan made a point, and it's

         24  critical, and I offer it to the Department of

         25  Environmental Protection. There is an extreme need
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          2  in this City for somebody to be appointed whose

          3  knowledge is at that level that they can serve

          4  either as liaison or as educator to the New York

          5  City Police Department and to the DEP, as well as to

          6  the Council and the Mayor's Office, et cetera.

          7  Obviously, I consider myself to be that person, and

          8  I'm not hesitant to so state.

          9                 But the point is, Alan has offered

         10  some amendments. We spent, last week we spent over

         11  three hours going through them, and we remodified

         12  them even this morning, because there were certain

         13  technical issues that had to be corrected. These are

         14  critical means of dealing with the problem. And the

         15  problem is, it is extremely difficult to modify

         16  individual behavior, but it is not difficult to

         17  attack and control equipment, and that is what my

         18  laws were written about between 1978 and '83, which

         19  are the Vehicle and Transit Law of today. They deal

         20  with the illegalization and totality of the greatest

         21  form of violator on a motorcycle, the straightpipe.

         22  The totally uninhibited, unrestricted exhaust

         23  device.

         24                 Mr. Stewart, you mentioned can

         25  motorcyclists modify exhaust. They always have, and,
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          2  unfortunately, the major manufacturers, especially

          3  Harley Davidson, the independent manufacturers of

          4  exhaust equipment continue to do this.

          5                 The federal government,

          6  unfortunately, during the Clinton Administration,

          7  alleviated all responsibility on this and negated

          8  and eliminated all funding for this. So at the

          9  federal level the laws remain as they have actually

         10  since the time when I wrote my laws for the State of

         11  New York.

         12                 The decibel standards are acceptable

         13  to me. They can be continued to be utilized. I think

         14  you have a question? Go ahead.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What should we

         16  do in the bill?

         17                 MR. MANGEIM: What we need to do is,

         18  other people have mentioned, I think the bill is

         19  being rushed. Better to have an excellent piece of

         20  legislation than to satisfy anyone's political need.

         21  You know I'm not politically correct, I'm just

         22  honest. So, the point is, I believe this bill has to

         23  be held back. I think that the DEP must consult with

         24  me, because they don't have an expert equal to

         25  myself and they have to talk to me about this.

                                                            236

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 The 200 foot limit concept, a

          3  gentleman mentioned, a 25 foot limit concept, this

          4  is so vaguely subjective, if not prejudicial. I

          5  mean, my motorcycle is extremely quiet. It's 28

          6  years old and it is extremely quiet. I wouldn't ride

          7  anything unless it was. If I walk 300 feet up the

          8  hill because I live on a hill where there is a

          9  consistent southwesterly breeze, I can hear my bike.

         10  It's the effect that one would have in an

         11  ampitheater (phonetic). The guy who lives 500 feet

         12  away from me on the next street who is an ex-police

         13  officer, who thinks he's not obligated to fulfill

         14  the law, and who has a Harley with straightpipes, I

         15  can hear him at 500 feet when he's idling. And I've

         16  had to have, as I was telling Alan, I've had to have

         17  very firm discussions with him as to how he used to

         18  warm up his bike, because I don't want my dog being

         19  antagonized, and I don't want to be antagonized.

         20                 So, yes, all of this can be dealt

         21  with, but the bill has to deal with this in terms

         22  of, as we discussed on a Saturday, we have to get

         23  into an issue of pure technology.

         24                 I'm very disappointed that the DEP

         25  seems to be moving away from the utilization of
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          2  decibel meters, which they seem to, I almost feel

          3  find to be an imposition upon themselves, because

          4  they have to be calibrated. Everything has to be

          5  calibrated in life. Everything.

          6                 So, let us not dissolve the

          7  utilization of meters, and let us integrate an

          8  understanding of what causes the need for noise. Let

          9  us go after the independent shops who make a fortune

         10  in violating these laws. Let us go after the

         11  manufacturers. Let them bring their equipment into

         12  this City and let them verify that it fulfills

         13  standards.

         14                 Let's get rid of all these systems

         15  that can be modified at the dealership or by the

         16  owner, and let us also educate the Police Department

         17  and the DEP so that they comprehend what to look

         18  for. This is something, I argued with this with

         19  Kathryn Freed years ago and the Police Commissioner

         20  at that time didn't want to deal with this and

         21  that's why the legislation went nowhere.

         22                 You can recognize an illegal

         23  straightpipe, I can educate the officers to know

         24  that. If you remember, and there are people here

         25  from community groups who know, I worked with the
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          2  1st Precinct quite a few years ago. I went out on

          3  the street with them. We went to a motorcycle

          4  independent shop, who was doing a lot of illegal

          5  work, with the understanding they weren't going to

          6  come down on him, in exchange for letting us expose,

          7  at least to the Police Department, what was there.

          8                 And I showed them what is a

          9  straightpipe, what is a pipe with removable baffles,

         10  what is a racing canister, all of this, and I know

         11  for a fact that they benefitted greatly. But nobody

         12  has called me for years and years. I keep making

         13  myself available. I think they're embarrassed to

         14  take an independent citizen rather than somebody who

         15  is wearing a piece of tin on his chest. I mean it's

         16  wrong. I'm here. I'm able to do this. So, I think if

         17  you encouraged them, that would be some moral

         18  authority.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. And, again,

         20  this won't be the first time in the hearing that

         21  I've essentially chided the Police Department who

         22  similarly has not taken it upon themselves,

         23  notwithstanding current City law, to enforce against

         24  illegal car alarms.

         25                 MR. MANGEIM: Absolutely.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do we have a

          3  representative of the Police Department still in

          4  attendance? Okay, yes. I would like to amend my

          5  request that I made to Ms. Petito, with regard to

          6  the enforcement against the illegal car alarms to

          7  include some overall description of what is going on

          8  with respect to illegal motorcycle straightpipes, to

          9  the extent that that's being enforced or not

         10  enforced. And if I were to encounter ten officers, I

         11  would like the first ten officers that I would

         12  encounter on the street once I left this building,

         13  would they have any idea whatsoever what I was

         14  talking about, if I brought this issue up to them?

         15  Is it spoken to in the Patrol Guide, and how does

         16  that work? Because there is perhaps a sense that

         17  this is not being enforced. And like with the other

         18  issue, I would be happy to be proven wrong.

         19                 I recognize Council Member Gerson.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair,

         21  thank you very much for that request. I think that

         22  that is very, very important.

         23                 And I would just kind of add a

         24  footnote to the request, and that is asking Counsel

         25  for the Police Department, if you could once and for
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          2  all clarify, not today, but some time in the near

          3  future, this question as to whether or not there is

          4  in fact a legal loophole between involving State law

          5  and City enforcement of it, specifically whether

          6  police, the Police Department feels it has the legal

          7  authority to penalize parked, non-moving

          8  motorcycles, which can be visually identified as

          9  possessing illicit mufflers. And also related to

         10  that, whether or not police, the Department feels

         11  that officers currently have the legal authority to

         12  stop and look and take measurements and look into a

         13  straightpipe and maybe stick something in it to see

         14  if, in fact, it is what is proscribed by State law.

         15  That has been vexing for us and I know vexing to

         16  many patrol officers for quite awhile, it would be

         17  helpful to get once and for all clarification. And

         18  then if, as I suspect, there is this lack of clarity

         19  loophole, we should deal with it, I again reiterate

         20  to DEP within the context of this Noise Code and not

         21  keep postponing it and postponing it.

         22                 And I just want to thank you, Mr.

         23  Mangeim, for your unselfish generosity in donating

         24  your expertise and your time.

         25                 MR. MANGEIM: I thank you. I'm a
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          2  lifelong resident of this City and I'm concerned

          3  about everybody not being abused.

          4                 Thank you, too.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you.

          7                 MR. MANGEIM: You're very welcome.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

          9  David. We appreciate your being here today, as

         10  always.

         11                 Okay, we have the next panel. Kathy

         12  Jolowicz from the East 83rd Street Block

         13  Association. Fried Bradlow of Community Board 2,

         14  Manhattan. Paul Goldstein of Community Board 1. Dr.

         15  Lori Moody of the West 8th Street Block Association.

         16  Dr. Gail Horowitz, Washington Square Lower Fifth

         17  Avenue Block Association. And Irene Palmese of

         18  Community Board 1.

         19                 I have two statements. How many of

         20  you have prepared statements? Jolowica I have and

         21  Frieda Bradlow. I have no other statements. Maybe in

         22  this package, the first package. Okay, now I have

         23  three statements.

         24                 Okay, Donna will swear you in and

         25  then we can commence.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          3  right hand.

          4                 In the testimony that you're about to

          5  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          6  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          7                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          8                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, why don't

         10  we do it in the order that I called.

         11                 Kathy Jolowicz. Okay, I just ask that

         12  you state your name for the record and proceed.

         13                 I don't think your microphone is on.

         14                 MS. JOLOWICZ: Is it on now? Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, it's

         16  better.

         17                 MS. JOLOWICZ: Okay. My name is Kathy

         18  Jolowicz, and I'm --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And, again,

         20  speak right into the microphone.

         21                 MS. JOLOWICZ: My name is Kathy

         22  Jolowicz. I'm a grassroots member and President of

         23  the East 83rd, 84th Street Block Association, one of

         24  the oldest and largest block associations in this

         25  City, and Board member of the 19th Precinct
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          2  Community Council since 1973.

          3                 Obviously, the City is living in a

          4  merry-go-round of noise hell. Unfortunately, the

          5  vanguard to change the Noise Code is focused on

          6  noise on the streets, but a larger but ignored issue

          7  is a noise one neighbor imposes on another in their

          8  home.

          9                 In order to help avoid this problem,

         10  new legislation curbing noisy neighbors must be

         11  introduced in Albany and the City stressing stronger

         12  enforcement, education and awareness, as well as

         13  changing the law.

         14                 The present laws are so flawed, they

         15  seem to protect the offender more so than the

         16  victim. Calls to 3-1-1 appear to be more of a

         17  useless survey than a problem-solving one. Records

         18  show that the police have more power to sympathize

         19  than to act.

         20                 I appeared before you in the January

         21  hearing to address this issue. Subsequent to my

         22  appearance, my phone has been ringing off the hook

         23  with pleas for help. Tenants who force you to live

         24  with their noisy habits and impose themselves upon

         25  you in the privacy of your home should be dealt with
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          2  more emphatically.

          3                 This room is filled with people

          4  addressing the noise, the street noise, but were

          5  tenant neighbor noise addressed alone, one would

          6  need Madison Square Garden to accommodate the

          7  attendance.

          8                 On May 20th, 2004, I sent a letter in

          9  a collection of research results, regarding the

         10  rights of tenants and neighbors to my Councilman

         11  Gifford Miller, regarding the legalities in the

         12  midst of noisy neighbors.

         13                 On March 4th, 2005, I sent this

         14  material to 19 Assemblymen and eight State Senators

         15  and you have copies.

         16                 I received immediate response from

         17  Scott Stringer, John Sampson and Richard Gottfried

         18  who expressed interest. However, I seem to be going

         19  in a circle as to who can make these changes.

         20                 I include here in my testimony a

         21  package of all the correspondence and evidence of my

         22  research.

         23                 From this investigation, I discovered

         24  that. Many of the so-called rules are assumed. For

         25  example, everyone thinks that anti-noise provisions
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          2  are stipulated in every lease. Not so. There is no

          3  law saying that a landlord has to state these laws

          4  in their leases.

          5                 Okay, then you say tenants are

          6  protected by the warranty of habitability. This

          7  antiquated document is outdated, saying that tenants

          8  are entitled to a livable, safe and sanitary

          9  apartment. Nothing about rights to peaceful and

         10  quiet environment in their home.

         11                 The standard lease form scatters

         12  related phrases throughout several sections among

         13  its 12 confusing pages, which is rarely read in its

         14  entirety. The warranty of habitability is derived

         15  from the real property law modeled after Napoleon

         16  Code, Civil Code decreed in 1803, culminating in the

         17  French Revolution, and has never been fundamentally

         18  changed.

         19                 With the present terribly-flawed

         20  laws, the 30-year-old warranty and 17-year-old

         21  standard lease form is time to examine them more

         22  closely and adapt them to today's demands.

         23                 These vague tools are antiquated and

         24  do not address the modern times we live in today,

         25  reflecting more and more high-powered electronics
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          2  appliances, exercise machines, et cetera, being used

          3  in apartments, coupled with the increasing tenant

          4  population.

          5                 It is time that we examine the old

          6  writings and overhaul them to meet the increasing

          7  demands of noise prevention. The laws which are

          8  understood but not clearly defined and emphasized

          9  enough should be clarified and subsequent public

         10  awareness should play a large role in their

         11  function.

         12                 The computer industry has generated

         13  24 hours services, which has subsequently created a

         14  new population of shift workers. People who do not

         15  have normal business hours have their right to sleep

         16  without disturbance during the day as well.

         17                 Thus, the new legislation should also

         18  stipulate invasive ongoing noise prevention 24/7,

         19  and not just between specific hours, as previously

         20  mentioned in the standard lease form.

         21                 Granted, this will never solve all

         22  problems, prevention can eliminate most of them. We

         23  know that enforcement of these rules have definitely

         24  proven to be inadequate. Stronger legislation must

         25  be adapted to control these sound weapons, which
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          2  studies prove cause life-threatening stress, as

          3  well, and can no longer be viewed as nuisance issue.

          4                 Noise researcher Dr. Arlene Bronzaft

          5  attested to this fact in her testimony in a January

          6  Committee meeting also.

          7                 Well-documented dangers to mental and

          8  physical health, especially the ill and elderly,

          9  have been proven. The noise of the offending

         10  offenders should be viewed as weapons against the

         11  quality of life of others. There are strong laws

         12  against weapons, guns, knives, fists, why can't they

         13  be adapted to control those sound weapons which

         14  studies prove life-causing stress as well.

         15                 Mandatory awareness, warning

         16  concisely -- warnings concisely and clearly stated,

         17  would prevent a lot of conflicts from occurring.

         18                 All tenants, especially new ones when

         19  signing a lease should be emphatically told that

         20  they could be evicted, be sued or cause

         21  life-threatening illness to other tenants, and such

         22  wording should be repeated in all lease renewal

         23  documents as a reminder.

         24                 I propose that a task force

         25  comprising those who have to deal with these
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          2  complaints on a daily basis be set up to carefully

          3  review these issues stressing education, awareness,

          4  prevention and adequate resources.

          5                 People have the right to make noise

          6  in their home, but they do not have the right to

          7  bring it into your home. There are innocent people

          8  out there who need help. Please help us.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'll kind of

         10  just momentarily depart from my common practice of

         11  waiting for the whole panel to testify to say that

         12  on the books right now, as you know, we currently

         13  have unreasonable noise standard, which absolutely

         14  can be enforced on tenant situations like this. So,

         15  I think it's more a case that they're not enforcing

         16  it where you are. But that is a tool that is

         17  available right now, and I guess that gets to the

         18  issue of enforcement on the Police Department's

         19  willingness to use a tool available to them to give

         20  people some increasing repose. But, you know, we do

         21  have the tool right now. And I don't know as though

         22  any revision of this Noise Code is going to go

         23  beyond the tool that is currently available. It's

         24  just a matter of getting them to use the tool.

         25                 Again, let me just sort of state
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          2  that, and let everyone do theirs. We can talk about

          3  it further at the end of the panel. But, you know,

          4  that is available right now. I don't foresee

          5  anything more in this or any other revision of the

          6  Noise Code that would go beyond that. But, you know,

          7  to be continued.

          8                 Frieda Bradlow. Frieda Bradlow?

          9                 MS. BRADLOW: Yes, I'm Frieda Bradlow.

         10  I'm the last --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have a

         12  statement?

         13                 MS. BRADLOW: I gave it to you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Wait. Okay, I

         15  got it. Okay, I got it.

         16                 MS. BRADLOW: All right. I am grateful

         17  for the opportunity to address you.

         18                 I will not defend the 1974 Code

         19  today, even though I'm the last member standing who

         20  had a hand in writing it. I wrote it along with then

         21  Councilman Ted Weiss, Robert Alex Baron, who was the

         22  author of the national best seller The Tierney of

         23  Noise, Charlotte Natali, an attorney on Community

         24  Board 2, and I. Four of us wrote that law that was

         25  passed in 1974 as the first major revision of the
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          2  Noise Code since 1937. We are now way overdue.

          3                 However, I have come today to say

          4  that I'm horrified at the rush to judgment at this

          5  very moment. After many of us have spent years

          6  deciding how to fix what was wrong with the 1974

          7  code, suddenly I heard exactly a week ago tonight

          8  that there was going to be a hearing today. And then

          9  it was about 11:00 last night that I sat down at my

         10  computer and read what it was I was expected to

         11  testify on. That's horrifying.

         12                 Meantime, there has been mention of a

         13  possible full Council vote on the 21st. The Council

         14  members are just as much in the dark as the public

         15  has been as of this morning. Until they have had a

         16  chance, not only to become educated as to the

         17  changes, but in terms of discussing with their staff

         18  the legalities, the fine points, et cetera.

         19                 I've heard a lot since 10:30 this

         20  morning, in terms of specifics in this code. Believe

         21  it or not, the specifics of decibel levels and

         22  distances and et cetera, are a lot easier to fix

         23  than what over the years I have seen as the major

         24  endemic flaw in this particular law. The major flaw

         25  is enforcement, lines of authority and education.
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          2                 I have worked, for example, on a

          3  construction noise task force that the Borough

          4  President of Manhattan convened. And again and again

          5  as we had sessions, was that if Department of

          6  Buildings gave a permit, no one else had the

          7  authority to put a cease and desist order if another

          8  part of the City statute was being broken.

          9                 For example, given a permit by the

         10  DOB, or given a permit by the DOT, DEP couldn't come

         11  in and say you're making excess noise. Yes, you've

         12  got a permit to work tonight, yes you've got a

         13  permit to work tonight. It's an emergency permit.

         14  But you don't have a permit to be operating so that

         15  you can be heard four blocks away.

         16                 In other words, no one has final

         17  authority under this current set-up that we have.

         18  That's a major flaw.

         19                 Another thing that has been a major

         20  flaw, and since Councilman Gerson moved on to bigger

         21  and better things, first to Chair Community Board 2

         22  and then to the Council. He asked me to take over

         23  the Chairpersonship of a Subcommittee on Noise

         24  Abatement of the Environment Committee of Community

         25  Board 2. So, I've been in the hostings and I hear
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          2  what's going on because it's loud and clear.

          3                 The frustration of getting even

          4  violations that are ever so present and ever so

          5  clear enforced, the time involved, the effort and in

          6  some cases the money involved --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm going to

          8  have to ask you to try to focus on something

          9  specific within the legislation that --

         10                 MS. BRADLOW: The lines of authority

         11  also --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The theory and

         13  the big picture is good, but I need you to put it

         14  into the funnel a little bit and focus on something

         15  that I can use.

         16                 MS. BRADLOW: All right. Here's

         17  something that you can do, you can set limits on how

         18  long it takes for the enforcement process when it

         19  goes, in other words, to the Environmental Control

         20  Board, once it has been judged to be in violation.

         21  There are all kinds of time periods involved and

         22  even at the final decision, there is no time in this

         23  code, as it is currently presented, that says this

         24  matter has to be resolved one way or the other by

         25  such and such a time.
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          2                 Things can drag on for years

          3  currently, and meantime the people are dying from

          4  it.

          5                 So, I mean that you can certainly

          6  make sure is a refinement in the code, that there is

          7  a time limit on how long something can drag out.

          8  That needs to be in there.

          9                 But I think you can also do lines of

         10  enforcement. In other words, that there is a supreme

         11  authority no matter what, whether it's the DEP. I'm

         12  concerned that in the code as it's currently

         13  written, it's all put on the Commissioner, and I

         14  think Council has to do something else and that's

         15  make sure that the law provides for extra provisions

         16  for staff, inspectors and et cetera that the DEP is

         17  going to need. Given the authority that's in this

         18  code, it does not have the staff or the financing.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 Mr. Paul Goldstein. Is Mr. Paul

         22  Goldstein here?

         23                 DR. HOROWITZ: He's not here. He had

         24  to leave.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Dr. Moody.
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          2                 DR. MOODY: I'm Laurie Moody. I live

          3  at 2 Fifth Avenue.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. If you

          5  could move a little bit closer to the microphone?

          6                 DR. MOODY: Okay. Sorry. I'm Laurie

          7  Moody. I live at 2 Fifth Avenue. I'm a member of the

          8  West 8th Street Block Association because my

          9  apartment overlooks West 8th Street.

         10                 My neighbors and I risk real physical

         11  and psychological damage from the deliberately loud

         12  exhaust noise created by motorcycles that roar down

         13  8th Street and rev their engines just 100 feet below

         14  my window on days and nights. So I think both days

         15  and nights need to be addressed.

         16                 Tourists and shoppers are turned away

         17  because of the noise. The current 30-year-old noise

         18  law has proven to be unenforceable. To protect the

         19  residents and other people in the neighborhood from

         20  this, the City and other areas of the City that are

         21  plagued with motorcycles, the City needs an

         22  enforceable Noise Code.

         23                 First of all, moving motorcycles pose

         24  difficulties for the police. They cannot be

         25  corralled with orange fencing material. We have to
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          2  look at some way to enforce a law. Councilman

          3  Gerson's amendments to the proposed Noise Code that

          4  deal with straight pipes, provide enforcers to get

          5  to the root of that problem before they leave the

          6  curb. Once they're moving, it's very, very

          7  difficult.

          8                 Second, the current Noise Code

          9  depends upon decibel reading instruments for

         10  motorcycles, and they are not, I understand, in use

         11  in our precinct because they are thrown out of

         12  court.

         13                 The proposed Noise Code has wisely

         14  augmented decibel levels with plainly audible

         15  standards, and I think for motorcycles this is

         16  something that we really need to consider.

         17                 So, I strongly support Alan Gerson's

         18  amendment to Section 24-236(b) to reduce the

         19  distance for plainly audible from 200 to 100. Though

         20  I would prefer 50 feet.

         21                 This may make possible the

         22  identification of those people who are assaulting my

         23  neighbors. This is a real, real problem of physical

         24  assault.

         25                 Finally, in a City that prides itself
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          2  on protecting the lungs and the hearts of its

          3  citizens via a ban on smoking, the leadership seems

          4  to lack the will to safeguard residents against the

          5  assault of motorcycles.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          7  you very much.

          8                 Dr. Gil Horowitz.

          9                 DR. HOROWITZ: Still up and alive.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Awake.

         11                 God bless you.

         12                 DR. HOROWITZ: Thank you. Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Councilman and the Counsel

         14  and Councilman Gerson for all the hard work that

         15  you've done in order to bring this bill close to

         16  fruition. And I say close because I have the sense

         17  that it may currently not be quite ready for prime

         18  time. Very close, but needs a little work. Unlike

         19  the other Professor, and I was a Professor of

         20  Behavioral Sciences, Professor at New York

         21  University, and a senior clinical psychologist for

         22  the New York State Psychiatric Centers. Currently

         23  I'm the president of the Washington Square Lower

         24  Fifth Avenue Block Association, a member of the 8th

         25  Street Block Association, and represent the 2 Fifth
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          2  Avenue Co-op, the Square Arch Realty Corporation at

          3  2 Fifth Avenue.

          4                 As I was saying, I do not believe

          5  that you're planning to rush this through. I have

          6  confidence in the Chair. I don't believe you're

          7  planning to rubber stamp it. I believe you've been

          8  very careful in listening to all the comments today.

          9  For example, I'll be talking about supporting the

         10  idea of reducing the plainly audible standard from

         11  200 feet to, we like 50 feet.  And Community Boards

         12  2 and 3, at our suggestion, did endorse, both

         13  Community Boards 2 and 3, the 50-foot standard. We

         14  love the plainly audible standard, not because it

         15  totally replaces decibels, but because it's another

         16  tool which permits better enforcement, more fluid

         17  enforcement of the law.

         18                 Do we have that picture? Okay, you

         19  have a picture. My neighbor, Ron Barney, from the

         20  8th Street Block Association was kind enough to post

         21  that. You can see on an ordinary day how many

         22  motorcycles might line up. There's a whole lot of

         23  them.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just want to

         25  state for the record that the witness is holding up
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          2  a photograph that shows scores of motorcycles lined

          3  up along, 8th Street is it?

          4                 DR. HOROWITZ: Yes, that's 8th Street.

          5  Between Fifth and Sixth Avenues.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Where people

          7  live.

          8                 DR. HOROWITZ: Where people live.

          9  Where many people live. A thousand at 2 Fifth Avenue

         10  alone that are plagued night and day by the noise.

         11                 We are aware that metering alone is

         12  not as effective in controlling excess noise for

         13  various reasons that the Commissioner outlined, Dr.

         14  Zaner outlined, that what you're calling, what some

         15  have called a "subjective standard," is not as good.

         16  Actually, there is no objective standard. The noise

         17  meters are somewhat reliable but not infallibly

         18  reliable. They have to be frequently calibrated.

         19  They're difficult to use. They go out of order

         20  frequently. In the 6th Precinct, for example,

         21  they're just not used. They won't bother with them.

         22                 So, if you have a decibel standard,

         23  it reduces the enforceability. If you have a plainly

         24  audible standard with this additional tool, which

         25  will stand up, we have discovered under court
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          2  challenge in many jurisdictions, it makes it

          3  possible to enforce the law.

          4                 We suggest, urge actually the

          5  Council, and we think you will provide all necessary

          6  time for a thorough evaluation of all the

          7  outstanding issues. Unlike the other professor that

          8  was here earlier, I don't care for a C minus. This

          9  bill is a very good bill. It's very close to being

         10  an excellent bill, and with a little time and a

         11  little effort, I don't know how you will do it, you

         12  mentioned various possibilities, Mayor's urgency

         13  message, et cetera, how ever you do it to get it,

         14  whether it's this year, next year, soon we hope, but

         15  we want it to be better with the changes that have

         16  been suggested by many, including reducing 200 feet

         17  to 50 feet for the plainly audible. Another change

         18  that we have suggested, I do not believe is in the

         19  bill that we urged, was collective motorcycles.

         20                 Currently they're held one-by-one

         21  just as air conditioners. In the new bill air

         22  conditioners are grouped so that you can hold a set

         23  of air conditioners on a roof, for example,

         24  responsible for the collective noise generated.

         25  Currently there's nothing in the proposed code, I do
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          2  not believe, that groups motorcycles the same way,

          3  and yet you get the same effect when you put four or

          4  ten motorcycles together, and you see from the

          5  picture how many there were, the volume of noise is

          6  ear-splitting.

          7                 I'm a long-time resident of 2 Fifth

          8  Avenue, 37 years. I've become painfully aware of the

          9  physically and psychologically-damaging effects of

         10  the relatively uncontrolled, disruptive noise coming

         11  from motorcycles. Area residents often list this

         12  noise plague as their number one challenge in living

         13  in our urban area, and both Community Board 2 and 3

         14  have endorsed the key features of Councilman

         15  Gerson's proposed amendments, which are fewer feet,

         16  collective accountability for a group of

         17  motorcycles, and some other changes. We implore the

         18  Council to pass Councilman Gerson's proposed

         19  amendments as a minimum step in affording relief

         20  from this physically damaging to our hearing, to our

         21  well-being, to our mental stability, the

         22  ear-splitting noise which plagues our residents.

         23  Effects of loss of sleep, which include lowered work

         24  performance, lower school performance by our area

         25  children, and the research even indicates result in
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          2  depression from lack of sleep and noise pollution,

          3  constant barrage of noise.

          4                 We know you will make this bill an

          5  excellent bill by whatever method you need to do it.

          6  I've made some suggestions. You have many from

          7  others that I would never have thought of but seemed

          8  like good ideas. Please try to incorporate these

          9  into a once-in-30-year shot at an excellent bill.

         10  You're very close to it now. It's almost an

         11  excellent bill. It has some evident flaws, which I

         12  pointed out, others pointed out, if you could

         13  somehow get a consensus on those, we really

         14  appreciate what you're about to do.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         17  you, Professor. And thank, I want to thank the whole

         18  panel. Oh, Alan has a question of a comment.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: We appreciate

         20  that DEP and the Police Department are still here.

         21  So, if I could just use the benefit of the visual

         22  aid to just underscore why, and Mr. Chair, I know

         23  you understand --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Why our
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          2  community really is so impassioned about this. What

          3  you see there I assure you is not an infrequent

          4  occurrence. And I could tell you, we've had

          5  countless occasions of police officers walking by

          6  what you see there doing absolutely nothing. And

          7  it's not a criticism of the police officers, that's

          8  crying out for a need for some kind of direction and

          9  policy, as well as if the legal authorities so

         10  determine closing of the loopholes along the lines

         11  of the proposed amendments. And that's why I say to

         12  DEP we have to be holistic here. We cannot avoid

         13  this problem that you see in front of you and call

         14  this a complete Noise Code.

         15                 And to Frieda Bradlow, knowing that

         16  74 Noise Code was state-of-the-art at the time, and

         17  your work is going to help make this the

         18  state-of-the-art, and just question, reiterate what

         19  I asked Dr. Zaner, is there a need for some, with

         20  minimal bureaucracy within DEP or within the Mayor's

         21  office, we have several coordinating councils or

         22  offices, do we need someone who can kind of rise

         23  above, or some entity or office to rise above the

         24  interagency kind of mix to assure what you said,

         25  that there is some ultimate say in coordination in
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          2  the enforcement of the code?

          3                 MS. BRADLOW: I don't think that I can

          4  answer that any more than Dr. Zaner could. I can say

          5  that there has to be an ultimate head, whether it's

          6  an individual or a bureau, with a deputy of some

          7  sort.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: An ultimate

          9  head that deals with all the agencies involved?

         10                 MS. BRADLOW: Right. Because there are

         11  more agencies than are mentioned in this current

         12  code involved. We all know that there are.

         13                 Incidentally, that is a major bus

         14  stop that you see those motorcycles blocking. I know

         15  that bus stop well. That is a major cross-town bus

         16  stop going west to east.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, and I just

         20  thank you all for you testimony. And I thank you

         21  all. I wish I had more sanguine news regarding

         22  tenant-to-tenant for Kathryn Jolowicz, but I don't,

         23  unfortunately. I've worked with the police to get

         24  them, you know, reluctantly to enforce the

         25  unreasonable noise standard in tenant-on-tenant, and
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          2  it is difficult.

          3                 MS. JOLOWICZ: We've tried that and it

          4  doesn't work. They keep coming and coming and going.

          5  And they're just sympathetic. I mean, I work with

          6  the Precinct Council, I even had board meetings in

          7  my apartment to listen to my galloping elephant

          8  playing intermittent racketball and all I get is

          9  sympathy.

         10                 And I just think that the laws have

         11  to be capsulized and put up front and emphasized so

         12  that people realize. It's just a matter of

         13  overhauling it. I circled and underlined all the

         14  areas that could be brought together and just to

         15  educate the people to know this, because they say,

         16  well, I mean the landlord doesn't have to give a

         17  lease that has these provisions in it. There's no

         18  law and there should be a law that every lease has

         19  to have this.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: All I can say is

         21  we kind of worked it out in the 17 Precinct, and you

         22  know, it doesn't help you that much, but we have

         23  sort of struck that arrangement with them.

         24                 MS. JOLOWICZ: Who writes the standard

         25  lease forms?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, no, no. I'm

          3  talking about, again, leasing and all that is a

          4  separate issue for a separate committee. The focus

          5  of this Committee is getting the police to use the

          6  tools that they have, to get them to use the arrows

          7  in their quiver regarding a certain issue, and we

          8  have worked that out in the 107th and I regularly

          9  get the police to write unreasonable noise summonses

         10  for tenant-on-tenant. So that's been my experience,

         11  but I'm just going to have to leave it there.

         12                 Okay, thank you.

         13                 Danny Frank of Music and Music Owners

         14  -- Music and Amusement Owners. Mr. Frank can be

         15  sworn in. I'll be right back. Is Mr. Frank in the

         16  audience? Mr. Frank? Mr. Frank is not here.

         17                 Donna Hordes, it looks like. Robert

         18  Hollander, Lower East Side Residents for Responsible

         19  Development. Ken Nochimson. I hope I'm close to

         20  pronouncing that right. Rebecca Moore of the Ludlow

         21  Orchard Community Organization. Jack Bittner of the

         22  2 Fifth Avenue Co-op. Anna Seddio. Elaine Goldman,

         23  Christopher Street Block and Merchants Association.

         24  Charles Wolf, the Bleecher Area Residents.

         25                 Okay, here's what's going to happen:
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          2  Work it out. Find a slip. I'll be back in a minute,

          3  okay?

          4                 We'll do this panel, and then you'll

          5  be on the next panel.

          6                 Also, the Sergeant has brought to my

          7  attention that one of the recent witnesses left a

          8  bag up there; is that right?

          9                 Sergeant, could you please get the

         10  bag?

         11                 Oh, fine, so the bag was left by a

         12  witness? The witness who was there?

         13                 SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, who was in

         15  that chair?

         16                 I'd say this should go to Council

         17  Member Gerson.

         18                 Do you represent the area?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, Councilman

         21  Gerson can try to.

         22                 Okay, fine. What's interesting is

         23  that this is all on the record, and on television

         24  too. So, there you have it. This is reality TV.

         25  Reality TV.
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          2                 Donna will swear you in and we will

          3  proceed.

          4                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          5  right hand.

          6                 In the testimony that you're about to

          7  give, do you swear and affirm to tell the truth, the

          8  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          9                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         10                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Yes,

         12  why don't we go from my right to my left. The

         13  gentleman in the glasses, can you just identify

         14  yourself for the record and proceed with your good

         15  testimony.

         16                 DR. HOLLANDER: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         17  My name is Rob Hollander. I live on 11th Street

         18  between Avenues B and C. I represent the Lower East

         19  Side Residents for Responsible Development, and also

         20  I am a member of a coalition which held a town hall

         21  recently on bar proliferation in the lower east

         22  side.

         23                 I want to thank you, Mr. Chairperson,

         24  for staying so long, listening to us, and also I

         25  want to thank Councilman Gerson for the
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          2  extraordinary work that you've been doing.

          3                 I want to address two issues. One,

          4  the importance of this language of plainly audible.

          5  I think this is a real step in the right direction.

          6  If you live in an apartment say overlooking an

          7  avenue where there is consider ambient noise, a

          8  small amount of music coming from a bar will not be

          9  heard. But if you live in an apartment in the back

         10  where there is no ambient noise, even a small amount

         11  of music or base noise is plainly audible, not only

         12  plainly audible, but can drive the resident quite

         13  batty. So, it's really a very important step in the

         14  right direction to have that language, and I trust

         15  that you will keep it in there.

         16                 The second issue I want to address is

         17  the importance of understanding a radical change

         18  that has happened in street life and street noise.

         19  As a result of a combination of I think three

         20  factors, the first, the smoking ban, which has

         21  forced nightlife from behind closed doors out into

         22  the street. And concomitant with that movement of

         23  smokers into the street has been an effort on the

         24  part of, and a fait accompli in many cases, the part

         25  of bar owners and restaurant owners to remove the
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          2  barriers between street and restaurant, street and

          3  inside, tearing down walls and putting up large

          4  windows and opening these throughout the summer

          5  months so that there's no longer a barrier to noise

          6  spilling out in the streets, and now the smokers on

          7  the streets can talk to the patrons who are still

          8  inside.

          9                 Along with that, this City has been

         10  promoting sidewalk cafes, and so now we have a whole

         11  new ethos of the sidewalk streetlife which brings

         12  the noise that used to be, as I say, behind closed

         13  doors, out into the street. And most serious of all

         14  is the creation of nightlife strips. This concerns

         15  us on the Lower East Side because we had seen

         16  landlords view nightlife as an opportunity to raise

         17  commercial rents, drive out all the mom and pop

         18  businesses that used to serve the community, and

         19  bring in these bars which do not serve our community

         20  but bring in tourists, as the nightlife people have

         21  explained, and the result is that we have these

         22  nightlife strips that are not only unlivable but

         23  unenforceable, so that whatever rules and

         24  regulations and laws there be, none of that will

         25  solve the problem.
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          2                 If you go to say Grant Street east of

          3  Essex and walk down all the way to the River, you

          4  won't find a single bar. Residents there will tell

          5  you, gee, I wish we had a bar in my neighborhood,

          6  but, of course, all the bars are located in places

          7  like Stanton Street around Orchard and Ludlow, where

          8  there aren't just a few bars, there are dozens of

          9  bars and restaurants and many sidewalk cafes.

         10                 We live, you know, in New York City,

         11  we don't live in China. There has to be some kind of

         12  way of regulating this, and, of course, it's the SLA

         13  which has the power here to grant or deny or revoke

         14  liquor licenses.

         15                 So, really, I'm going far beyond what

         16  you're concerned with, but just put it in context.

         17  This is what we're looking at. We're looking at

         18  unbridled development of something that the

         19  neighborhood simply wasn't prepared for and that

         20  it's just proliferation of bars.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         22  you for your statement. I appreciate it.

         23                 DR. HOLLANDER: Thank you, again.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Dr. Hollander,

         25  right? Oh, sorry, sorry. I'm getting confused. Thank
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          2  you. Thank you, Dr. Hollander.

          3                 Yes, could you state your name for

          4  the record, please?

          5                 MR. WOLF: My name is Charles Wolf,

          6  formerly the head of the Bleecker Area Merchants And

          7  Residents Association, currently serving on Council

          8  Member Alan Gerson's Residence Advisory Council, in

          9  which I bring issues that our whole neighborhood has

         10  an attention to him.

         11                 I'd like to open up by saying that

         12  this wine is not ready to pour, okay? It really

         13  isn't. I mean, Earnest and Julio Galleo said we will

         14  sell the wine before its time, and many a good

         15  vittner will know that given a little more time it

         16  will be an excellent, an outstanding wine. And I

         17  would encourage you, don't rush this. Don't rush

         18  this. We have a situation in which we almost have a

         19  Hobson's choice, and I wouldn't want to see that,

         20  because --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What's the

         22  choice?

         23                 MR. WOLF: Hobson's choice. Hobson's

         24  choice is this or nothing type of thing.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.
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          2                 MR. WOLF: And I think some people are

          3  portraying it as that way. And, yes, we're going to

          4  have a change over in the City Council, but I

          5  believe that with the inertia that's been happening

          6  so far, is that we can make this bill better, take

          7  it into the next Council, and get the community's

          8  input on this. Because industry has had a heck of a

          9  lot of input into this, but the people have not. And

         10  who are the victims here?

         11                 Other than a victim of

         12  over-enforcement, in which the Nightlife Association

         13  brought to bear, and that's legitimate point. The

         14  victims here are the people who live in the City,

         15  like myself. I live on Bleecker Street. At the

         16  corner of Thompson and Bleecker, right between

         17  Bleecker, Thompson and LaGuardia Street, which is

         18  wall-to-wall bars, okay, on the other side of the

         19  street.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're going to

         21  focus on the particular aspects of the bill, right?

         22                 MR. WOLF: Right.

         23                 So, my point here is that the victim,

         24  in terms of who we need to listen, look at if the

         25  bill is helping, is the people in their apartments.
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          2  And I think it's been said by some previous

          3  witnesses, or whoever we're called, I'm not sure

          4  witnesses, that, you know, we're always talking

          5  about on the street. But, again, it's the people in

          6  their apartment being assaulted by the noise on the

          7  street. The gentleman here mentioned the smoking ban

          8  and its effect, and I've lived in my apartment since

          9  December '78. In fact, as of today it will be

         10  whatever it is, December 15th, 1978 -- 1979 is when

         11  I moved in, and I can tell you that since the

         12  smoking ban went into effect it has been more noisy.

         13  But we have to accept that for the health benefits

         14  that it brings.

         15                 But what we haven't talked about

         16  today are some of the nightclub noise things that I

         17  want to make sure are in the bill, because I didn't

         18  get a copy of the bill, and even my Council member

         19  didn't get a copy of it until just recently. And one

         20  of the things is entrance and exit noise. Some bar

         21  owners will put double and triple entrances in, in

         22  order to attenuate that. That's a huge problem.

         23  There's a bar on the next block that every time the

         24  bar opens, noise blasts out and it closes, in and

         25  out, in and out, in and out, especially with the
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          2  smoking bill. So, is that in the bill? Because

          3  that's a realistic thing, because the people across

          4  the street are going to get blasted by that. And

          5  I'll have to let your staff look at that, because

          6  obviously we haven't had a chance to see the bill.

          7                 Number two, in terms of base. Again,

          8  it's the base in the apartment. There are clubs in

          9  which, bars in which the base is playing, will

         10  travel right up through the beams, especially if

         11  it's a steel beams building. It will travel right

         12  through the beam up six, seven, eight floors, and

         13  affect the people on the top floor of the

         14  propagation of the waves right through the building

         15  materials. Is that factor included in the bill?

         16                 When my late wife was alive, she used

         17  to tell me that when the base came on, it felt like

         18  she was being punched in the stomach. She's not the

         19  only one. And some people are very, very sensitive

         20  to that.

         21                 Now, is it audible? Now, I've got

         22  good hearing. I could barely hear it, but, man, she

         23  was almost doubled over in pain, okay? Is that kind

         24  of thing in the bill, where it truly affects people

         25  in their place of dwelling?
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          2                 The old thing about New York being a

          3  City that never sleeps, well, the whole words in

          4  that line are, "I want to wake up in a City that

          5  never sleeps," which means that once you were

          6  asleep.

          7                 So, we've got to have the ability to

          8  sleep in the City, all right? For noise coming up.

          9  From within the building, from noise coming on the

         10  street, smoking gardens. Again, I'm sorry, Alan, but

         11  these are things that I predicted were going to

         12  happen, but we need to address them. Smoking

         13  gardens. If you go down to the Village, narrow

         14  streets, closely-spaced narrow streets, in which if

         15  you have Thompson Street here, LaGuardia Place here,

         16  wrapped around by Houston Street, okay? There's a

         17  bar on Houston Street that in order to stay in

         18  business put themselves a smoking garden in the

         19  back. Now you've got all the people on three blocks

         20  affected by the smoking garden, not by the smoke

         21  necessarily, but yes, on a hot, still summer's

         22  night, yes, the smoke. But I'm talking about the

         23  noise.

         24                 Roof gardens are very obvious. Roof

         25  gardens in some of the hotel, or hotel things. These
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          2  smoking gardens in the back, something has to be

          3  done, because all of a sudden, just like the

          4  gentleman from the Nightlife Association, I forget

          5  his name, the lawyer, talked about the residents

          6  encroaching on what was formerly a resident-free

          7  area, now you have somebody who lives in the back of

          8  a building, okay? Which is once a noise-free area,

          9  all of a sudden you've got a din of noise by these

         10  smoking gardens. This is serious. This is serious

         11  stuff, okay? Is this in the bill?

         12                 And, so, what I would say is, these

         13  are the important things that you, Mr. Chairman, and

         14  I can tell by your stamina here today, that you have

         15  a very strong interest in making sure this is a good

         16  bill, and not a politically expedient one. Extremely

         17  important.

         18                 Motorcycles that set off car alarms

         19  by the way, a single motorcycle so loud that it will

         20  set off an alarm as it goes by, and it wails for

         21  several minutes. Car stereos, is there something in

         22  the bill to effectively deal with car stereos in the

         23  reasonable noise or whatever that terminology was?

         24                 These are the things that I ask you

         25  folks and your staff, because I understand how the
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          2  legislation process works, to take a look, okay? And

          3  I don't think they're in there. I don't think

          4  they're in there. They may be.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Some of them

          6  are. Some of them are. I won't belabor it, but some

          7  of them are.

          8                 MR. WOLF: But, again, don't sell the

          9  wine until it's ready to be drunk.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Duly noted. Duly

         11  noted. Thank you. Thank you.

         12                 And I'm sorry, if you could identify

         13  yourself for the record.

         14                 MS. MOORE: Okay. My name is Rebecca

         15  Moore, and I run a community group called LOCO,

         16  which is the Ludlow Orchard Community Organization,

         17  and we joined with the Coalition and Block

         18  Associations to throw the Town Hall meeting because

         19  of what we felt was a lack of response to the

         20  problems caused by proliferation, and I want to

         21  thank everybody here for giving this issue so much

         22  attention and seriousness. And I'm very excited

         23  about the idea of these Noise Codes being revamped.

         24  I didn't get a chance to really read them, so it's

         25  hard to comment specifically on them.
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          2                 But I did want to voice my concern

          3  that I feel like in my neighborhood, the Lower East

          4  Side, the current Noise Codes aren't even enforced,

          5  and nothing I've heard today gives me much hope that

          6  these new Noise Codes will be enforced, and I see

          7  huger problems contributing to the situation for

          8  which this Noise Code would help and give some

          9  relief, but it's really a band-aid for a larger

         10  problem, and that is that New York is changing. It's

         11  changing in a way where there really haven't been

         12  studies to see how communities are affected.

         13                 To put this in context and just give

         14  you an idea of how the Lower East Side has been

         15  affected, at the very same time the west side was

         16  getting developed into a luxury district, which is

         17  where historically the few clubs I knew of when I

         18  was younger that I went to were off by the West Side

         19  Highway, not a lot of residences there. As that was

         20  getting developed into more and more luxury,

         21  exponentially, coincidentally, the Lower East Side

         22  started seeing this huge growth of nightclubs, and I

         23  couldn't help but sort of make this connection that

         24  wealthier districts were able to kind of get lawyers

         25  and fight and deal with a noisy bar in their

                                                            279

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  building or across the street with some effort, but

          3  this poor, low-income community was seen as a sort

          4  of breeding ground where it was kind of okay to just

          5  put club after club after club after club to the

          6  point where I think seven years ago I had one bar,

          7  now I have six, a seventh is opening, and there's 40

          8  on the agenda of our community board every month.

          9  It's become a full-time job.

         10                 I see it affecting the diversity of

         11  my neighborhood because it's actually -- I would

         12  like you, everybody working on this Noise Code, to

         13  understand that noise can be used to harm a

         14  community, and so low-income communities, maybe we

         15  could stand up to a landlord, maybe we could fight

         16  to hang onto lower-income housing with all these

         17  other challenges that faced Lower East Siders over

         18  the years, but the bottom line is it doesn't matter

         19  what your rent is, if you can't live in your

         20  apartment, you're going to end up having to move,

         21  and for many of these people, because of the state

         22  of New York right now with rents, that means their

         23  only option is to leave Manhattan.

         24                 So, we're looking at losing the last

         25  -- in the Lower East Side I have seen the empty
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          2  buildings, because over the last five years I have

          3  seen people sit in community board meetings crying,

          4  sobbing, going "there's five bars on my block, we

          5  can't handle one more." And the State Liquor

          6  Authority hands out that license anyway, because

          7  they don't hear the community board rule. They don't

          8  honor it. So, you sit there, you spend hours of your

          9  time, everybody does, fighting and getting the

         10  community board to pass a resolution in your favor.

         11  The State Liquor Authority is not bound to honor

         12  that at all. It's kind of a sham and a waste of our

         13  time.

         14                 But to bring that all into the

         15  funnel, as you said, with this issue, I don't see

         16  how a Noise Code can be crafted for this City that's

         17  going to bring much relief if the issue of how the

         18  City is changing zoning wise and commercially isn't

         19  addressed.

         20                 The issue of bar proliferation

         21  actually causes, for us on the Lower East Side, many

         22  of the problems you're addressing in this code. It's

         23  lead to increased rooftop huge AC units, because we

         24  have these multi-level clubs and restaurants

         25  opening. So, there's more of these units to deal
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          2  with. We used to have one garbage pick-up a night,

          3  but now because of the increased number of these

          4  businesses, and they all hire their own independent

          5  pick-ups, we now have three, so it's several hours

          6  worth of pick-ups.

          7                 We have increased amplified music, as

          8  nobody is really regulating these clubs. They all

          9  park their door open. Like the one downstairs from

         10  me, I can go down and ask them nicely please to just

         11  close their door while they have live music going

         12  on, and they say, no, there's no law, I don't have

         13  to do that.

         14                 There's not a lot of neighborliness

         15  going on, no matter how nice you are about it.

         16                 And then on top of that, the bars are

         17  now starting to apply for sidewalk cafe licenses,

         18  and these are bars that are open until three and

         19  four in the morning, and it's just too much of a

         20  full-time job to try to fight this off. I'd have to

         21  be in community board meetings every single -- I am.

         22  I've seen Rob at the last three.

         23                 So, I support this noise abatement

         24  work being done, but I just wanted to express that I

         25  just don't have faith that it's going to be
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          2  enforceable.

          3                 Oh, and there was one other point.

          4  One last point I want to make.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please.

          6                 MS. MOORE: The President of the New

          7  York Nightlife Association sat here and he said that

          8  they didn't believe this plainly audible thing would

          9  be enforced and they were worried about that being

         10  worked against them or whatever, and not enforced in

         11  a way that was very clear and concise or fair. The

         12  police would be the main people responding to those

         13  noise complaints, because when you call 3-1-1,

         14  unless it's an AC unit or something, DEP responds to

         15  those, but police responds to the basic noise. I

         16  thought it was weird that they weren't expressing

         17  trust or hope that plainly audible could be

         18  enforced. At the same time they want to hire cops on

         19  their paycheck to be, once they're paid for them, to

         20  be controlling the noise situation and that would be

         21  okay with them, and I find that a very dual, you

         22  know, conflicting notion. I mean the same people

         23  that are supposed to be doing the same job, but

         24  they're saying they'd feel better about it if those

         25  police are on their paycheck, they feel more
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          2  confident the job would be fair, and that I find a

          3  very troublesome thing to express.

          4                 Thank you for the chance to speak.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          6                 Thank you, all. Notwithstanding the

          7  somber tone of some on the panel, I've been in

          8  government, I've been in City government for 22, in

          9  March it will be 23 years, and I don't know if -- I

         10  have not encountered a mayoralty or that is more

         11  concerned about noise than is Michael Bloomberg and

         12  his Administration. We've done a lot of work on

         13  noise here in the Council over the years, but this

         14  is one of his big ticket efforts. And, so, that is

         15  hopeful, that you know, you have a Mayor that is

         16  very engaged on the noise issue and very much has

         17  dedicated a lot of time and talents of his top staff

         18  in crafting a bill that I'm trying to make right

         19  here, and I'm torn between perhaps drinking wine

         20  before its time and sacrificing the good for the

         21  perfect. So, it's like I'm testifying now, isn't it?

         22  Okay. Let me stop testifying so that the rest of the

         23  witnesses can testify.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Alan.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Wolf, just

          3  real quickly, you raised the issue of the so-called

          4  smoking gardens, back yard, court yard, tenement

          5  yard, cafes; is there a problem if we don't regulate

          6  unamplified as well as amplified sound, that in that

          7  context with being partially or wholly surrounded by

          8  walls, that is kind of an echo chamber effect?

          9                 MR. WOLF: Council member, there is no

         10  question about that. In the 20 some years I've lived

         11  on Bleecker Street, and it's right around the corner

         12  from you and so you know the neighborhood very well,

         13  the higher you go, the more opportunity the sound

         14  has to bounce back and forth between the narrow

         15  streets of the Village, which is different than

         16  let's say you're up on the avenues, okay?

         17                 And, so, when you're in the confine,

         18  if you could imagine -- can I borrow your notebook

         19  for a second? If you can imagine this, you know,

         20  you've got buildings here, okay, around each of

         21  these streets, inside that block, within the

         22  interior of that block, you've got a very narrow

         23  confine in which that noise is concentrated, and has

         24  nowhere to disperse itself. And, so, a normal

         25  concentrated, it's like if you've ever seen a
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          2  megaphone, it's kind of like that, okay? And, so,

          3  absolutely, so we are dealing with unamplified noise

          4  here. We're dealing with again a cluster effect --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Which in

          6  effect becomes amplified.

          7                 MR. WOLF: Yes, it is an amplification

          8  but an unintentional one, right. It is an

          9  amplification.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you.

         11                 MR. WOLF: Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you

         13  very, very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         15  very much. I appreciate your testimony.

         16                 David Poster. Is that right? Okay.

         17  David, please. Carol Laverne. Okay. Shaun -- Sharon

         18  something. Sullina? Sharon Sullina? Central Village

         19  Block Association. Hugo Hoogenboom. Deborah Allen.

         20  Sherry Bender. Elaine Goldman. I think we called

         21  you. Oh, fine. Are you testified? We're going to

         22  have a grand panel here. We thought you weren't

         23  here. We have you right here. We called you, as you

         24  know.

         25                 Okay, now I don't know who is who
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          2  anymore, except for David. We're buddies. David is

          3  going to go first.

          4                 Donna will put you under oath, and

          5  then we can get started. Okay, I think we're in

          6  place.

          7                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Raise your right

          8  hands.

          9                 In the testimony that you're about to

         10  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         11  whole truth and nothing but the truth.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you

         13  all very much for your interest and your patience in

         14  staying with us this long.

         15                 Yes, so David, why don't you identify

         16  yourself for the record and commence your testimony.

         17                 MR. POSTER: My name is David Poster.

         18  I'm the President of the Christopher Street Patrol,

         19  and I chair the Task Force for the Greenwich Village

         20  Block Association on Prostitution and Unruly Street

         21  Behavior.

         22                 Our patrol consists of residents, the

         23  Guardian Angels, and we've been patrolling the West

         24  Village for 15 years late at night, into the early

         25  morning hours.
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          2                 We see and we hear the noisy crowds

          3  and radios. Crowds of youth from outside our area

          4  scream and yell all night into the early morning

          5  hours, many with their radios blasting to compound

          6  our noise problems.

          7                 The Christopher Street Pier closes at

          8  1:00 a.m., with hundreds of youth from other areas

          9  adding to the problems, again, yelling, screaming

         10  and blasting their radios.

         11                 Our residents, and many have

         12  testified before the community board, have not slept

         13  for years because of this.

         14                 I'd just like to say, too, in the Far

         15  West Village, the bars are really not our problem.

         16  It's the unruly youth and it's the radio blasting of

         17  these youth on the street. The 6th Precinct has led

         18  the entire 3-1-1 noise complaint and this is in very

         19  big part because of what I'm just describing.

         20                 The residents feel that the noise

         21  problems in the Far West Village have not been

         22  addressed in your bill. We would like to see the

         23  consideration of banning radio playing on our

         24  streets after 11:00 p.m. We would like to see and

         25  address the noise problems caused by these youths on
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          2  our streets.

          3                 I know it's a major problem, but it

          4  has to finally be addressed and it's caused

          5  tremendous harm, physical mental harm to our

          6  community.

          7                 And the Christopher Street Pier

          8  should be treated just like other place, any other

          9  place in our community that causes major noise

         10  problems. You talk about bars, you talk about all

         11  the places that are causing problems and we do

         12  something about it. Well, I think the Christopher

         13  Street Patrol Pier has got to be looked at as a

         14  major source of noise problem, and we respectfully

         15  request that an 11:00 p.m. closing should be

         16  considered not a 1:00 a.m. closing when hundreds and

         17  hundreds of kids come on the streets and they stay

         18  all night, all night screaming and yelling.

         19                 So, those are major problems that we

         20  don't feel have ever been addressed and should be

         21  addressed.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         24  you, David.

         25                 Yes, and certainly just in chatting
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          2  with counsel, with regard to your radio playing

          3  after a certain hour, of course, there is the

          4  unreasonable noise standard and other, you know,

          5  ways to sort of, you know, and the plainly audible

          6  standard, but --

          7                 MR. POSTER: It's not happening

          8  because there are hundreds and hundreds of kids down

          9  there. Police can't possibly --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's fortunate

         11  that we still have a representative of the Police

         12  Department, is that, you know, we need better

         13  enforcement of this very important quality of life

         14  in that area, and I congratulate the Police

         15  Department for staying throughout the hearing. But

         16  without the police using the tools that they now

         17  have, any legislative effort on anything is going to

         18  be for naut. But certainly your recommendation

         19  regarding the 11:00 p.m. no more radios is duly

         20  noted. I thank you for that.

         21                 MR. POSTER: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Who is going to

         23  be next?

         24                 MS. GOLDMAN: Excuse me. Since we're

         25  on the same page with time --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          3                 MS. GOLDMAN: Hello. I'm Elaine

          4  Goldman. I'm co-chair of the Christopher Street

          5  Block and Merchants Association. And I just want to

          6  add to what Dave Poster said, unfortunately the

          7  profile of the person that we're talking about is

          8  very unusual. They're unaccountable to the bars, the

          9  restaurants, they don't go to stores, they don't go

         10  to any neighborhood people. Their life is on the

         11  street. The Far West Village has a dirty little

         12  secret, and Dave and I have gone to many meetings --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Who are these

         14  people? Like where do they come from? Who are they?

         15  What is this?

         16                 MR. POSTER: They come from every

         17  borough of Manhattan. Not one resident is down

         18  there. They come from Brooklyn, from Harlem, from

         19  all over, and they come for one simple reason: that

         20  they feel they can do whatever they want in the

         21  Village, because they have done whatever they want,

         22  and it finally has to stop.

         23                 It has nothing to do with the

         24  residents. They come from Brooklyn. You'll see them

         25  pouring off trains, the 1 and 9. You'll see them
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          2  coming from New Jersey, and they're coming in from

          3  New Jersey off the Path Train. It's a major problem.

          4                 MS. GOLDMAN: I just want to make a

          5  point that it's very important to add this to your

          6  Noise Code, because when the 6th Precinct does try

          7  to enforce some civility on the streets, because my

          8  neighbors cannot sleep, they're met with the

          9  Civilian Review Board complaining of harassments,

         10  and what I'm saying, there are no guidelines for

         11  noise. There should be some kind of code of civility

         12  on the street. And again, since loitering has been

         13  off the books, we've had large gangs, clusters, if

         14  you will, of groups hanging out, it's their right

         15  legally, 24/7, and again, these people aren't

         16  homeless because in the winter you don't see anyone

         17  down there.

         18                 This is something with the warmer

         19  weather, and it's a huge problem and getting worse

         20  every single here.

         21                 And Alan Gerson, and I want to also

         22  thank you for calling us and letting us know this

         23  meeting is today. I appreciate that. Thank you very

         24  much. But it's a huge problem in the West Village.

         25  Alan Gerson is aware of it, Council Member Quinn is
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          2  aware of it. It's a huge problem, it's getting

          3  worse. And at least with the police, if there was

          4  some concrete law on the books that they could feel

          5  comfortable enforcing it. At this point I've seen

          6  people on the street cursing at the police,

          7  screaming, and then they're met, when they tell them

          8  to move they're met with harassment charges. There

          9  has to be some -- I'll just kind of give you another

         10  example.

         11                 The prosecution laws, they're very

         12  weak. We're not here for that, but a lot of the

         13  officers got a lot of Johns and got a lot of things

         14  done with all the traffic violations which were

         15  carved in stone. If a John went through a stop sign

         16  or didn't have a seatbelt on, they got them that

         17  way. What I'm saying is have some code of civility,

         18  please.

         19                 And, again, the youth in the Metro

         20  Section in the Times, one out of ten young people

         21  don't even graduate high school on time, let alone

         22  graduate at all. It's a blight. I mean, where do you

         23  start?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We're getting a

         25  little far afield.
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          2                 MS. GOLDMAN: We are. We are. But I

          3  hope that we are trying to clear up, because you

          4  seem to not know of this problem.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No.

          6                 MS. GOLDMAN: The Far West Village,

          7  it's been our little dirty secret, and David and I

          8  and many other residents of the West Village, and,

          9  again, a lot of the presidents from the area could

         10  not be here. We will send you a statement. Again, we

         11  were told the last minute. And I thank you for your

         12  time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         14                 MS. GOLDMAN: I appreciate what you're

         15  doing.

         16                 MR. POSTER: May I just --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, one last

         18  word.

         19                 MR. POSTER: That's the reason that

         20  the Guardian Angels and the patrol have to be down

         21  there. It's just for that particular reason. It

         22  wasn't a noise problem. That's how bad it is.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         24                 MS. GOLDMAN: Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 Next witness.

          4                 MS. ALLEN: I'm Deborah Allen.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, if you

          6  could state your name for the record, I'd appreciate

          7  it.

          8                 MS. ALLEN: My name is Deborah Allen.

          9  I live at 42 Hudson Street. I am here to talk about

         10  a particular extremely noxious source of noise in

         11  New York City.

         12                 Over the past 15 years, 60 Hudson

         13  Street, formerly the Western Union Building, has

         14  been converted to a telecom hotel. A telecom hotel

         15  is something new under the sun. It is nothing like

         16  an old fashioned telegraph building. 60 Hudson

         17  Street houses the telecommunication equipment of

         18  over 60 companies, each of which uses air

         19  conditioning to keep its equipment cool.

         20                 As a result, the building has a

         21  permanent loud throb issuing from perhaps 60 or more

         22  air conditioners. Worse still, 60 Hudson Street

         23  tenants require diesel generators to provide back-up

         24  power in an emergency. These generators are tested

         25  on a regular schedule and sometimes the noise is
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          2  unbearable.

          3                 Because of these two noise sources,

          4  60 Hudson Street is a disaster for people who live

          5  nearby. People who live directly across the street

          6  cannot open their windows. They cannot work or read

          7  or converse in the rooms closest to 60 Hudson

          8  Street. Some have installed triple pane windows.

          9  They need relief from the dreadful noise that

         10  assaults them in their homes. This noise has not

         11  been brought under control because telecom hotels

         12  are a fairly recent phenomenon and existing

         13  regulations are not adequate to deal with them.

         14                 According to the present Noise Code

         15  decibel limits apply only to individual pieces of

         16  equipment, not to the building as a whole.

         17                 The noise from 60 Hudson Street is

         18  the accumulated sound from 60 or more sources. There

         19  is no limit on that total noise. The people who live

         20  around 60 Hudson Street have had high hopes that the

         21  revised code would bring them relief.

         22                 We were thrilled that the Mayor and

         23  the City Council were calling for revisions in the

         24  law. I cannot tell you how disappointed we were with

         25  the draft of 12/13/05, that is last night. The
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          2  language in Section 24-227(b) sounds as though we

          3  will finally get a cumulative measure of sound.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We went over

          5  this issue with the other witness, as you recall,

          6  the gentleman with the bowtie, and I've already

          7  directed counsel to sort of trace the evolution of

          8  Section 227 and how it evolved from, let us say from

          9  your perspective, a better or more favorable, a more

         10  favorable bill to a less favorable one.

         11                 MS. ALLEN: Well, I would be very

         12  interested in that history.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         14                 MS. ALLEN: One of the interesting

         15  things is that the new bill refers to a cumulative

         16  measurement of sound.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. Yes.

         18                 MS. ALLEN: But it is not a cumulative

         19  measure of sound in the building.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         21                 You were here for the other witness

         22  who testified on it?

         23                 MS. ALLEN: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         25                 MS. ALLEN: So, anyhow, this revision
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          2  is not a step forward. It's a step back.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I've just been

          4  informed that there is a function that's supposed to

          5  commence at 5:00 p.m. here, so for the first time I

          6  was made aware of this, so I'm trying to not cover

          7  the same ground too many times.

          8                 MS. ALLEN: Let me mention one other

          9  thing in the section. There are several things. But

         10  Section 24-227(c) says that when a new circulation

         11  device is installed, prior to the effective date of

         12  the new code, if the noise from all the owner's

         13  devices exceeds 50 decibels, the owner can be

         14  ordered to reduce the sound five decibels.

         15                 This means that if the tenant makes a

         16  noise of 75 decibels instead of the permitted 50,

         17  the owner must reduce it to 70. And then it is

         18  legal. What kind of limit is it, that you shouldn't

         19  have reduced a noise of over 50 decibels, so as a

         20  penalty you must bring the noise down to 70

         21  decibels. It doesn't make sense.

         22                 I urge the City Council to correct

         23  these proposed new loopholes in the Noise Code.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 And if I could, sir, before you go? I

          3  will have some comments at the end of the hearing

          4  regarding labor. There is a representative in the

          5  audience who is here on the labor issue who won't be

          6  testifying, but I just wanted to make you aware of

          7  it. In fact, I'll be making a statement on labor

          8  when we go over the people who, or the entities that

          9  submitted written testimony. Okay?

         10                 Please. Sorry.

         11                 MR. HOOGENBOOM: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         12                 My name is Hugo Hoogenboom. I'm

         13  President of the 45 West 54th Street Co-Op Board,

         14  and I'm here to urge that the Committee and the

         15  Council defer action on this revision until

         16  unresolved problems are addressed with more public

         17  input.

         18                 We were heartened by the Mayor's and

         19  the Council's initiative at the start of this

         20  revision of the Noise Code, and the declaration of

         21  policy is something no one could argue with.

         22                 Unfortunately, in many ways, the

         23  December 12th draft falls short of the vision in

         24  that declaration.

         25                 For example, it nearly doubles the
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          2  prohibited decibel level for compacting refuse from

          3  70 to 78. And as I'm sure you know, but some may

          4  not, that's a logarithmic scale. So, when you go up

          5  by ten, you're really jumping. And it codifies a

          6  night level at an astonishing 85 decibels.

          7                 So, I ask people to imagine

          8  themselves trying to sleep in an apartment with five

          9  loading docks within earshot. The intermittent, all

         10  night, beginning a little bit before midnight,

         11  refuse trucks compacting for 30 to 60 minutes at a

         12  time, and the occasional night compacting of

         13  construction debris, and this for six to eight hours

         14  at a time in the night ending at two and three in

         15  the morning. And, of course, metal plates and

         16  ill-fitting covers in the street rattling and

         17  rumbling away.

         18                 So, I urge the Committee to follow

         19  the Community Board 5 resolution addressed to the

         20  Committee and the Mayor:

         21                 To prohibit trash compacting and

         22  dumpster pick-up and drop-off between 10:00 p.m. and

         23  7:00 a.m.

         24                 To limit construction debris

         25  compacting to the same hours as construction itself,
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          2  since they are obviously related.

          3                 To establish standards to ensure that

          4  installers of rattling metal plates will promptly

          5  quiet them. That means rapid identification, and

          6  follow-up.

          7                 And that's essentially it, and I do

          8  thank you and the Committee for staying so long and

          9  listening to us.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm getting paid

         11  for it. You're not. So, I'm on the meter. I'm on the

         12  meter.

         13                 MS. LAVERNE: I would like to thank me

         14  for staying so long.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. Yes.

         16                 MS. LAVERNE: Because I'm tired and

         17  very hungry. My name is Carol Laverne.  I live at

         18  315 7th Avenue at the corner of 28th Street for 26

         19  years.

         20                 The noise level is the highest it's

         21  ever been in this last year, the 26th year. My

         22  apartment could be the poster apartment for noise

         23  pollution. 7:15 a.m. -- Excuse me. 6:00 a.m. the

         24  subway, this is the main reason I'm here, the subway

         25  loud speakers, because I'm over a subway grate at
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          2  the station, the 1 9 at 28th and 7th, begins at 6:15

          3  with their loud speakers blasting... welcome to the

          4  MTA. The time is... Do not approach the train when

          5  it's moving...blah blah blah. To me that would be

          6  unnecessary. That's how I wake-up 6:00 a.m. to 6:15,

          7  with bull horns outside my window.

          8                 7:15 the State-run Fashion Institute

          9  of Technology begins their sidewalk cleaning

         10  machines, which sound like a cross between a small

         11  plane and 100 lawnmowers. At 7:30, three

         12  refrigerator trucks park under my window, because

         13  I'm on the third floor, which is actually the second

         14  floor, for Ranch 1 Restaurant begins their

         15  deliveries. They idle without closing their engines

         16  off and they have the cooling machines. At 10:00 the

         17  peddlers arrive because there is legal peddling

         18  under my window. And then I start to hear... One

         19  dollar. One dollar. Five dollar... that goes all day

         20  long.

         21                 Also, at 10:00 the AC from the

         22  restaurant across the street, and the ACs on top of

         23  FIT, who are the only ones who voluntarily helped me

         24  in that situation, go on and then I start to hear

         25  Yee yee yee yee yee, and having the DEP come in and
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          2  have it half a decibel off, because it's not giving

          3  any credence to high-pitched sounds, you're doing

          4  base sounds, and the vibration, which of course I

          5  get, but high-pitched sounds with the windows closed

          6  are so sickening, my blood pressure has been raised

          7  so high that I was taken in the ambulance to the

          8  hospital because of listening to yee yee yee yee yee

          9  yee all day long and all night long and nobody

         10  cared.

         11                 Then we have every couple of weeks

         12  10:00 the subway cleaning machines, the MTA subway

         13  cleaning machines come on.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Have you looked

         15  at the bill?

         16                 MS. LAVERNE: 10:00 we've got the

         17  garbage cans.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You know, you

         19  have to focus your comments to the bill and what it

         20  has and --

         21                 MS. LAVERNE: Well, since people were

         22  not invited, because I was invited, I'm just a

         23  regular person, I only had a half a day to get some

         24  signatures for this.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.
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          2                 MS. LAVERNE: I'm not prepared, but

          3  I'm going to go as quickly as I can.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.

          5                 MS. LAVERNE: And then at 1:00 we have

          6  a strip of clubs on 28th Street to get out for which

          7  there has been no help on them hanging out on the

          8  corners, as the lady on the end is concerned, and

          9  hanging out in gangs all night long.

         10                 My problem is with enforcement. There

         11  is no enforcement. There is no advantage to people

         12  who want peace on the weekend because when I ask the

         13  DEP or the EPA to come out, they will not come out

         14  on the weekend. They give me the advantage to have

         15  the ambient noise be a little bit lower, because

         16  there's not so much traffic outside.

         17                 I've been told they will not come on

         18  Sunday. Even if at 8:00 in the morning these things

         19  start happening, nobody will come on Sunday. That's

         20  the rule.

         21                 There has been, I have complained 100

         22  times or more about all of these things. Not once

         23  has a policeman ever come to my door, because it's

         24  Midtown. And you know what they tell me? We're busy,

         25  lady. We've got really important things to do like
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          2  murders. They will not come. The police will not

          3  come for peddler noise complaints. They say that

          4  that's the Peddler Squad. I called the Peddler

          5  Squad, they say we only have three people, lady, and

          6  we're dealing with these big issues where the stores

          7  are complaining about the peddlers slip through the

          8  cracks there.

          9                 The latest one and the worst one this

         10  year, November last year, MTA, which is not

         11  accountable to the DEP or the EPA, according to

         12  everyone I have petitioned, turned up -- they

         13  installed 52 loud speakers in the subway, just mine,

         14  under my window, and starting blasting them all day

         15  and all night. I've started working on this and I

         16  was working with Assemblyman Gottfried and Ileanna.

         17  They wrote letters. They've done everything. Nobody

         18  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That is a State

         20  issue, as you know.

         21                 MS. LAVERNE: I understand that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         23                 MS. LAVERNE: But Mayor Bloomberg and

         24  Governor Pataki, and the President of the MTA, which

         25  is a privately-owned corporation is not regulated by
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          2  the DEP or the EPA. They are independent. I can't

          3  even get someone to come out and measure the level.

          4                 So, what I brought was, in a half a

          5  day of being able to get some signatures, people on

          6  the 20th floor who are complaining about the loud

          7  speakers coming out of the subway, you have no

          8  legislation for it, you have no enforcement of it,

          9  you have no acknowledgment that the private company,

         10  the MTA has any responsibility to private citizens.

         11  And I have been passed off, I have videotapes, I

         12  have audiotapes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: They're a

         14  government authority. They are a government entity.

         15  They're a government entity. They're not a private

         16  corporation. They're not regulated by New York City.

         17  I think you have an excellent avenue in Mr.

         18  Gottfried, who is a State office holder and

         19  presumably could have more sway over that State

         20  entity than this local government Council.

         21                 MS. LAVERNE: He failed. He tried and

         22  he failed. So, we've got noise loud enough to hear

         23  on the 20th floor.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, again, I

         25  need to --
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          2                 MS. LAVERNE: There is no help here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I need to keep

          4  things rolling because we do have a deadline to get

          5  out of the room.

          6                 Fortunately, some of the things you

          7  mentioned are covered existing law, and it has been

          8  my refrain throughout this hearing that paucity of

          9  the Police Department enforcement, either for good

         10  reason or for bad, is taking up a lot more time in

         11  this hearing than it ought to, because of, you know,

         12  these are not things that could be dealt with with

         13  better police enforcement, and so -- and I don't

         14  mean to criticize people who are bringing police

         15  issues forward. It's important for me to be here in

         16  order to pass them along to the Police Department

         17  but that really is what it is. But some of the other

         18  items are spoken to in the Noise Bill, but I have to

         19  keep going.

         20                 Next witness.

         21                 MS. BENDER: Thanks very much. My name

         22  is Sherry Bender, and I live on East 11th Street in

         23  the East Village. The exact address is 506 East 11th

         24  Street, between Avenues A and B. I moved in there

         25  close to 18 years ago. I haven't read the bill, and
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          2  I haven't heard much about it, but before I go into

          3  my personal situation, which is what I want to talk

          4  about because I feel it's relevant, I want to say

          5  that I've heard very little, if any, about a FAA

          6  integrational (sic) component because I know that

          7  planes, air force --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The FAA is the

          9  federal government. I've got to cut that off. I

         10  can't.

         11                 MS. BENDER: Well, I just want to

         12  mention that I haven't heard anything about it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         14                 MS. BENDER: And I do feel that it is

         15  a problem for us. Even the NYPD, low-flying

         16  helicopters, I know they go house-to-house in the

         17  East Village several times a week. That's a

         18  component that bothers us a lot, and there's a lot

         19  of vibration really in those old buildings.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         21                 MS. BENDER: Okay.

         22                 Moving on, I did hear that there was

         23  -- another thing I wanted to mention was I know the

         24  new bill mentions unreasonable noise in reference to

         25  electronic equipment and things like that. I want to
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          2  mention something that hasn't been brought up, and

          3  that is generators from commercial endeavors like

          4  movie sets. We get them a lot in the East Village, a

          5  lot. 11th Street is really, really known for it. And

          6  these generators rock-n-roll and they vibrate and

          7  they're noisy and they're painful.

          8                 Okay, moving along. So, I brought up

          9  a few things, and also I want to underscore a few

         10  things that were said and some things that were not

         11  said. What I want to underscore is the importance of

         12  the zoning laws, and here is where --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I've got to cut

         14  that off too.

         15                 MS. BENDER: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I've got to cut

         17  that off. This is not a zoning hearing. I just can't

         18  --

         19                 MS. BENDER: Right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'd be unfair to

         21  myself and everybody if I entertained stuff that was

         22  so far off topic as.

         23                 MS. BENDER: Actually, it's not,

         24  though.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It is.
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          2                 MS. BENDER: And that's the point.

          3  It's extraordinary to bring up the point.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I have rendered

          5  a decision that it is off topic.

          6                 MS. BENDER: Well, it's not. And since

          7  I just want to tell you that I live on 506 East 11th

          8  Street --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you're going

         10  to testify on a zoning matter, I --

         11                 MS. BENDER: Well, you decide. Let me

         12  tell you what it is.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Quickly.

         14                 MS. BENDER: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Because I've

         16  just got to get other people on. I know you've been

         17  here for hours and hours --

         18                 MS. BENDER: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I'm sorry to

         20  have to do this, but other people haven't been heard

         21  from yet.

         22                 MS. BENDER: Excuse me. I moved into

         23  my building because it was a back yard building, not

         24  accessible from the streets or the avenues. And as I

         25  said, I lived there nearly 18 years and I never
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          2  heard a peep from the people on the east side. What

          3  happened was that in 1997 the building was sold to

          4  Tower Brokerage, Bob Earl, who turned the bottom

          5  half into a bar.

          6                 And I also heard you say that you

          7  might be talking a little too much about enforcement

          8  and getting a little uptight about that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, it's that I

         10  have to direct the testimony along lines that are

         11  relevant and there is probably not another

         12  legislation in the world where someone would come

         13  before the Committee and say I haven't read the

         14  bill, I don't know anything about it, but I'm here

         15  to talk about my own situation.

         16                 MS. BENDER: That's not exactly what I

         17  said.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Any other

         19  legislature, that would be the end of the testimony

         20  right there.

         21                 MS. BENDER: Did you give us an

         22  opportunity to read the bill?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: People coming

         24  forward in a legislative hearing testify on the

         25  legislation. You have stated on the record under
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          2  oath that you don't know anything about the

          3  legislation. But I'm giving you a little bit of

          4  latitude but not a lot. Please.

          5                 MS. BENDER: Well, as I mentioned, a

          6  few people mentioned enforcement and I think it's

          7  one of the greatest problems because I, as I said,

          8  when this bar moved in, they literally moved onto

          9  the other side of my wall, and nobody else's, and

         10  it's a raw brick wall that they refused to insulate.

         11  And I'm ten feet away from all the fans, and the 9th

         12  Precinct thinks it's perfectly fine to have a

         13  cabaret music, which is against zoning laws. Even in

         14  Use Group 6 they are not permitted to use more than

         15  40 percent of their property and -- more than 20

         16  percent, they used 40 percent.

         17                 Because of the position of my

         18  building, and no one lives two floors above me, I am

         19  the only one reamed. They have a wall that

         20  intersects me that has a window. I actually

         21  literally abut the wall with them --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Here's what

         23  we're going to do.

         24                 MS. BENDER:-- And the north wall.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Here's what
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          2  we're going to do. Here's what we're going to do.

          3  More important than, you know, you telling me, right

          4  after you get up from this panel, you go and sit

          5  right next to this woman in the black sweater and

          6  the gray jacket. She is from the New York City

          7  Police Department. And so you tell her that the

          8  cabaret law is not being enforced. You have a

          9  conversation with her, and after the hearing she's

         10  going to have a conversation with me as to whether

         11  or not your case has merit or whatever it is. I'm

         12  not a police professional --

         13                 MS. BENDER: I had DEP there last

         14  night, and they took a decibel at 37, and --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: DEP is not there

         16  to enforce cabaret law. The Police Department can do

         17  that. So you've already had the benefit of having

         18  people from DEP at your place, but we will get the

         19  Police Department on it, and I cannot take up any

         20  more Committee time with this unfortunate, but, you

         21  know, sympathetic personal issue, because it does

         22  not bear on the legislation at hand.

         23                 MS. BENDER: I didn't hear anything

         24  about PA systems.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We have to move
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          2  on. We have to move on. They are in the bill. They

          3  are in the bill and just a lot of unfortunate

          4  circumstances that --

          5                 MS. BENDER: For the record, I will

          6  state that my apartment has been made uninhabitable,

          7  and that I cannot get these issues addressed.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Who is your

          9  Council member?

         10                 MS. BENDER: My Council member was

         11  Margarita Lopez, who is on the way out.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Fine.

         13                 MS. BENDER: And also, for the record,

         14  my bar, when somebody talked here, the woman talked

         15  to that she was never one, I have been slanted

         16  personally by the NYPD 9th Precinct in reference to

         17  the north --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm cutting it

         19  off. I cannot --

         20                 MS. BENDER: It's very important to

         21  understand what we are dealing with. And the very

         22  last point I do want to make.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No. No.

         24                 MS. BENDER: It's reference to the

         25  bill.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm the Chair,

          3  turn off the mike. No, no. I'm not doing it. No.

          4  This is a legislative hearing, not a circus.

          5                 Next. Next panel. Turn off the

          6  microphones. I will not take any more testimony from

          7  this panel.

          8                 Anyone who is still here who has not

          9  been heard, please come forward, we probably have

         10  you in this stack.

         11                 Okay, thank you for coming. Thank you

         12  for your patience. There's two statements? One.

         13  Okay, Donna will swear you in.

         14                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         15  right hand.

         16                 In the testimony that you're about to

         17  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         18  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         19                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         20                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         22  you both very much for coming, and for your

         23  patience. I guess I have the statement of Carol

         24  Wilson, so why don't we start with Carol. Ms.

         25  Wilson, please.
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          2                 MS. WILSON: Okay. My name is Carol

          3  Wilson.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Can you speak

          5  right into the microphone.

          6                 MS. WILSON: Yes. My name is Carol

          7  Wilson. I live at 55 West 8th Street in Manhattan.

          8  And I'll make this very brief. I'm not using my

          9  written statement. I am here to talk about

         10  commercial noise in a mixed use building.

         11                 I live in a building over a shoe

         12  store that plays music all day long, and to make

         13  this extremely brief --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Inside? Inside

         15  the building? Like for the customers.

         16                 MS. WILSON: Music, yes, for the

         17  customers.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, I think

         19  you've got to sit closer to the mike. I'm sorry.

         20                 MS. WILSON: I am very close.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         22                 MS. WILSON: Yes, they play music for

         23  the customers, for themselves.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'd like to ask

         25  the Sergeant to close the door here, please.
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          2                 Maybe you should use the other

          3  microphone.

          4                 MS. WILSON: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That one is not

          6  coming in very well. But turn that off. Okay.

          7                 Are we quiet? Sergeant?

          8                 MS. WILSON: Is this better?

          9                 MR. GENNARO: Yes. Yes.

         10                 MS. WILSON: Okay. Yes, I live over a

         11  shoe store that plays music for the customers for

         12  themselves. And to make it brief, I'm very

         13  miserable. I've been miserable for seven years. I'd

         14  rather be here than there.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Can I interrupt

         16  you for one moment?

         17                 Sergeant. Sorry, about that. Please

         18  continue.

         19                 MS. WILSON: Okay. I'll address one

         20  issue. During the past seven years when I had this

         21  problem that I hear music ten hours a day every day

         22  of the week, every day of the year, except two, I

         23  have done everything I know to do. I have written

         24  letters. I have called everybody. But mostly I have

         25  called the DEP because I was told that they're the
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          2  people that can do something.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          4                 MS. WILSON: But you can't make an

          5  appointment with them. They come when they want.

          6  They have come when the store was closed, they have

          7  come when I wasn't home, they have come when the

          8  music was unusually low. But they did come once when

          9  it was really loud, and they were taking a reading

         10  and they said it's not loud. And I said what? And on

         11  their way out one of the inspectors told me their

         12  meters don't pick up techno music very well. He said

         13  it doesn't get the kind of thumping and clanging

         14  that you hear all day. We need something more

         15  sustained for our meters.

         16                 So, in my experience, the current

         17  system of metering is not working. Plainly audible

         18  sounds wonderful to me, because everyone that comes

         19  in my apartment plainly hears the music and asks how

         20  I can live there. And I tell them, I don't have a

         21  choice or I'll have to leave New York.

         22                 And in a fast conclusion here, I

         23  would ask you to consider Council Member Gerson's

         24  amendment on this subject. It seems to me the

         25  perfect simple solution. It puts the burden of
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          2  compliance on the establishment that plays the music

          3  and not on the people that live above them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          5  you. And I'm going to speak to the concern once we

          6  hear the other witness.

          7                 MS. SINCLAIR: My name is Paulette

          8  Sinclair. I live at 60 West 8th Street. I've talked

          9  to Carol because we have exactly the same concern. I

         10  also support Councilman Gerson's amendment because

         11  the problem is it's not a loud sound. I don't hear

         12  music, I hear thump, thump, thump, thump, thump, and

         13  I hear that starting at about 10:30 in the morning,

         14  and they used to stay open til 10:00 at night. Now

         15  they go home at 9:00 on the weeknights, and I know

         16  that because that's when I don't hear it anymore.

         17                 Now, this is a retail store, and I

         18  don't know whether it makes any sense to distinguish

         19  between a nightclub and a retail store, but I always

         20  feel like this music isn't necessary. They've been

         21  somewhat cooperative with me. I can get them

         22  sometimes to turn it down, sometimes they say yes

         23  and don't turn it down. For periods of time they've

         24  actually played music that I couldn't hear at all

         25  just because it didn't have base in it.
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          2                 And I've gone in a couple of times

          3  when they were doing that and said, oh, thank you,

          4  thank you, you know, this is great, this is

          5  acceptable, this is wonderful, but they don't keep

          6  it up and right now I'm going through the thump

          7  thump thump. So, that's my story too.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Number

          9  one, Jerry, I've got a few more customers for you,

         10  Jerry.

         11                 Oh, you've got to go?

         12                 (Speaking from the audience and not

         13  using the microphone.)

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Then maybe these

         15  women can speak to Elisa, okay?

         16                 Number one, any kind of commercial

         17  music is covered by this bill, as our base tones,

         18  and vibrational noise, which heretofore has not been

         19  covered. With regard to your -- Carol, with regard

         20  to your issue about DEP not coming and not being

         21  able to make an appointment, I suspect that I need

         22  you to interact with some of the top DEP officials

         23  that we have here today. I'm sure they, you know,

         24  want to make an arrangement with you that will be

         25  satisfactory to you.

                                                            320

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 And also, Ms. Sinclar, with regard to

          3  your situation, I want you to give it to DEP in

          4  detail as well, but please know that vibrational

          5  noise and base tones are covered in the bill. And,

          6  so, help is on the way. But for immediate help with

          7  regard to scheduling with DEP, they can take care of

          8  you straight away.

          9                 MS. SINCLAIR: Okay, thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay? Thank you

         11  very much for coming.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Since this is

         15  the last panel, let me first begin and reiterate my

         16  gratitude to you. This has been an incredible, an

         17  incredibly productive hearing that I know will yield

         18  productive results.

         19                 These two final panelists do have a

         20  serious issue and a current loophole that we need to

         21  make sure closes, because we have been working on

         22  this awhile and I think we can close it and we need

         23  to make sure we do.

         24                 I look forward to working with you,

         25  and to conclude where I began, thank you for your
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          2  leadership on this.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. I

          4  want to thank all of the witnesses and DEP, and a

          5  special thank you to Council Member Gerson for

          6  staying for the entire hearing, and also for his

          7  dedicated work on this issue in the years and months

          8  and weeks and days leading up to today. It was very,

          9  very helpful. With the exception of myself, he was

         10  the only Council Member to hear every single word of

         11  it.

         12                 I'm going to make reference to the

         13  testimony that was submitted, and this is for DEP to

         14  hear as well. Richard is doing a document search

         15  there. I'm time filling now. Among the many entities

         16  to submit written testimony but were not able to be

         17  here personally, was Peter Ward, who is President of

         18  the New York Hotel Trades Council. They came and

         19  testified at the last noise hearing, along with

         20  Brian McLaughlin. I do have concerns with regard to

         21  political speech being voiced by members of the

         22  Labor Community who work hand-in-hand with the

         23  Police Department for Labor protest, and they are

         24  very interested, as am I, with dealing with one and

         25  only one standard, which is to say, to interact with
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          2  the Police Department with regard to a protest but

          3  also have to contend separately with perhaps the

          4  long arm of the Noise Code, is something that we

          5  must speak to.

          6                 I thank Peter Ward and his

          7  representatives in a special way for working with us

          8  throughout the months leading up to today, and so we

          9  have to take a look at that as well. And I would

         10  like to thank Mr. Ward's representative for being

         11  here throughout the entire proceeding today.

         12                 Please give Peter and Scott my best.

         13                 And we also received testimony for

         14  the record from Eric Zwirling of the Rutgers Noise

         15  Technical Assistance Center. Livvy Mann. From Bruce

         16  Deutchman; from Sally Leuvner; from Steven Dubnof,

         17  President of 333 East 53rd Tenant Corporation. From

         18  Anthony Donovan; from Laia Strock; Dorothy Green;

         19  Jan Lee; Harriett Stella. From Laurie Hannon, who is

         20  the Executive Director, and Amy Boyle, the Director

         21  of Public Education. Both those individuals

         22  represent the League for the Hard of Hearing. Tine

         23  Johansen Jardine. Sandra Rippin. Francis Conant.

         24  Diane and Gilbert Wintering. Marilyn Hemery. Leopold

         25  Godowsky, III. Jeannie Chin of the Civic Center
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          2  Residents Coalition. Lucy Gaynette. Anna Seddio,

          3  Property Manager for Milford Management Corporation.

          4  Paul Steeli-White, who is the Director of

          5  Transportation Alternatives. As I mentioned, Peter

          6  Ward, President of the New York Hotel Trades

          7  Council. Paul Goldstein, District Manager of CB 1

          8  here in Manhattan. William Sherzman, the Director of

          9  the Steel and Ornamental Metal Institutes of New

         10  York. Henry C Kita, Vice President of the Building

         11  Trades Employers Association. Alberta Somai. Kormack

         12  Flynn. An old friend of mine, Kormack Flynn. Robert

         13  Kaskel. Daniel Paul, the owner of the Washington

         14  Square Hotel. Fern Jones. Alan Isaac. Carol Gilmore,

         15  and Sally Arturisos, have all submitted testimony

         16  for the record. We thank them for their involvement.

         17  However, they submitted written testimony, that is.

         18                 Once again, I'd like to thank DEP and

         19  the Police Department representative for being here,

         20  and all of the work that led up to the hearing

         21  today.

         22                 With no one else wishing to be heard,

         23  I'd like to thank the staff for all of their

         24  diligent efforts, and last night, Donna and Richard

         25  and to everyone that made this the wonderfully
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          2  productive hearing that it was. With no one else

          3  wishing to be heard, this hearing is adjourned.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 5:08 p.m.)

          5                 (The following written testimony was

          6  read into the record.)

          7

          8  Written Testimony Of:

          9  Peter Ward

         10  President

         11  NY Hotel Trades Council

         12

         13                 My name is Peter Ward and I currently

         14  serve as the President of the NY Hotel Trades

         15  Council. I have once before submitted testimony on

         16  Intro 397 and I regret that I cannot be here with

         17  you today, but I urge you to not infer complacency

         18  by my absence - in fact, the contrary is true.

         19                 For over a century, our City has been

         20  a bastion of lawful protest. Many of these

         21  demonstrations have been associated with

         22  organizations of our city's working men and women

         23  and the labor movement. From Madison Square to Union

         24  Square, from the 1800's through this week, our City

         25  has stood for protecting the rights of our working
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          2  men and women. At the very least their voices were

          3  heard.

          4                 For many of us, the use of noise on

          5  the picket line in our demonstrations is integral in

          6  having our concerns heard. Certainly, as many of you

          7  know, we could not have won 'The Plaza' victory this

          8  year - a victory so many of you were a part of -

          9  were it not for the volume of our struggle. We again

         10  thank this Council for their support during those

         11  difficult days, so it is with deep respect that I

         12  submit these concerns to you today.

         13                 Since I raised my concerns in the

         14  first hearing regarding this bill, our concerns and

         15  issues have still not been addressed. Out legal

         16  counsel has made it clear that there are provisions

         17  of this legislation that can be used to specifically

         18  curtail the use of noise during the course of a

         19  lawful protest or even union picket line. As the

         20  President responsible for the livelihood of over

         21  25,000 members and their families, and the President

         22  of a union whose contract expires next year, any

         23  limits placed on the sue of noise as a tactic will

         24  make it much more difficult to make our case to

         25  management.
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          2                 There has been a lack of substantive

          3  debate on these complex constitutional and free

          4  speech issues. To address these concerns, we worked

          5  with Chair Jim Gennaro and Councilmember Joe Addabbo

          6  to submit Intro. 419. This piece of legislation

          7  secures the provisions that no future noise code

          8  will curtail this basic right to lawful protest. To

          9  date Intro 419 has not been heard, our concerns have

         10  not been addressed and none of the fears of the

         11  working men and women in regard to this legislation

         12  have been dealt with. In fact, no one has even

         13  attempted to further the debate with these concerns

         14  for almost a year.

         15                 I urge this Council to not let the

         16  concern for a new noise code intended to protect New

         17  Yorkers from unwanted noise, allow you to

         18  simultaneously dissolve the rights you have upheld

         19  for so long.

         20                 Our members and those of the

         21  organized labor movement use the picket line as a

         22  means of exercising their right of free speech. This

         23  right of lawful protest is as old as our nation and

         24  is central to our democratic ideals. For an

         25  out-funded labor union that is often facing

                                                            327

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  corporate conglomerates, the use of noise is one of

          3  the few tactics that cannot be silenced. Management

          4  can out buy us on television and the radio, but they

          5  cannot beat us in the streets. I urge you not to do

          6  their work for them. Do not pass this legislation as

          7  it stands.

          8

          9

         10  Written Testimony Of:

         11  Henry C. Kita

         12  Vice President

         13  Building Trades Employers' Association

         14

         15                 Good morning. My name is Henry Kita.

         16  I am the Vice President of the Building Trades

         17  Employers' Association of New York City (BTEA). The

         18  BTEA represents 25 contractor associations comprised

         19  of 1,500 construction managers, general contractors

         20  and subcontractors who employ the over 100,000

         21  members of the Building and Construction Trades

         22  Council. As such, the BTEA represents the management

         23  segment of the Construction Industry Partnership

         24  with our partners in the labor sector at the

         25  Building and Construction Trades Council.
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          2                 Our BTEA contractors and employers

          3  support the economic base of the City of New York

          4  paying over $1.2 billion in taxes to the City and

          5  State of New York. In addition, our member

          6  contractors take seriously the health and safety

          7  concerns of our employees as well as the general

          8  public as we go about conducting our construction

          9  activities throughout the five boroughs.

         10                 Included among these health and

         11  safety concerns is the specific subject of the bill,

         12  Int. 397-A, on which we are testifying today...

         13  noise. While we are generally supportive of a

         14  "quality of life" initiative such as the one

         15  covered in this proposed legislation, we are wary of

         16  the restrictions contained in 397-A that might be

         17  imposed on our industry and the ability of our

         18  members to efficiently and expeditiously go about

         19  the business of building in the City of New York.

         20  The imposition of new noise regulations while well

         21  intentioned might prove to be injurious to the

         22  economic vitality of New York City if they are not

         23  administered reasonably and crafted with all due

         24  deliberation. In spite of this type of reservation,

         25  the BTEA is heartened to see that the most recent
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          2  draft of 397-A includes provisions for the

          3  appointment of an advisory committee to assist the

          4  Commissioner of the New York City Department of

          5  Environmental Protection (DEP) in the promulgation

          6  of rules pursuant to this legislation. We would hope

          7  and urge that the construction contractors of the

          8  BTEA be included in this advisory group should this

          9  legislation be enacted and that the opinions of the

         10  construction industry be given full consideration.

         11                 The BTEA is also wary but somewhat

         12  encouraged by the addition of language to this draft

         13  of 397-A addressing the ability of construction

         14  contractors to work within limits on weekends and

         15  what might best be described as after hours with the

         16  consent and approval of the Commissioner of DEP.

         17                 Many construction activities now take

         18  place as a matter of necessity and economics during

         19  weekends and after hours, and to unduly restrict

         20  construction during these time frames might hamper

         21  the conduct of everyday commerce and needlessly

         22  inhibit new construction and renovation work in New

         23  York City.

         24                 Because some of the changes and

         25  improvements appear to have been made to this bill
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          2  in the last couple of days, it is the belief of the

          3  BTEA that the City Council should move very

          4  deliberately on this matter and allow further

          5  dialogue over a reasonable period of time between

          6  the construction industry, the Administration and

          7  the City Council prior to any final vote.

          8                 To take the fast track on 397-A now,

          9  without a full and final review by our constituency,

         10  may in the final analysis result in legislation that

         11  slows construction projects to a crawl and forces an

         12  increase in construction costs.

         13                 The Building Trades Employers'

         14  Association appreciates the opportunity to appear

         15  before you today and hopes to continue to

         16  participate in the further development of Int. No.

         17  397-A.

         18                 Thank you for hearing our thoughts on

         19  this matter of great importance to the New York City

         20  construction industry.

         21

         22

         23  Written Testimony Of:

         24  Tine Johansen Jardine

         25  55 West 55th Street, #4B
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          2  New York, NY 10019

          3

          4

          5  Sandra Riopin

          6  55 West 55th Street, #2C

          7  New York, NY 10019

          8

          9                 Honorable Members of the City

         10  Council's Environmental Protection Committee:

         11                 As residents of 55 West 55th Street,

         12  we are grateful to be given the opportunity to

         13  express our undivided support for the

         14  Recommendations made by the West 54- 55 Street Block

         15  Association in reference to the newly proposed NYC

         16  Noise Code, Int., 397-A.

         17                 Recognizing that the neighborhood we

         18  live in is mixed commercial/residential, it is our

         19  belief that the two can exist side by side by

         20  addressing a number of areas, the main ones being

         21  reduced noise decibel levels and hours of operation

         22  for machinery used for:

         23                 - Refuse Compacting Vehicles.

         24                 - Construction.

         25                 - Removal of Construction Debris by
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          2  Compacting Vehicles.

          3                 - Circulation Devices.

          4                 - Loose Steel Plates and Manholes.

          5                 Other acute areas of concern are:

          6                 - Idling.

          7                 - Enforcement of Law.

          8                 Both commercial and civilian vehicle

          9  idling occur 24 hours/day. The noise level in

         10  combination with the exhaust fumes, reaching as high

         11  as the 4th and 5th floors of residential buildings,

         12  make it particularly concerning at night when

         13  residents are attempting to sleep.

         14                 Furthermore, the response time of law

         15  enforcement is quite often more than 60 minutes,

         16  which can make it difficult for said law enforcement

         17  to take appropriate action.

         18                 Honorable Members of the

         19  Environmental Protection Committee, we wish to

         20  sincerely express how truly attached to this

         21  neighborhood we are, having lived here more than 15

         22  and 35 years, respectively.

         23                 We, along with both residential and

         24  commercial neighbors, treasure the streets around

         25  us. It is our strong belief that it is possible to
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          2  enhance, and better protect the quality of

          3  residential life as well as watch the neighborhood

          4  grow and prosper commercially.

          5                 As such, we would therefore ask that

          6  you consider adapting the aforementioned

          7  recommendations made by the West 54-55 Street Block

          8  Association and that you make these recommendations

          9  part of the newly proposed NYC Noise Code, Int.,

         10  397-A.

         11                 Again, we sincerely thank you for

         12  your time and consideration.

         13

         14                 Sincerely, Tine Johansen Jardine

         15  55 West 55th Street, #4B, New York, NY 10019; Sandra

         16  Ripin, 55 West 55th Street, #2C, New York, NY 10019.

         17

         18

         19  Written Testimony Of:

         20  Francis P. Conant

         21  45 West 54th St., Apt. 7C, NYC, NY 10019

         22

         23

         24  To: Members of the New York City Council

         25                 I urge your careful review and
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          2  modification of this proposed new noise code for the

          3  following reasons:

          4                 1. Allowable decibel levels are UP,

          5  not down.

          6                 2. No allowance is made for reduced

          7  noise levels in areas zoned as MIXED

          8  RESIDENTIAL/COMMERCIAL, especially AT NIGHT.

          9                 3. We, who live in such areas, find

         10  high noise levels at night intrusive of sleep and

         11  with serious, documented, effects on health.

         12  Efficiency at work is affected and children's

         13  performance at school diminished.

         14                 4. The proposed new noise code makes

         15  no provision for the input of NYC's residents in

         16  creating a new and humane noise code.

         17                 In World War II, I was a forward

         18  observer in an artillery observation battalion. I

         19  know, and Council Members should know, just how

         20  devastating incoming noise can be. I urge Council

         21  Members to postpone action on this proposed revision

         22  until a thorough review is made, public opinion

         23  sought, and most of all, recognized.

         24                 Sincerely, Francis P. Conant

         25                 Former front line "flash ranger"
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          2  observer for the 294the Field Artillery Observation

          3  Battalion in the ETO.

          4

          5

          6  Written Testimony Of:

          7  Diane Wintering

          8  President of 12-18 West 55th Street Tenants

          9  Association

         10  14 West 55th Street - 5A

         11  New York, NY 10019

         12

         13  Gilbert Wintering

         14  14 West 55th Street - 5A

         15  New York, NY 10019

         16

         17

         18                 To: The New York City Council

         19  Environmental Protection Committee.

         20                 Subject: Changes to the Noise Code.

         21

         22                 Dear Committee Members:

         23                 After 33 years, the Noise Code is

         24  being revised. I write as a residential tenant

         25  living in an apartment that faces towards West 55th
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          2  Street, just a few steps from Fifth Avenue. In the

          3  past 15 years, which is the duration of my tenancy,

          4  the problem of Noise has grown, to the point that it

          5  is out of control.

          6                 There is little acknowledgment, that

          7  this area of Midtown, West 54th Street and West 55th

          8  Street, between Fifth and Sixth Avenue (Avenue of

          9  the Americas) 10019, is a mixed

         10  commercial/residential area, and is treated as

         11  "commercial" rather than mixed. We, who live in

         12  this area, suffer the growing noise problem night

         13  and day. I would like to see changes made to the

         14  noise code noted below and I would like to see

         15  strict enforcement of the law. Without law

         16  enforcement, no changes will take place.

         17                 1. There should be no Commercial

         18  Garbage pick-up between 11 PM-6 AM. Commercial

         19  Garbage pick-up should have to follow the same

         20  guidelines as NYC Sanitation.

         21                 2. Compactors should not be permitted

         22  to run endlessly during pickup.

         23                 3. Dumpsters should not be picked up

         24  or delivered between 11 PM- 6AM.

         25                 4. Trucks should not be permitted to
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          2  keep their engines running, nor should they be

          3  permitted to park with radios/stereo players turned

          4  on that are audible to a point they can be heard in

          5  apartments facing the street.

          6                 5. No Horn Blowing/No Air Horn

          7  blowing. DOT should erect signs clearly stating this

          8  law.

          9                 6. No construction allowed after 8PM.

         10  This law should be STRICTLY enforced.

         11                 7. Hours set for parades should be

         12  enforced, and noise from parades should be set at a

         13  level that does not invade apartment life -

         14  apartment dwellers should be able to rest, h ear TV,

         15  radio, and have a respected level of life on parade

         16  days.

         17                 As residents of West 55th Street, we

         18  do not believe that any of the above are

         19  unreasonable requests. All New Yorkers are entitled

         20  to a decent quality of life, which includes a Silent

         21  Night. Too much noise effects sleep. Lack of sleep

         22  effects health and ability to perform daily chores.

         23                 We hope that you will consider the

         24  above and make suitable changes to the Noise Code.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 Diane Wintering (President of 12-18

          3  West 55th Street Tenants Association), 14 West 55th

          4  Street - 5A, New York, NY 10019; Gilbert Wintering,

          5  14 West 55th Street - 5A, New York, NY 10019.

          6

          7

          8  Written Testimony Of:

          9  Leopold Godowsky III

         10  17 West 54th Street 10F

         11  New York, NY 10019-5404

         12

         13                 Dear Environmental Protection

         14  Committee:

         15                 I am a concert pianist and composer,

         16  and all my life have needed to be attentive to the

         17  welfare of my hearing as well as my peace of mind.

         18  Unfortunately, noises of New York while walking in

         19  the streets are difficult to avoid much of the time

         20  - and when unacceptable, I will plug my ears with

         21  my fingers.

         22                 However, in the sanctuary of my home

         23  I can't plug my ears with my fingers whenever there

         24  are loud sounds, and I also find it objectionable,

         25  indeed unacceptable, to have street sounds interfere
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          2  with my sleep. Additionally, I certainly don't want

          3  to have such sounds in the long term cause me

          4  hearing loss which damage can be cumulative!

          5                 Because my apartment is in a

          6  residential area with some restaurants and stores on

          7  the block, I'd like to formally complain about the

          8  noise and request that you recommend that you

          9  restricted any noise created by construction,

         10  garbage trucks, idling trucks or any other source of

         11  objectionable noise from at least 10:00 PM to 7:00

         12  AM.

         13                 Thank you for your consideration and

         14  help.

         15                 Sincerely, Leopold Godowsky III

         16

         17

         18  Written Testimony Of:

         19  Marilyn C. Hemery

         20  15 West 55th Street

         21  New York, NY 10019

         22  (212) 757-2220

         23

         24  December 12, 2005

         25
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          2                 To Whom It May Concern:

          3                 I have been a resident of 15 West

          4  55th Street for almost 35 years, having lived in the

          5  same apartment which is on the street side of my

          6  building, on the third floor.

          7                 I am a working senior citizen and

          8  therefore I am unable to attend this important

          9  meeting. I live in a commercial/residential area a

         10  short distance from the Peninsula Hotel on the

         11  opposite side of the street. Adjoining the Peninsula

         12  is what I believe to be the freight entrance to the

         13  University Club which is located on 55th Street.

         14                 I am writing in the hopes that you

         15  will consider passing a bill controlling the noise

         16  level, which is tolerable during the day. At night,

         17  it is impossible to have a full night's sleep. The

         18  garbage trucks, either from the Peninsula or the

         19  University Club, make it impossible to have a good

         20  night's sleep. They have no scheduled time for

         21  pick-up. The noise level is so loud, whether it be

         22  11 PM, 1AM, 3AM or 6AM, I am awakened every night

         23  from a sound sleep. At 11 PM, when I am watching the

         24  news on TV, the sound on my TV is drowned out by the

         25  grinding of the garbage trucks. I am awakened almost

                                                            341

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  every night by the grinding which goes on and on and

          3  on - for more than an hour at times. I pray that you

          4  will pass an ordinance prohibiting garbage pickups

          5  after 10 PM. Not only is the noise overbearing, but

          6  the fumes from the idling truck fill my bedroom. I

          7  like to have a window open in my bedroom, but now I

          8  can't because of the offensive fumes...there is no

          9  such thing as fresh air.

         10                 Another point I would like you to

         11  consider is idling trucks when a movie is being made

         12  in New York. As you are aware, there are numerous

         13  trucks parked on the streets to accommodate the

         14  actors and their equipment. Many times those trucks

         15  are in front of our building and for some reason,

         16  they are kept running. Not only are they noisy, but

         17  the fumes pollute the air to the point where I gag

         18  and need to leave my apartment. I realize the city

         19  needs the revenue from these projects, however, at

         20  the same time I believe the city needs to protect

         21  the environment and its inhabitants. More stringent

         22  guidelines need to be enacted and enforced.

         23                 I love my home, I love where I live,

         24  and I truly love New York. Thank you for your time

         25  and consideration.
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          2                 Sincerely, Marilyn Hemery.

          3

          4

          5  Written Testimony Of:

          6  Manhattan Community Board 5

          7  David Diamond, Chair

          8  John Mills, Chair, Transportation Committee

          9  Gary Parker, M.S.W., District Manager

         10

         11

         12  October 21, 2005

         13

         14

         15  Mayor Michael Bloomberg

         16  City Hall

         17  New York, NY

         18

         19  Hon. Emily Lloyd

         20  Commissioner

         21  Department of Environmental Protection

         22  59-47 Junction Boulevard

         23  Corona, NY 11368

         24

         25  Hon. James Gennaro
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          2  Councilmember

          3  185-10 Union Turnpike

          4  Queens, NY 11366

          5

          6

          7  RE: Intro 397- Revision of the New York City Noise

          8  Code

          9

         10                 Dear Hon. Bloomberg, Hon. Lloyd, Hon.

         11  Gennaro:

         12

         13  At the regularly scheduled monthly meeting of

         14  Community Board Five on Thursday, October 20, 2005,

         15  the Board passed the following resolution

         16  recommending approval by a vote of 27 in favor; 0

         17  opposed; 1 abstentions:

         18                 WHEREAS, Noise is a problem in New

         19  York City and Community Board Five and studies have

         20  shown excessive noise impacts the health of

         21  residents and their quality of life; and

         22                 WHEREAS, New York City was one of the

         23  first cities in the nation to adopt a Noise Code in

         24  1972 and that noise code has not been updated since

         25  its enactment; and
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          2                 WHEREAS, The Mayor and reports from

          3  3-1-1 have identified noise as one of the major

          4  quality of life issues in the city and undertaken a

          5  revision of the Noise Code which has been introduced

          6  in the City Council as Intro No. 397; and

          7                 WHEREAS, This revision in most

          8  instances lowers the decibel level for ambient noise

          9  and would help address the noise problems many

         10  communities face; and

         11                 WHEREAS, Specifics of the proposed

         12  Noise Code include:

         13                 1. Raising the level of noise

         14  permitted in some cases including increasing trash

         15  collection compactors from 70 decibels to 78

         16  decibels.

         17                 2. Limiting most construction and

         18  construction related noise from 10 pm to 7 am;

         19                 3. Lowering the decibel level for

         20  building air conditioning and heating units from 45

         21  decibels to 42 decibels for all units on the

         22  building; and

         23                 4. Establishing a commission to

         24  examine and make recommendations on solutions to

         25  airport, rapid transit and railroad noise within 2
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          2  years.

          3                 WHEREAS, Community Board Five

          4  believes that the following changes need to be made

          5  to strengthen the Noise Code:

          6                 1. Return the permitted noise level

          7  for trash collection compactors to 70 decibels

          8  rather than the proposed 78 decibels;

          9                 2. Prohibit trash compacting and

         10  dumpster drops and pick-ups from 10 pm to 7 am

         11  except in emergency conditions;

         12                 3. Add car alarms to-the study of

         13  airport, rapid transit and railroad noise;

         14                 4. Include standards to reduce street

         15  traffic noise including late night street

         16  construction and ill fitting traffic gratings and

         17  plates "which should prominently indicate who placed

         18  the plates"; and

         19                 5. Include standards to monitor and

         20  reduce noise from late night crowds dispersing from

         21  establishments and loud car radios.

         22                 WHEREAS, Enforcement of the Noise

         23  Code is the key element to its effectiveness and we

         24  encourage that the Department of Environmental

         25  Protection provide adequate resources for this;

                                                            346

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  therefore be it

          3                 RESOLVED, Community Board Five

          4  supports enactment of the new Noise Code with the

          5  above recommended changes.

          6                 Sincerely, David Diamond, Chair

          7

          8

          9  cc: Hon. C. Virginia Fields; Hon. Thomas Duane; Hon.

         10  Liz Krueger; Hon. Richard Gottfried; Hon. Steven

         11  Sanders; Hon. Deborah Glick; Hon. Jonathan Bing;

         12  Hon. Christine Quinn; Hon. Margarita Lopez; Hon. Eva

         13  Moskowitz; Hon. Gale Brewer; Manhattan Community

         14  Boards 1-12

         15

         16

         17  Written Testimony Of:

         18  Jeanie Chin

         19  Civic Center Residents Coalition

         20  180 Park Row, 3B

         21  New York, NY 10038

         22

         23

         24  NYC Council Committee on the Environment: Noise

         25  December 14, 2005
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          2

          3                 I am a Park Row resident in

          4  Manhattan. The newly installed NYPD barricades are

          5  located directly under my windows. The clanging of

          6  the steel plates each time a vehicle goes over these

          7  barricades in both directions is loud and

          8  disturbing. Since some of the MTA bus routes were

          9  restored, this past May, and more this past

         10  September, the long, six wheel, articulated buses as

         11  well as other vehicles clang continuously over the

         12  barricades 24/7 disturbing the peace and destroying

         13  our mental health.

         14                 We patiently waited for the NYPD to

         15  fix this problem but they did nothing. Finally I

         16  called 311 in August to formally register a

         17  complaint along with a detailed explanation of the

         18  problem. When nothing was done, I called again in

         19  November and got the runaround. I was routed from

         20  the Department of Transportation to the 5th Precinct

         21  to One Police Plaza. In October I also called One

         22  Police Plaza on my own to register my complaints

         23  with the "security" department. Each time One Police

         24  Plaza said they were working on the problem and

         25  would get back to me, but there has been no relief.
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          2  It doesn't take a rocket scientist to figure out

          3  that a rubber pad along the rim of the steel plate

          4  might cushion and muffle some of the impact sounds.

          5  But there appears to be no interest in correcting

          6  this problem.

          7                 What is a citizen to do when

          8  heartless bureaucrats are the ones disturbing the

          9  peace? "There oughta be a law" and that's why I

         10  wholeheartedly support Councilman Alan Gerson's New

         11  Noise Code.

         12

         13

         14  Written Testimony Of:

         15  Paul Goldstein

         16  District Manager

         17  Community Board No. 1, Manhattan

         18

         19                 Good morning. I am Paul Goldstein,

         20  the District Manager of Community Board #1 in

         21  Manhattan. CB#1 covers most of Lower Manhattan

         22  including Tribeca, Battery Park City, the Financial

         23  District, and the Seaport and Civic Center areas. I

         24  am here to testify regarding the proposed revised

         25  Noise Code now before the City Council.
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          2                 As with most other Community Boards,

          3  we receive more complaints regarding excessive noise

          4  than about any other issue. We also hear stories

          5  constantly from our constituents about the

          6  frustration that they feel about the poor response

          7  of City agencies to their noise complaints. It is

          8  therefore very important that the City Council and

          9  Mayor's office reach an agreement to upgrade the

         10  current NYC Noise Code and identify a far better

         11  means of enforcing the Noise Code.

         12                 While CB #1 is encouraged by the

         13  provisions contained in Intro. No. 397-A as drafted,

         14  we would encourage the City Council and Mayor to

         15  strongly consider adding the even stronger

         16  provisions being put forth by some Council Members

         17  including our local Council Member Alan Gerson. Alan

         18  is well aware of the particular noise problems that

         19  we have here in Lower Manhattan and has drafted

         20  revisions intended to adequately address them.

         21                 The major noise complaints that we

         22  face in our district are construction noise from

         23  jackhammering, pile-driving, loud machinery, and

         24  vehicles traveling over metal plates, noise from

         25  loud music systems in clubs, restaurants and homes,
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          2  horn honking, noisy generators, sanitation trucks,

          3  and people loitering late at night.

          4                 Clearly, there are steps that can be

          5  taken to mitigate the noise generated by each of

          6  these. For example, we have worked with developers

          7  to utilize acoustical barriers and blankets around

          8  loud equipment. This technology does exist and the

          9  City should take steps to mandate its use in certain

         10  circumstances.

         11                 One thing that has me somewhat leery

         12  regarding this proposed legislation is the question

         13  of how it is to be enforced. I know that people who

         14  have called 311 have expressed great disappointment

         15  in the failure to get any kind of response or

         16  relief. Likewise, people who call the local precinct

         17  consistently report that the police never respond to

         18  their noise complaints. I would say that coming up

         19  with a reliable and effective enforcement mechanism

         20  is probably the most important step that you can

         21  take to truly bring about the noise reduction that

         22  we all seek.

         23                 In my opinion, we need to bring the

         24  NYC Police Department back into the business of

         25  enforcing the Noise Code. Only the NYPD has the
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          2  personnel necessary to respond to noise complaints

          3  in a timely manner.

          4                 When someone calls about

          5  jackhammering under their window at 2 am they need a

          6  response immediately, not next weekend when the

          7  culprits will be long gone. DEP simply doesn't have

          8  the necessary personnel to respond to most noise

          9  complaints and I have my doubts that they will

         10  anytime soon. The NYPD should be equipped with

         11  decibel measuring devices and trained in their use.

         12  Then the NYPD should show that they are serious

         13  about addressing quality of life issues by

         14  establishing a comstat type of system to monitor and

         15  drive down noise complaints in every precinct in the

         16  City.

         17                 Just as Commanding Officers are held

         18  responsible for the level of car break-ins and

         19  muggings they should also be put into a system that

         20  makes them accountable for the number of noise

         21  complaints in their command.

         22                 In summary, Community Board #1

         23  strongly urges that the City Council adopt a

         24  stronger Noise Code, preferably one that addresses

         25  the loopholes identified by Council Member Gerson.
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          2  The Council must also address the equally important

          3  issue of enforcement of the code so that the

          4  citizens of New York know that the City is serious

          5  about tackling this widespread and difficult

          6  problem.

          7

          8

          9  Written Testimony Of:

         10  Paul Steely White

         11  Executive Director

         12  Transportation Alternatives

         13

         14  The New Noise Code and Car Alarms

         15

         16  Testimony to the Environmental Protection Committee

         17  of the New York City Council on Int. No. 397-A

         18

         19                 Thank you Chairman Gennaro and

         20  members of the Environmental Protection Committee

         21  for holding today's hearing. My name is Paul Steely

         22  White. I am the Executive Director of Transportation

         23  Alternatives, New York City's advocates for walking,

         24  bicycling and sensible transportation.

         25                 I am here today to urge the passage
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          2  of Int. No. 397-A, which will enable the City to

          3  undertake a study of the feasibility of phasing out

          4  the use of audible car alarms.

          5                 As you are aware, the Transportation

          6  Alternatives, with the support of countless New

          7  Yorkers, has long advocated for a full ban on the

          8  use of audible car alarms. Studies show that car

          9  alarm noise raises blood pressure, increases stress

         10  hormones and exacerbates illness. It leads to

         11  learning problems, as children struggle to

         12  concentrate or to sleep.

         13                 In our study, "Alarmingly Useless:

         14  The Case for Banning Car Alarms in New York City,"

         15  Transportation Alternatives has detailed the many

         16  reasons why a full ban on the use of audible car

         17  alarms in New York City is possible, popular and

         18  necessary.

         19                 Everyone agrees that car alarms are

         20  annoying. But many still think that their annoyance

         21  is worth their deterrent effect on crime. But car

         22  alarms do not work to deter crime. The only unbiased

         23  study ever done on the subject - one conducted by

         24  the insurance industry - shows that car alarms do

         25  nothing to stop car theft.
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          2                 In fact, car alarms contribute to

          3  crime. Consistent with modern crime theory, the NYPD

          4  recognizes that the random blaring of car alarms,

          5  "invites both further disorder and serious crime."

          6                 Based on our discussions with DEP

          7  Deputy Commissioner Robert Avaltroni, we believe

          8  that the car alarm study included in this bill will

          9  closely examine the deterrent effect of audible car

         10  alarms. If they are found to be of limited deterrent

         11  value, we also understand that this study will

         12  include recommended steps towards phasing out their

         13  use.

         14                 Both the Mayor and the Council have

         15  recognized the importance of mitigating unnecessary

         16  and obnoxious noise in our city. We commend the

         17  Mayor and the Council for taking a step forward

         18  towards a stronger noise code, including a full ban

         19  on the use of audible car alarms, through the

         20  passage of Int. 397-A.

         21                 Thank you.

         22

         23

         24  Written Testimony Of:

         25  Lucy Garnett

                                                            355

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  180 Park Row, Apt. 24B

          3  New York, NY 10038

          4

          5  NYC Council Committee on the Environment: Noise

          6

          7  December 14, 2005

          8

          9                 My husband and I are residents of 180

         10  Park Row, overlooking the intersection of Park Row

         11  and Pearl Street where the Police Center is located.

         12                 For several months recently there has

         13  been a sporadically repeated machine noise that

         14  arises from a grating next to the Police Center. It

         15  is a high pitched, loud whine that goes off some

         16  mornings at 5:20 am on the dot, and other mornings

         17  at 5:50 am on the dot. Our belief is that it may be

         18  caused by a large and powerful compressor, but

         19  because the security perimeter is so tight, we have

         20  not been able to make any direct complaint about the

         21  noise.

         22                 We have been forced to work

         23  indirectly by calling 311, which patches us through

         24  to the NYC Environmental Protection Agency. The

         25  noise has still not been corrected, and when it
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          2  occurs we are woken up as much as two hours early

          3  without being able to go back to sleep.

          4                 For several years now a guard booth

          5  has been standing on Park Row close to Park Row and

          6  Pearl Street, that is used for security checks of

          7  vehicles entering the security perimeter of the

          8  Police Center. This booth often has dogs. There are

          9  sporadically repeated episodes where, in the early

         10  morning, the dogs begin barking and continue for

         11  quite a while. One such episode was just this

         12  morning, waking my husband up an hour early so that

         13  he could not get back to sleep.

         14                 New York City residents are often

         15  forced to suffer indignities, due the insensitivity

         16  of bureaucracies and other nonresidential

         17  institutions. Strong laws are our only recourse when

         18  bureaucrats repeatedly refuse to act. We strongly

         19  support the new noise code proposed by Councilman

         20  Alan Gerson.

         21

         22  Anna Seddio

         23  Property Manager

         24  Milford Management Corp.

         25  99 Battery Place

                                                            357

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  New York, New York 10280

          3  TEL: 212/842-7310

          4  FAX: 212/842-7410

          5

          6  December 14, 2005

          7

          8  Mr. Richard Colon

          9  Legislative Policy Analyst

         10  City Council Environmental Protection Committee

         11

         12                 Dear Mr. Colon:

         13                 Please see multiple letters sent

         14  regarding increased helicopter traffic over Battery

         15  Park City.

         16                 People who live along the water need

         17  immediate relief from helicopters flying by their

         18  apartments on a regular basis.

         19                 This is a very important quality of

         20  life issue to residents in Battery Park City.

         21                 Very truly yours, MILFORD MANAGEMENT

         22  CORP., Anna Seddio, Property Manager

         23

         24

         25  Written Testimony Of:
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          2  Anna Seddio

          3  Assistant Property Manager

          4

          5  Ms. Joan McDonald

          6  Senior Vice President

          7  Transportation Department

          8  New York Economic Development Crop.

          9  110 William Street

         10  New York, NY 10038

         11

         12                 Dear Ms. McDonald:

         13                 Thank you for your July 2, 2004 reply

         14  to my letter to Mayor Bloomberg regarding helicopter

         15  traffic flying over Battery Park City.

         16                 We have since learned that in

         17  addition to tourist traffic, Liberty Helicopters

         18  schedules transportation flights from New York to

         19  Washington D.C. and because of the high demand,

         20  fills three and four helicopters at a time, which

         21  fly in formation over Battery Park City. Isaac

         22  Gindi, of Century 21 Department Stores, has

         23  requested Liberty Helicopters to schedule these

         24  flights 15 to 20 minutes apart to prevent the noise

         25  pollution of four helicopters in succession flying
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          2  over at once. They are not willing to adhere to his

          3  request.

          4                 We ask for your assistance in

          5  regulating the time between take-offs as this would

          6  minimize the problem.

          7                 Very truly yours, MILFORD MANAGEMENT

          8  CORP, Anna Seddio, Assistant Property Manager.

          9

         10

         11  Cc: Boards of Managers - Liberty Terrace

         12  Condominium; Liberty House Condominium; Liberty

         13  Court Condominium; Liberty View Condominium; Liberty

         14  View West Condominium; The Soundings Condominium

         15

         16

         17  New York City Economic Development Corporation

         18

         19  Ms. Anna Seddio

         20  Milford Management Corp.

         21  99 Battery Place

         22  New York, NY 10280

         23

         24                 Dear Ms. Seddio,

         25                 Thank you for your letter, sent to
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          2  Mayor Bloomberg, describing concerns related to

          3  helicopter flights in New York. I have been asked to

          4  respond, as the New York City Economic Development

          5  Corporation oversees helicopter policy for the City.

          6                 The City of New York can only

          7  regulate helicopter take-offs and landings as

          8  land-based operations. The specific flight paths

          9  used by pilots are not under the City's

         10  jurisdiction. The FAA controls local airspace, and

         11  has established flight paths and minimum altitude

         12  requirements. Although the City does not control

         13  these activities, NYCEDC maintains a relationship

         14  with the FAA and has consistently requested that the

         15  FAA work with the industry to gain compliance with

         16  FAA guidelines.

         17                 The New York City Heliport and

         18  Helicopter Master Plan was completed in 1999 and

         19  addressed all land-based and community issues

         20  related to helicopter flights in New York City.

         21  Specifically, it provided that tourist helicopter

         22  flights do not constitute transportation and should

         23  be prohibited.

         24                 We anticipate that the tour services

         25  at West 30th and Downtown heliports will not
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          2  continue, due to changes in location and expiration

          3  of Federal grant obligations within the next few

          4  years. However, this will not end tourist flights in

          5  the skies above New York City.

          6                 We are continuing to work with the

          7  FAA to ensure that individual pilots fly

          8  responsibly, with the aim of reducing unnecessary

          9  noise impacts to residents.

         10                 Thanks again for expressing your

         11  concern.

         12                 Sincerely, Joan McDonald, Senior Vice

         13  President, Transportation Department

         14

         15

         16  cc: Mayor's Office of Correspondence, City Hall.

         17

         18

         19  May 13, 2004

         20

         21

         22  Mr. Richard Muller

         23  Environmental & Transport

         24  Policy Analyst

         25  Office of the Borough President
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          2  One Centre Street

          3  New York, NY 10007

          4

          5  Ms. Connie Fishman

          6  Executive Director

          7  Hudson River Park Trust

          8  Pier 40 @ West Houston Street

          9  New York, NY 10014

         10

         11                 Dear Mr. Muller & Ms. Fishman:

         12                 Enclosed please find copies of my

         13  letters to the Mayor's office and to NYC Economic

         14  Development Corp. I spoke with Bronson Fox of the

         15  EDC who advised that you may be bale to help reduce

         16  the amount of tourist helicopter traffic flying

         17  directly over Battery Park City.

         18                 Residents are complaining of these

         19  helicopters because of (a) noise (b) frequency of

         20  traffic (c) flying too close to buildings (d)

         21  security threat (e) risk of crashing. The increased

         22  traffic has become a quality of life issue and

         23  residents are very concerned.

         24                 With terror alerts heightened,

         25  there's also the concern of a helicopter being
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          2  hijacked and flown into a building or bombing a

          3  target.

          4                 This issue is very important to many

          5  residents in Battery Park City. One of our

          6  building's Board Members, Isaac Gindi, also of

          7  Century 21 Department Stores, has also been

          8  diligently trying to stop these helicopters from

          9  flying so close to our buildings.

         10                 Lease (sic) let me know how this

         11  issue can or will be addressed.

         12                 Very truly yours, MILFORD MANAGEMENT

         13  CORP.

         14                 As agent for Liberty Terrace

         15  Condominium; Liberty House Condominium; Liberty

         16  Court Condominium; Liberty View Condominium; Hudson

         17  View West Condominium, Anna Seddio, Assistant

         18  Property Manager

         19

         20

         21  May 6, 2004

         22

         23  Mr. Steven Jacobs

         24  Mr. Bronson Fox

         25  NYC Economic Development Corp
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          2  110 Williams Street

          3  New York, NY 10038

          4

          5  Re: Helicopter Traffic in Battery Park City

          6

          7                 Dear Mr. Jacobs & Mr. Fox:

          8                 Over the past year or so Battery Park

          9  City has experienced a significant increase in

         10  helicopter traffic. It appears that the majority of

         11  this traffic is coming from the Liberty Helicopter

         12  Tours.

         13                 Residents in Battery Park City are

         14  very concerned. It has become a quality of life

         15  issue with noise making living conditions unbearable

         16  for some residents. There is also fear of a

         17  helicopter being hijacked and crashed into a

         18  building, or mechanical problems as Chopper 4

         19  experienced two days ago.

         20                 Isaac Gindi of Century 21 Department

         21  Stores (a resident of Battery Park City) has

         22  contacted many public officials to try to stop the

         23  helicopters from flying so close to the buildings.

         24  Enclosed is a copy of my letter to Mayor Bloomberg

         25  requesting assistance in resolving this issue.
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          2                 Michelle Needle of the DEP advised

          3  that you are overseeing the development of the New

          4  York City Heliport and Helicopter Master Plan Study.

          5  In your development of a master plan, please take

          6  into consideration the quality of life issues

          7  resulting from these this unnecessary traffic.

          8  (sic). Please let me know how this important issue

          9  will be addressed.

         10                 Sincerely, MILFORD MANAGEMENT CORP.,

         11  as Agent for, Liberty Court Condominium; Liberty

         12  House Condominium; Liberty Terrace Condominium;

         13  Liberty View Condominium; Hudson view West

         14  Condominium

         15

         16  Anna Seddio, Assistant Property Manager

         17

         18  cc: Timothy S. Carey

         19  President & CEO

         20  Battery Park City Authority

         21  One World Financial Center

         22  New York, NY 10281-1097

         23

         24  Assemblymember Sheldon Silver

         25  250 Broadway, Suit 2307
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          2  New York, NY 10007

          3

          4  Honorable Michael R. Bloomberg

          5  City Hall

          6  New York, NY 10007

          7

          8  Rep. Jerrold Nadler

          9  201 Varick Street, Suite 669

         10  New York, NY 10014

         11

         12  Mr. Steven Jacobs

         13  Mr. Bronson Fox

         14       NYC Economic Development Corp.

         15  May 6, 2004

         16  Page 2

         17

         18  cc: City Councilman Alan Gerson

         19  51 Chambers Street, Suite 429

         20  New York, NY 10007

         21

         22  Thomas Kunkel,

         23  Regional Director

         24  NYS DEC - Region 2

         25  47-20 21st Street
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          2  Washington, DC 20460

          3

          4  Betsy Gotbaum

          5  Public Advocate

          6  One Centre Street, 15th Floor

          7  New York, NY 10007

          8

          9  Madelyn Wils

         10  Chairperson

         11  Community Board 1

         12  49-51 Chambers Street, Room 715

         13  New York, NY 10007-1209

         14

         15  Richard Martin

         16  Manager of Flight Standards

         17  Farmingdale District, FAA

         18  7150 Republic Airport

         19  Suite 235

         20  Farmingdale, NY 11735

         21

         22  Board of Managers

         23  Liberty Court Condominium

         24  Liberty House Condominium

         25  Liberty Terrace Condominium
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          2  Liberty View Condominium

          3  Hudson View West Condominium

          4

          5

          6

          7  MILFORD MANAGEMENT CORP.

          8  99 Battery Place

          9  New York, New York 10280

         10  TEL: 212/842-7310

         11  FAX: 212/842-7410

         12

         13

         14  March 23, 2004

         15

         16

         17  Honorable Michael R. Bloomberg

         18  City Hall

         19  New York, NY 10007

         20

         21  Dear Mayor Bloomberg:

         22

         23  Re: Helicopter Traffic Battery Park City

         24  Noise Pollution

         25  Security Issue
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          2

          3                 We have received increasing

          4  complaints of helicopter traffic through Battery

          5  Park City daily. They fly continuously from 9:00 am

          6  through 7:00 pm on weekends as well as during the

          7  week. Their route begins by crossing in front of the

          8  Ritz Carlton Hotel, proceeding very close to Liberty

          9  Terrace and Liberty House and on to Gateway Plaza,

         10  looping around the other side of the river to the

         11  Statue of Liberty and then proceeding back to the

         12  Ritz Carlton to begin again.

         13                 After witnessing the tragedy of

         14  September 11, 2001, and now with increased terror

         15  alerts and heightened security compounded by the

         16  roaring aircraft sound, the helicopters cause a

         17  spontaneous panic-like reaction leaving residents

         18  with questions as to why these helicopters are

         19  allowed to fly so close to the residential buildings

         20  in Battery Park City.

         21                 We called the FAA who advised that

         22  the Port Authority regulates helicopter traffic in

         23  NYC. The Port Authority referred us to the EPA, who

         24  then referred us to the DEP. The DEP advised that

         25  they did not know who regulates helicopters, but
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          2  suggested we call the FAA.

          3                 Today we discovered that the

          4  Farmingdale District Office of the FAA regulates

          5  helicopter traffic in New York City. However,

          6  without pictures or helicopter I.D. number and a

          7  specific occurrence they cannot do anything.

          8                 On March 11, 2004, we e-mailed your

          9  office. We have not yet received a response.

         10                 We feel a responsibility to give the

         11  residents a response to their justified concerns.

         12                 What can be done to divert helicopter

         13  traffic away from Battery Park City?

         14                 Very truly yours, Milford Management

         15  Corp., as Agent for Liberty Court Condominium;

         16  Liberty House Condominium; Liberty Terrace

         17  Condominium; Liberty View Condominium; Hudson View

         18  West Condominium;

         19

         20  Anna Seddio, Assistant Property Manager

         21

         22  Cc: Timothy S. Carey

         23  President & CEO

         24  Battery Park City Authority

         25  One World Financial Center
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          2  New York, NY 10281-1097

          3

          4  Assemblymember Sheldon Silver

          5  250 Boardway (sic), Suite 2307

          6  New York, Ny 10007

          7

          8  Madelyn Wils

          9  Chairperson

         10  Community Board 1

         11  49-51 Chambers Street, Room 715

         12  New York, NY 10007-1209

         13

         14  Christopher O. Ward

         15  Commissioner

         16  DEP

         17  59-17 Junction Boulevard

         18  Flushing, NY 11373

         19

         20  Thomas Kunkel,

         21  Regional Director

         22  NYS DEC - Region 2

         23  47-340 21st Street

         24  Washington DC 20460

         25
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          2  Rep. Jerrold Nadler

          3  201 Varick Street, Suite 669

          4  New York, NY 10014

          5

          6  City Councilman Alan Gerson

          7  51 Chambers Street, Suite 429

          8  New York, NY 10007

          9

         10  Betsy Gotbaum

         11  Public Advocate

         12  1 Centre Street, 15th Floor

         13  New York, NY 10007

         14

         15  Joseph Seymour

         16  Executive Director

         17  Port Authority of New York & New Jersey

         18  225 Park Avenue South, 18th Floor

         19  New York, NY 10003-1604

         20

         21  EPA

         22  Ariel Rios Bldg.

         23  1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW

         24  Long Island City, NY 11101-5407

         25
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          2  Richard Martin

          3  Manager of Flight Standards

          4  Farmingdale District, FAA

          5  7150 Republic Airport

          6  Suite 235

          7  Farmingdale, NY 11735

          8

          9

         10  Written Testimony Of:

         11  William Shuzman

         12  Executive Director

         13  Steel And Ornamental Metal Institutes of New York

         14

         15                 Good morning (afternoon) ladies and

         16  gentlemen.

         17                 My name is William Shuzman and I am

         18  the Executive Director of the Steel and Ornamental

         19  Metal Institutes of New York. These entities are

         20  organizations consisting of contractors engaged in,

         21  among other things the installation of structural

         22  steel, precast concrete, architectural ornamental

         23  and miscellaneous metal products used on both

         24  building and heavy construction projects throughout

         25  the five boroughs of New York City as well as the
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          2  surrounding counties. Institute contractors are

          3  found on virtually every single construction site of

          4  any magnitude in these areas. All in all there are

          5  approximately 400 contractors that are associated

          6  with the institutes.

          7                 We in the construction industry are

          8  quite aware that excessive noise is one of the main

          9  quality of life issues that faces the administration

         10  and the Council. We are informed that noise issues

         11  from the basis of most of the complaints received by

         12  the 311 hotline. I have to assume that noise which

         13  eminates (sic) from construction activity make up a

         14  significant percentage of these complaints.

         15                 We therefore understand and

         16  appreciate the problem faced by the DEP, the Council

         17  and the Administration and the need to do something

         18  about the problem.

         19                 However, in trying to resolve the

         20  problem, care must be taken to avoid enacting a

         21  solution which may have the unintended result of

         22  severely curtailing the activities of one of the

         23  City's chief economic engines - the construction

         24  industry.

         25                 Whether we like it or not,
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          2  construction activity is a noisy proposition. And

          3  unfortunately, the construction industry is not a

          4  nine-to-five; five day per week proposition.

          5                 While all construction activities

          6  have some things in common, each project has its own

          7  unique characteristics. And trying to paint all

          8  construction activities with a broad brush simply

          9  won't work.

         10                 Let me focus on my industry for a

         11  minute.

         12                 In order for structural steel,

         13  miscellaneous metals, curtainwall etc. to be

         14  erected, more often than not there needs to ba (sic)

         15  a crane. Many of these cranes need to be assembled.

         16  And the assembly in most instances takes many hours

         17  and sometimes more than one day to accomplish. Crane

         18  assembly makes noise - both the actual assembly

         19  process as well as the auxiliary equipment needed to

         20  actually put the crane together. The noise created -

         21  for the most part will not meet the requirements of

         22  the proposed legislation. Furthermore, given the

         23  limited availability of certain types of hoisting

         24  equipment, oftentimes it is removed from a job on a

         25  Friday and needs to be on another job the following
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          2  Monday. Sometimes this requires an around-the-clock

          3  operation over the weekend.

          4                 Under the proposed rules, this

          5  activity would im (sic) many instances be curtailled

          6  (sic) if not completely prohibited.

          7                 Let's take another example. -- The

          8  actual erection of structural steel.

          9                 During the erect process, it is quite

         10  common for the pieces not to fit together as

         11  smoothly as one would hope. Sometimes a little

         12  "persuasion" is necessary. This persuasion entails

         13  an iron worker taking a huge sledgehammer and

         14  literally beating the stubborn piece of steel into

         15  place.

         16                 I do not know any type of engineering

         17  control or noise mitigation practice that will limit

         18  the sound of a sledge hammer striking a piece of

         19  steel. The same would be true of a pneumatic hammer.

         20  While the engine of this piece of equipment may be

         21  able to be muffled, the steel on steel sound remains

         22  the same.

         23                 Another shortcoming of the proposed

         24  legislation is that it ignores the variable of

         25  geography. What may be objectionable in a densely

                                                            377

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  populated residential area may be less objectionable

          3  in a commercial district on the weekend where there

          4  are few if any residents who will be impacted by

          5  what is going on. The same would be true of outlying

          6  areas of the City where there are no residents at

          7  all. Who cares what type of noise is created in

          8  these areas or when the noise is created?

          9                 Yet, with only a few extremely

         10  limited exceptions (section 24-223) relating to

         11  emergency work, work which impacts public safety,

         12  certain city projects, construction activities which

         13  produce little if any noise and where special

         14  circumstances are present which would cause undue

         15  hardship, all construction activities which would

         16  otherwise be scheduled for times other than between

         17  7:00 am and 6:00 pm are unlawful.

         18                 Such narrow limitations ignore the

         19  every-day, run-of-the mill types of construction

         20  projects that are the backbone of our industry.

         21                 We cannot be unmindful of the

         22  economic impact of such rigid proscriptions both as

         23  to the type of activity permitted as well as the

         24  hours that such limited activities are permitted.

         25                 I think we would all agree that it is

                                                            378

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  economically advantageous for developers to ensure

          3  that their construction projects are completed as

          4  soon as possible. Every day that tenant occupancy is

          5  delayed is a day that the developer is foregoing a

          6  return on his investment. Do any of us know at what

          7  point the development becomes economically

          8  infeasable?

          9                 And for those projects that will

         10  still be built - even with the extended time frame

         11  required for completion, what will be the increased

         12  cost to the tenant. Will commercial and residential

         13  tenants be willing to pay such increased costs?

         14                 And what about the other residents in

         15  the area surrounded by the construction project.

         16  While there may be some mitigation of noise

         17  problems, a host of other issues become magnified.

         18                 Limiting the hours and days of work

         19  will result in an extended project duration. Thus,

         20  those in the area surrounding a construction project

         21  will have to endure a longer period of time where

         22  traffic will be impeded (perhaps by the crane that

         23  must remain in the street for a prolonged period of

         24  time), where dirt and construction debris will be

         25  created and during which countless other
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          2  construction related matters will be part of their

          3  daily lives.

          4                 We hope that the Council will take

          5  into consideration the matters that have been raised

          6  today and not take any action which, on the surface

          7  may appear to be attractive, but which in practice

          8  would seriously threaten one of the City's major

          9  industries, one that employs tens of thousands of

         10  its residents and contributes millions of dollars

         11  into its economy.

         12                 Thank you for your attention.

         13

         14

         15  Written Testimony Of:

         16  J. Lee Compton

         17  Chair

         18  Manhattan Community Board No. 4

         19  330 West 42nd Street, 26th Floor

         20  New York, NY 10036

         21  tel: 212-736-4536

         22  fax: 212-947-9512

         23  www.ManhattanCB4.org

         24

         25  Comments on Proposed Revisions to the Noise Code
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          2  December 14, 2005

          3

          4                 Manhattan Community Board No. 4, like

          5  311, receives an inordinate number of citizen

          6  complaints about noise.

          7                 The noise that most upsets our

          8  community residents is generated by: weekend and

          9  after hours construction work; noisy bar, restaurant

         10  and nightclub patrons gathered in backyards, roofs,

         11  and sidewalk cafes, and lined up on the streets;

         12  loud music emanating from bars and nightclubs; and

         13  loud music and honking from cars.

         14                 Given that the issue of unreasonable

         15  noise is one we deal with so often, we strongly

         16  commend this initiative to update the City's Noise

         17  Code. We are particularly gratified to see many of

         18  the concerns raised by the Board in our November

         19  2003 letter about DEP's initiative to update the

         20  code reflected in the proposed amendment.

         21                 Limitations of the Current Noise Code

         22                 Members of our community frequently

         23  express frustration at the limitations of the

         24  current noise code. We have been told by

         25  representatives of DEP that the current code does
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          2  not apply to the human voice.

          3                 Therefore, very little can be done to

          4  prevent late night disturbances caused by rowdy bar

          5  and restaurant patrons. Although the NYPD often

          6  tells patrons to quiet down, inevitably the noise

          7  level ratchets back up twenty minutes after they

          8  depart. Owners are never held responsible for the

          9  noise generated by the patrons of their roofs,

         10  backyards, sidewalk cafes, and queues.

         11                 Community members have also been

         12  frustrated by the inability of DEP to hold

         13  nightclubs and bars responsible for the booming,

         14  vibrating basslines emanating from their

         15  establishments. Often, a DEP inspector visits a

         16  resident's apartment, wherein the noise from the

         17  club is plainly audible, but no violation registers

         18  on the meter due to the technical limitations of A

         19  weighting. Unfortunately, the present section of the

         20  law that allows measurement of individual octave

         21  bands is never used.

         22                 Finally, as a neighborhood that is

         23  host to a large amount of construction, our

         24  residents are regularly disturbed by after-hours and

         25  weekend construction work. Although we often object
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          2  to the issuance of these permits due to noise

          3  concerns, we are routinely ignored.

          4                 The Proposed Changes.

          5                 Construction Noise.

          6                 We are especially concerned about the

          7  proposed revisions to the section of the noise code

          8  that deals with after hours and weekend work

          9  permits. The current noise code limits the issuance

         10  of permits to situations of "urgent necessity in the

         11  interest of public safety." As it is, the definition

         12  of public safety seems to have been stretched to its

         13  absolute limit, given the frequency of six-day work

         14  at the city's construction sites. We are not aware

         15  of any application for after hours work ever being

         16  denied.

         17                 Rather than committing to uphold the

         18  current standard, the proposed revisions codify the

         19  current practice of awarding the permits in almost

         20  any situation. The proposed revision would allow

         21  after hours permits to be issued in the case of:

         22  City construction projects; construction activities

         23  with minimal noise impact; and undue hardship. We

         24  note that "undue hardship" includes "scheduling

         25  commitments" and "financial considerations". This is
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          2  completely unacceptable.

          3                 Although applying noise mitigation

          4  standards to the City's construction sites can't

          5  hurt, the fact is, construction is unavoidably

          6  noisy. Our community accepts this, but expects work

          7  to be limited to weekdays, as is required by the

          8  law. Construction work should also be barred on

          9  State and Federal holidays. We oppose, in the

         10  strongest possible terms, expanding the criteria for

         11  after hours and weekend work permits.

         12                 Commercial Music

         13                 We note with approval that the

         14  proposed changes lower the acceptable dBA for

         15  commercial music, retain the possibility of

         16  measuring octave bands, add a new C-weighted

         17  standard, and add a vibration standard.

         18                 We hope that these adjustments to the

         19  law will allow the City to deal more effectively

         20  with the problem of loud bass.

         21                 We also note that the possibility of

         22  measuring commercial music in individual octave

         23  bands continues to look promising and hope that DEP

         24  will be able to purchase several of these meters and

         25  train their inspectors in their use.
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          2                 The revised law allows music to be

          3  measured in any living space of a residential

          4  dwelling unit. Residents have occasionally

          5  complained to us that DEP inspectors will only

          6  measure sound in a bedroom, but clearly living

          7  rooms, kitchens, offices, and bathrooms are also

          8  living spaces. We believe that the law should be

          9  further amended to clarify that noise may also be

         10  measured in these rooms.

         11                 We approve the new limitation on

         12  music that is plainly audible on the street outside

         13  of a bar or club. We have several bars in our

         14  community that point their speakers out open windows

         15  or French doors as a means of attracting clientele.

         16                 It is our understanding that this has

         17  always been illegal, but the clarification and

         18  strengthening of the rule is certainly a good thing,

         19  and we look forward to its enforcement.

         20                 Human Voices

         21

         22                 Although nothing in the revised law

         23  would limit the "unreasonable noise" standard from

         24  being applied to the human voice, there is still no

         25  provision that directly deals with human noises
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          2  attributable to restaurants, bars and nightclubs. We

          3  believe that the law should be further amended to

          4  hold business owners responsible for loud and rowdy

          5  patrons of their rooftop gardens, sidewalk cafes,

          6  backyards and queues.

          7                 Although it would be unfair to hold a

          8  business owner responsible for the rare screamer, a

          9  business that is consistently noisy is a

         10  neighborhood nuisance. It is a privilege to be able

         11  to operate a business in an outdoor space, and that

         12  privilege comes with responsibility.

         13                 Summary.

         14                 We are pleased to see that throughout

         15  the proposed revisions, most of the standards are

         16  clear and comprehensible, expressed in exact decibel

         17  limits. An understandable and precise Code benefits

         18  both residents and businesses. Enforcement of these

         19  standards must of course be fair and evenhanded at

         20  all times.

         21                 Although we are strongly opposed to

         22  the expansion of criteria for after hours work

         23  permits, and we wish that the code could be amended

         24  to deal more effectively with noisy outdoor

         25  commercial establishments, overall we are pleased
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          2  with the proposed revisions to the code, and commend

          3  you on the hard work that clearly went into it.

          4                 Sincerely, J. Lee Compton, Chair.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 5:08 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 14th day of December 2005.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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